
Swindon Borough Council 
 

Audit Committee  
 
Tuesday, 26 January 2010  
 
Committee Room 6, Civic Offices, Swindon 
 
 

At 6.00 p.m. 
 
Conservative 
Councillors 

Labour Councillors 

Michael Dickinson 
(Chair) 
Nick Martin 
Mary Martin 
Eric Shaw 
Peter Stoddart 
 

Des Moffatt (Vice-
Chair) 
Steve Allsopp 
 

 
 
Committee Officer: Steve Jones (01793 463602) 
email: stevejones@swindon.gov.uk 
Swindon Borough Council, Civic Offices, Euclid Street, Swindon, SN1 2JH 
(Telephone 01793 445500) 
 
 

AGENDA 
1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   
 Members are requested at the start of the meeting to declare any known interests in any 

matter to be considered, and are reminded that any such interest should also be 
declared at the start of an item or during any discussion of the matter concerned.  

 
3. Public Question Time   

 See explanatory note below.  Please phone the Committee Officer whose name and 
number appears at the top of this agenda if you need further guidance).   

 
4. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 4) 

 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 24 November 2009  
 

5. Update on progress of Internal Audit’s review of the Payroll system (HIA-
CE) (Pages 5 - 6) 

6. Risk Management Status Update (GDBT) (Pages 7 - 16) 

7. Work undertaken by other Committees (HIA-CE) (Pages 17 - 26) 

8. External Audit Progress Report and Briefing Note  (Pages 27 - 36) 

 



9. Strategic Fraud Update (HIA-CE) (Pages 37 - 50) 

10. Anti-Fraud & Corruption Strategy and Whistleblowing Procedure (DLDS-B), 
(HIA-CE) (Pages 51 - 86) 

11. Head of Internal Audit Update (HIA-CE) (Pages 87 - 100) 

12. Internal Audit reports identifying significant risk or ‘of concern’ (HIA-CE) 
(Pages 101 - 128) 

Date of Despatch: 19 January 2010 
 
Key: 
 
 
GDBT - Group Director: Business Transformation 
HIA-CE - Head of Internal Audit 
DLDS-BT - Director of Law and Democratic Services: Business Transformation 

 
Public Question Time - Swindon Borough Council is committed to increasing its 
accountability to the public and to promoting active citizenship.  Up to 15 minutes will 
be allowed at the start of all Council meetings for questions to the Chair from 
members of the public about the work of the Committee (except for confidential 
matters and specific planning applications).  Questions must be relevant, clear and 
concise.  Because of time constraints Public Question Time is not an opportunity to 
make speeches or statements.  Prior notice of a question to the Director of Law and 
Democratic Services is desirable - particularly if detailed background information is 
needed.   
 
Access Arrangements – The Venue is wheelchair accessible and an infrared 
receiver hearing system is provided.  If you would wish to attend the meeting but 
have any special requirement to enable you to do so please contact the Committee 
Clerk above, as soon as possible prior to the date of the meeting. 
 
If you would like to receive any of the pages contained in this agenda in a larger print 
size please contact the Committee Officer whose name appears on the first page of 
this agenda. 
 
 

The Audit Committee - Terms of Reference 
(the complete terms of reference and programme of activity for the Audit Committee 

are set out in Minute 61 of the meeting of the Audit Sub-Committee held on 25 
January 2006) 

 
To provide independent assurance to the Council on the following responsibilities:  
(i) the effectiveness of the Council’s risk management, internal control and its 

overall assurance framework;  
(ii) the effectiveness of the Council’s financial and non-financial  performance to 

the extent that it might impact upon (i) above;  
(iii) the performance of the Council’s Internal Audit section; 
(iv)  the receipt and review of External Audit reports and liaison with external 

auditors on significant matters identified, and 
(v) advise upon and/or review the effectiveness of any other matters referred to 



the Audit Committee by the Cabinet, the Overview and Scrutiny and 
Regulatory Committees. 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY, 24 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
 
PRESENT:- Councillors Michael Dickinson (Chair), Des Moffatt (Vice-Chair), 
Steve Allsopp, Nick Martin, Mary Martin, Eric Shaw and Peter Stoddart 
 
24.   Declarations of Interest 

 
The Chair reminded Members of the need to declare any known interests in 

any matters to be considered at the meeting.  No declarations were made.  
 
25.   Public Question Time 

 
No questions were asked under Standing Order 18.  
 
26.   Minutes 

 
 Resolved - That the minutes of the meeting held on 22th September 2009, be 
confirmed and signed. 
 
27.   Exempt Items - Exclusion of Press and Public 

 
 That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972, the public be excluded during the discussion of the matters referred to in the 
items listed below on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the respective paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act. 
  
 Item No. Paragraph No. Minute No. 
  
 12 7 34 
 
 
28.   Response to Major Incidents/Events 

 
 The Head of Civil Protection Unit and the Head of Business Continuity gave a 
presentation to the Committee on the main issues relating to the Corporate Risk 
(07): ‘Risk: Responses to Major Incidents / events is not fully effective’, the 
mitigating controls in place to reduce the risk to the Council, and how the 
effectiveness of the controls were monitored.  The presentation included information 
on: 

• The main types of risks to the Community including transport, extreme 
weather, animal and human diseases, fuel crises and failures in national 
infrastructures such as utility companies, airports, and national incidents 
having local effects.  

• Assurance of the training, exercises and maintenance schedule and how the 
plans are continuously improved to reflect best practice and respond to new 
risks. 

• Information on joint work with Partners, in particular the PCT, and with local 
parish councils to improve local community awareness and the ability for 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



local responsibility. 
• The current redrafting of the Business Continuity Policy and Strategy in 

conjunction with the Swindon Primary Care Trust to meet the requirements of 
the new British Standard BS 25999. 

 
Resolved – 1) That the Head of Civil Protection Unit and Head of Business 

Continuity be thanked for their presentation. 
2) That the report be noted. 
3) That the Head of Civil Protection Unit and Head of Business Continuity 

arrange for a Members Training event and briefing session, to include Members’ 
responsibilities in relation to Business Continuity and Emergency Planning and how 
local knowledge can be utilised in relation to responding to incidents and future 
planning.  
 
29.   CAPITA Contract Management 

 
 In response to a request for further information at the meeting held on 
22nd September 2009, Sue Mendham (Partnership Manager) attended to present 
and answer questions on the level of penalties issued against Capita to date and 
details of waived penalties and the reasons for those penalties being waived.  Sue 
Mendham advised that the Council had received direct payments in penalties of 
£87,238, against a potential value of £293,857 (29.7%), but advised that where 
penalties had not been applied the Council had taken the decision on the basis that 
the value of remedial action that Capita had put in place was in excess of the level 
of penalty.  The Partnership Manager emphasised the seniority of the team making 
these decisions, and that such decisions were made in the context of the value for 
money of the whole contract, the quality of service, and the partnership relationship.   
Sue Mendham confirmed that the performance of the contract exceeded that in 
another Council where all penalties were always applied.  In addition, it was 
confirmed that the Council continued to discuss with Capita ongoing amendments to 
the contract to respond to changes in circumstances, including recognising and 
responding to the impact of the recession. 
 Resolved – 1) That the Committee noted the update and thanked Sue 
Mendham for attending the meeting to present the information. 
 2) That the Partnership Manager arrange for the Committee Members to 
receive information on the list of transformation activities which have taken place 
both inside and outside the Capita contract and an evaluation of their success and 
value.  
 
30.   Audit Committee Updates on Financial Accounts Processes 

 
 The Deputy Director of Finance (Darren Stevens) presented a report setting 
out the changes to the financial accounting standards and their impact for the 
Council’s financial statements and processes.   
 Darren Stevens advised that since the publication of the report, the 
Consultation on Capital Regulations had been issued, which had confirmed that 
there would be no additional costs to the Council as a result of the way in which 
Untaken Leave, Leases and Fixed Assets were accounted for in the new Balance 
Sheet format.  
 Resolved – 1) That the Committee note the contents of the report. 
 2) That the Committee supports the Finance Function in developing new 
methods of accounts closure procedures to improve the closedown process. 

Page 2



 3) That the Committee notes the draft timetable for closing 2009/10 and the 
general timetable for international standards transition, and supports the Finance 
Function in obtaining all information required from departments to meet these 
timescales. 
 4) That the Deputy Director of Finance provide an update the Chair in March/ 
April 2010 on progress made to meet the new requirements.  
 
31.   External Audit Progress Report 

 
 Mr Martin Robinson and Mr Paul Benfield (Audit Commission) attended the 
meeting as the Council’s External Auditors, and presented the November 2009 
External Audit Progress Report, showing the timetable of External Audit work up to 
March 2010.  The Committee noted that it was currently the half-way point of the 
year between audits, and therefore there was little new to note in the report, accept 
the work currently being carried out on checking the underlying financial and other 
systems in preparation for the next audit.  
 Resolved – That the Committee thank the External Auditors for attending the 
meeting and note the External Audit Progress Report as at November 2009.   
 
32.   CIPFA Benchmarking exercise of Internal Audit: 2009 

 
 The Head of Internal Audit presented a report summarising the 2009 
benchmarking exercise carried out by CIPFA with regard to the Council’s Internal 
Audit Service, in relation to its cost analysis, audit coverage and staffing numbers 
and qualifications. 
 The Committee noted that the audit coverage compared favourably with 
other unitary authorities in relation to strategic and operational risks, founded on a 
best practice approach of risk-based audits, and that the Council was able to 
account for additional coverage in relation to Housing Benefits and IT audits.  The 
section was well above average in terms of its qualifications and slightly above in 
terms of costs at the point of the survey.  The Committee welcomed differences to 
other unitary authorities, where this represented a better service tailored to local 
circumstances.  
 Resolved – That the contents of the report be noted.  
 
33.   Head of Internal Audit Update 

 
 The Committee received a report of the Head of Internal Audit summarising 
the main issues arising from the Internal Audit reports finalised since the last Audit 
Committee in September 2009, and progress against the annual internal audit plan.  
The Committee noted that at the end of October 43% of the audit plan had been 
completed against a target of 47%, and that recruitment was in place for a new part-
time Schools Auditor to start early in 2010 and for the recruitment of an apprentice 
auditor, to bring the team up to full capacity. 
 Resolved – That the contents of the report be noted.  
 
34.   Internal Audit reports identifying significant risk or ‘of concern’ 

 
 The Head of Internal Audit submitted a report providing the Committee with 
an update on the current position in relation to the agreed recommendations 
following the Internal Audit review of the Council’s Payroll system and the 
management response to those actions.  The next audit of the service was due to 

Page 3



begin in December 2009 and would report in March 2010.   
 Resolved – 1) That the report, and the management response to the key 
findings and recommendations of the audit review, be noted. 
 2) That the relevant Directors be requested to attend the next Audit 
Committee meeting to present an updated Management Response to the audit. 
 3) That the Draft Audit Report for the December 2009 audit of Payroll Service 
be presented to the meeting of the Audit Committee in April 2010 by the relevant 
Directors and Cabinet Member.  
 4) That the Head of Internal Audit consider a report to track and escalate any 
actions or recommendations of Audit Reports which are outstanding or ongoing. 
 
 

Page 4



Update on progress of Internal Audit’s review of the Payroll system 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE Date: 26th January 2009 
 
Author: Head of Internal Audit 
Wards Affected: None 

Purpose 
Members requested that they be updated with the progress made regarding the 
Internal Audit of the Payroll system. 

 

Recommendation 
• It is recommended that the contents of the report be noted. 
 

 
1 Reasons 

 
1.1 The Council’s Audit Committee has a strategic role to ensure that the 

Council’s assurance framework is operating effectively. To this end it 
should seek assurance that key areas that contribute to this framework 
are operating properly. 

 
1.2 Members requested that a verbal update be given to the next meeting 

of the Committee on progress made with the Internal Audit review of 
Payroll. 

 
2 Detail 

 
2.1 The Head of Internal Audit will give a verbal update on the progress 

made in completing the review of the Payroll system. 
 

 
Alternative Options 
 
Not Applicable 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



Update on progress of Internal Audit’s review of the Payroll system 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE Date: 26th January 2009 
 

Risk Management 
Financial and Procurement Implications 
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report however the 
detailed audit report will address the suitability of internal controls within the 
systems examined.  
Legal/Human Rights Implications 
Internal Audit is a statutory requirement of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2006. The Internal Audit service also provides assurance to the Director of 
Finance regarding the requirements of Section 151 of the Local Government Act 
1972. 

Links to Corporate Plans and Policies (in particular to Swindon 2010 Promises) 
Internal Control, Audit Committee and the Annual Governance Statement all 
feature significantly in the CAA Use of Resources Assessment. Effective systems 
of internal control within the Council will help to ensure that the objectives set out 
in the Corporate Plan and Swindon 2010 are achieved. 

 
Consultees  
The Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) and the Director of Law and Democratic 
Services (Monitoring Officer) are consulted on all reports. 
 
Appendices / Background papers 
None 
 
Key Decision/Decision in Forward Plan 
Not Applicable 
 

Page 6



Risk Management Status Update 
 
Audit Committee Date: 26th January 2010 
 

 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Alex Bedford 01793 
464354 or Email abedford@swindon.gov.uk 

 
Author:  Head of Performance and Risk  
 

Wards Affected: All 
 
 

 

Purpose 
• To present Audit Committee with a summary report on Risk Management activity 

within Swindon Borough Council 
 

 
 

Recommendation 
 

• It is recommended that the contents of this report be noted 
• It is recommended that Audit Committee discuss the Corporate Risk Register 
 

 
1. Reasons 
 

1.1 Audit Committee provides independent assurance to the Council on the 
effectiveness of the Council’s Risk Management, Internal Control and its 
overall assurance framework. 

 
 

2. Detail 
 
 
2.1 Risk Management Strategy 
 

2.1.1 The risk management training programme has continued with particular 
focus on project management and on improving the corporate capacity to 
challenge and quality assure risk information.  

 
2.1.2 Two more Lunch and Learn training sessions for project personnel have 

been held with another scheduled for next week. 31 officers have now 
attended this training and the feedback has been extremely positive. A 
number of officers have requested further one to one coaching and 
support having received the training to really embed their learning in their 
working practices. A coaching session has also been run for Project 
Management staff to help deepen the team’s risk management knowledge 
and to enable them to better challenge and quality assure project and 
programme risk registers. The team have also been trained to run/support 
future risk management lunch and learn sessions to increase capacity.  

 
2.1.3 Risk management officer training has been held to improve attendees 

understanding and knowledge and to enable them to carry out some 
quality assurance on the risk registers around the organisation. All five 
members of the Performance and Risk team, two internal audit officers, 

Agenda Item 6

Page 7



Risk Management Status Update 
 
Audit Committee Date: 26th January 2010 
 

 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Alex Bedford 01793 
464354 or Email abedford@swindon.gov.uk 

two officers from the project management office and a member of the 
partnership team attended this training.  

 
2.1.4 The Head of Internal Audit and the Head of Performance and Risk agreed 

a process whereby all significant or of concern audits are now sent 
through to the Performance and Risk Team to enable follow up on any risk 
management issues. 

 
2.1.5 The Risk Management Intranet pages have been updated to ensure that 

clear and consistent information is available to all officers and members. 
The pages have been consolidated, rewritten and the guidance and 
references updated. 

 
2.1.6 The corporate risk management resource has been reviewed and the 

Performance and Planning team restructured to become the Performance 
and Risk team, with all officers fulfilling multi-discipline posts. This will 
bring performance management, risk management and business planning 
more closely together the results of which can already be evidenced by 
the business planning process for 2010-11.   

 
2.1.7 As outlined previously, training has been carried out to up skill members of 

the Performance and Risk team to enable them to carry out quality 
assurance of the risk process and specialist mentoring and coaching is 
being made available to them on an ongoing basis. The role of 
performance champions is currently under consideration by the 
Performance and Risk Team with a view to increasing the risk 
management capacity of these posts. 

 
2.1.8 We recently participated in the ALARM (Association of Local Authority 

Risk Managers) Triennial benchmarking survey 2009, the results of which 
were published in December and are currently being analysed. 

 
 

2.2 Risk Registers 
 

2.2.1 The standard corporate format for risk registers has been expanded to be 
available in an excel workbook with integral guidance notes. This supports 
the delivery of the risk management strategy by providing officers with a 
more practical, easy to use document containing all the information they 
need to carry out a risk exercise and complete a risk register. 

 
2.2.2 The Corporate Risk Register has continued to be regularly updated both 

formally through the Performance Framework and on other occasions as 
circumstances have changed and the need arisen. 

  
2.2.3 A full refresh and discussion of the Corporate Risk Register is carried out 

at each Quarterly Business Review at Corporate Board, the most recent of 
which took place at the beginning of November 2009. The current 

Page 8



Risk Management Status Update 
 
Audit Committee Date: 26th January 2010 
 

 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Alex Bedford 01793 
464354 or Email abedford@swindon.gov.uk 

Corporate Risk Register is therefore dated October 2009 and is attached 
at Appendix 1. It is in the process of being updated for the next Quarterly 
Business Review, taking place in February 2010. 

 
2.2.4 From February 2010 Operations Board will be reviewing the Corporate 

Risk Register quarterly prior to Corporate Board to further strengthen this 
process. There is still an emphasis on mitigating actions as part of these 
discussions with Corporate Board challenging when actions do not appear 
to be as robust as necessary. 

 
 

2.3 Insurance  
 

2.3.1 The insurance policy fell due for renewal on 1st January 2010 and terms 
were received and accepted from the insurers within the current 
agreement. The total premium reduced, as Swindon Commercial Services 
are now responsible for their own insurance arrangements as an arms 
length organisation. 

 
2.3.2 Overall the number of claims continues to reduce in comparison to 

previous years. A 5-year claims summary is shown below. 
 

Year Number of Claims Cost of Claims 
2005 739 £2,078,114 
2006 418 £1,389,861 
2007 379 £1,627,524 
2008 369 £1,262,675 
2009 287 £744,328 
 

 
2.3.3 We are able to defend many claims however, there are instances when 

we have to pay some claims due to issues with adherence to procedures, 
and record keeping in some departments. When this is identified these are 
investigated, the relevant teams are informed and risk management 
assistance offered and the situation will continue to be monitored. 

 
2.3.4 It is anticipated that the overall number of claims will reduce in the next 

year as over the last five years, over half of the claims made against the 
Council relate to SCS so it is likely that the move to ALMO will have a 
positive impact on the Council’s own claims experience.  

 
 

2.4 Business Continuity Management 
 

2.4.1 The H1N1 Pandemic Influenza triggered the activation of the Business 
Continuity Team with meetings initially being held weekly and then later 
decreasing to fortnightly. Weekly updates were given to Corporate Board 
and to the Leaders Advisory Group. Whilst the disease has not gone 

Page 9



Risk Management Status Update 
 
Audit Committee Date: 26th January 2010 
 

 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Alex Bedford 01793 
464354 or Email abedford@swindon.gov.uk 

away, the decline in the numbers of infections in Britain has allowed us to 
place the meeting and update schedule on hold. However the plans and 
procedures for dealing with the disease are still in place and activity is 
being focussed on the vaccination programme. 

 
2.4.2 The Council’s response to the Pandemic had to be dynamic and reflect 

the rapidly changing situation and national planning assumptions. Initially 
the Government had planned for mass vaccination of the entire 
population. This was amended in order to target the vaccination of those 
groups who were proving to be particularly vulnerable to the virus and its 
effects such as the very young and those with certain medical conditions. 
Planning for the vaccination programme and the business impacts was 
carried out with Swindon PCT and the programme commenced in October 
2009. In addition the Council has been given responsibility and allocated 
funding by the Government for managing the vaccination of frontline social 
care staff who meet certain criteria. This programme is ongoing at present 
and will continue at least until the end of January.  

 
2.4.3 As a result of the severe weather in January 2010, the Business 

Continuity Plans were invoked. Liaison with business areas across the 
Council and our service delivery partners took place. Services to the 
vulnerable were prioritised and support given to areas such as Adult 
Social Care to ensure that key staff could get to work and to their clients. 
The Communications Team provided a vital link to staff and the residents 
of Swindon with regular and up-to-date information on schools and council 
services being placed on the website. 

  
2.4.4 The PCT have agreed that a joint Business Continuity Policy and Strategy 

with Swindon Borough Council be developed in line with the British 
Standard for Business Continuity BS25999. The drafts will be circulated 
for consultation by 31st March 2010. 

 
2.4.5 The training and exercising schedule will continue throughout 2010. In 

addition to internal exercises SBC and Swindon NHS (Primary Care Trust) 
are participating in a Gold Standard exercise facilitated by the Cabinet 
Office in February. The exercise will address issues raised by a chemical, 
biological, radiological and nuclear release. 

 
 

2.5 Civil Contingencies 
 

2.5.1 The onset of the Swine Flu Pandemic led Swindon Borough Council to 
invoke its Pandemic Influenza Plans and Procedures. The national 
planning assumptions and worst-case scenario at that time were used as 
the basis for planning the Council’s response.    

 
2.5.2 The work involved close co-operation and partnership working with the 

Swindon NHS (Primary Care Trust), the Council’s partners and the 

Page 10



Risk Management Status Update 
 
Audit Committee Date: 26th January 2010 
 

 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Alex Bedford 01793 
464354 or Email abedford@swindon.gov.uk 

agencies involved in the Local Resilience Forum. The Civil Protection Unit 
together with the Business Continuity Manager worked to ensure that the 
procedures put in place reflected both the national directives as well as 
taking account of local needs. 

 
2.5.3 During the severe weather in January 2010 the Council’s Extreme 

Weather Guide was invoked. The Civil Protection Unit liaised and worked 
closely with its LRF partners, the Council’s partners and the Business 
Continuity Manager throughout this time.  

 
2.5.4 The planning, preparation and response meant that the Council were able 

to maintain critical services at all times. National directives requiring 
ultimately a 50% reduction in salt usage were complied with and during 
this time the Council also provided mutual aid to Wiltshire Council in the 
form of salt supplies. 

 
2.5.5 Parish Councils were asked to support the effort by keeping an eye on 

vulnerable residents and neighbours. An internal 4x4 vehicle response 
protocol was set up and this linked into that set up by the Local Resilience 
Forum. The LRF’s protocol has been put forward as a national good 
practice model. 

 
2.5.6 On the 29th October 2009 there was a request for an update of the local 

implementation of the Pitt Review Recommendations and this was duly 
submitted. The Draft Flood and Water Bill is still going through Parliament 
and the final implications and funding arrangements are awaited.  

 
2.5.7 In conjunction with the Environment Agency, the Civil Protection Unit is 

supporting an initiative whereby a Graduate Student is working with the 
Council in looking at the management of surface water flooding. 

 
2.5.8 In line with the training and exercising schedule this Unit has facilitated 

training for Local Authority Incident Officers, Inter Faith Group members 
and has been involved with multi-agency exercises concerning the Flu 
Pandemic. A presentation was given in November 2009 to the Audit 
Committee when a recommendation was made that training for Members 
should be carried out. This will be arranged after the elections this year. 

 
 
Alternative Options 
 

• Not Applicable 
 

 

Risk Management  
 

Financial and Procurement Implications 
The Risk Management Budget will support funding for delivering the Risk 
Management Strategy.  General Risk Management related costs to be absorbed 

Page 11



Risk Management Status Update 
 
Audit Committee Date: 26th January 2010 
 

 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Alex Bedford 01793 
464354 or Email abedford@swindon.gov.uk 

by existing budgets. 
Legal / Human Rights Implications 

As part of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2006 it is a statutory requirement 
that the Council maintains a robust, adequate and effective system of Risk 
Management in the management of its risks in delivery of its core services.  
The Civil Contingencies Act 2005 imposes duties on the council to meet its 
responsibilities as a Category 1 Responder, which as a public sector organisation 
has a key role to play in the response to and management of an emergency.   

Links to Corporate Plans and Policies (in particular to Swindon 2010 Promises) 
The Risk Management Strategy, the Corporate Risk Register, Risk Management 
and Performance monitoring are management processes that help underpin the 
successful delivery of the Corporate Plan, Annual Delivery Plan, Policies and 
Swindon 2010 Promises. 

 

 
 
 
Consultees 

• The Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) and the Director of Law and 
Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) are consulted on all reports. 

• Head of Internal Audit 
• Insurance Manager 
• Business Continuity Manager 
• Head of Civil Contingencies  

 
Background Papers and Appendices 
 

• Appendix 1 – Corporate Risk Register October 2009 
 

Page 12



R
is

k 
R

ef
.

Li
nk

 to
 C

or
po

ra
te

 P
la

n,
 

Pr
om

is
e,

 P
ro

je
ct

 o
r w

id
er

 
ob

je
ct

iv
e

R
is

k
Tr

ig
ge

rs
/C

au
se

s
C

on
se

qu
en

ce
s/

Im
pa

ct
R

is
k 

O
w

ne
r(

s)
C

ur
re

nt
 c

on
tr

ol
s

Im
pa

ct
Li

ke
lih

oo
d

C
ur

re
nt

 
R

at
in

g 
(R

=I
*L

)
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n(

s)
O

w
ne

r o
f A

ct
io

n
Ta

rg
et

 D
at

e
Im

pa
ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

R
es

id
ua

l
R

at
in

g 
(R

=I
*L

)

Fo
cu

s 
of

 S
w

in
do

n 
20

10
: 5

0 
P

ro
m

is
es

 p
as

se
s 

in
 n

ex
t 1

2 
m

on
th

s
Fa

ilu
re

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
fo

cu
s 

on
 a

gr
ee

d 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

na
l o

bj
ec

tiv
es

P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

di
sc

us
si

on
s 

w
ith

 C
ab

in
et

 
on

 fu
tu

re
 p

rio
rit

ie
s

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

fo
r s

en
io

r 
of

fic
er

s 
an

d 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 a

 c
le

ar
 fo

cu
s 

on
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
cl

ea
r p

rio
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

no
n-

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
pa

rtn
er

 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t

Ja
ck

 M
ar

ki
ew

ic
z

31
st

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

9

Im
pe

nd
in

g 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 p

ub
lic

 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 w
ill

 n
ec

es
si

ta
te

 
re

pr
io

rit
is

at
io

n 
an

d 
di

si
nv

es
tm

en
t 

fro
m

 s
om

e 
se

rv
ic

es

Li
m

ite
d 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
ar

e 
sp

en
t o

n 
no

n-
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
bu

dg
et

s 
ar

e 
in

su
ffi

ci
en

t t
o 

m
ee

t d
em

an
d

O
ng

oi
ng

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f f
ut

ur
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
os

iti
on

 in
 M

TR
P

D
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 a
t o

ffi
ce

r l
ev

el
 o

n 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f S

w
in

do
n 

D
el

iv
er

y 
P

la
n 

(n
ex

t C
or

po
ra

te
 P

la
n)

M
at

t G
ot

t
O

ng
oi

ng
 fr

om
 M

ay
 

20
09

 to
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
10

A
cc

el
er

at
io

n 
of

 2
01

0/
11

 b
ud

ge
t p

ro
ce

ss
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ag
re

em
en

t t
o 

im
pl

em
en

t s
av

in
gs

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 w

ith
 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 e

ffe
ct

S
tu

ar
t M

cK
el

la
r

O
ng

oi
ng

 fr
om

 J
un

e 
20

09

A
m

bi
tio

us
 a

ge
nd

a 
re

qu
ire

s 
in

ve
st

m
en

t a
nd

 s
w

ift
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
sa

vi
ng

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

tra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
   

   
   

   
   

 O
ffs

et
tin

g 
sa

vi
ng

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
ov

er
 

th
e 

co
st

 n
ot

 m
et

 b
y 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
&

 G
ov

t. 
G

ra
nt

R
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

to
 

id
en

tif
y 

sc
al

e 
of

 p
ot

en
tia

l b
ud

ge
t 

de
fic

it

A
ct

io
ns

 a
gr

ee
d 

to
 h

el
p 

ba
la

nc
e 

cu
rr

en
t y

ea
r's

 b
ud

ge
t 

S
tu

ar
t M

cK
el

la
r

O
ng

oi
ng

 th
ro

ug
h 

20
09

E
xt

er
na

l c
os

t p
re

ss
ur

es
 

(d
em

og
ra

ph
ic

s 
/ g

ro
w

th
 / 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
ec

on
om

ic
 d

ow
nt

ur
n)

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 re
se

rv
es

 o
r f

ur
th

er
 

pr
es

su
re

 o
n 

20
10

/1
1 

bu
dg

et
 if

 2
00

9/
10

 
bu

dg
et

 is
 o

ve
rs

pe
nt

D
ia

lo
gu

e 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 w

ith
in

 
di

re
ct

or
at

es
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

re
as

 to
 

pr
od

uc
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

pr
op

os
al

s 
to

 
m

iti
ga

te
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 o
ve

rs
pe

nd
. 

A
cc

el
er

at
io

n 
of

 2
01

0/
11

 b
ud

ge
t p

ro
ce

ss
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ag
re

em
en

t t
o 

im
pl

em
en

t s
av

in
gs

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 w

ith
 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 e

ffe
ct

S
tu

ar
t M

cK
el

la
r

O
ng

oi
ng

 fr
om

 J
un

e 
20

09

B
ud

ge
t p

re
ss

ur
es

 c
ar

rie
d 

fo
rw

ar
d 

fro
m

 2
00

8/
09

E
ro

de
s 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n
U

se
 o

f o
ne

-o
ff 

m
on

ey
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 w
ith

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

re
al

is
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
sa

vi
ng

s 
or

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 

in
co

m
e 

in
 th

e 
sh

or
t t

o 
m

ed
iu

m
-te

rm

S
tu

ar
t M

cK
el

la
r

O
ng

oi
ng

 th
ro

ug
h 

20
09

Im
pa

ct
 o

f E
qu

al
 P

ay
 a

nd
 S

in
gl

e 
S

ta
tu

s 
st

ill
 u

nk
no

w
n

D
et

ai
le

d 
an

d 
ex

te
ns

iv
e 

in
te

rn
al

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 o

ng
oi

ng
 to

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
 

cu
rr

en
t c

ha
lle

ng
es

, i
n 

pa
rti

cu
la

r 
M

an
ag

er
's

 B
ul

le
tin

. 

C
or

po
ra

te
 B

oa
rd

 a
nd

 C
ab

in
et

 to
 lo

ok
 a

t m
iti

ga
tin

g 
pl

an
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ro

bu
st

ne
ss

S
tu

ar
t M

cK
el

la
r

30
th

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
9

M
on

th
ly

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 re
po

rt 
in

 p
la

ce
 

to
 u

pd
at

e 
A

M
G

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 in
 th

e 
C

ap
ita

l P
ro

gr
am

m
e,

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ov

er
al

l d
el

iv
er

y 
an

d 
pr

oj
ec

t b
ud

ge
t, 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
th

e 
fin

an
ce

 re
po

rt 
gi

vi
ng

 in
-

ye
ar

 s
pe

nd

Ta
rg

et
ed

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 s
es

si
on

s 
fo

r p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
er

s 
pl

an
ne

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ye

ar
 c

ov
er

in
g 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n,

 
C

ha
ng

e,
 R

is
k,

 F
in

an
ce

, L
eg

al
, P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ro

ce
ss

, a
nd

 
La

nd
 R

eg
is

try

M
ar

k 
H

op
ki

ns
31

st
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

0

H
ea

d 
of

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

an
d 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
ap

po
in

te
d 

le
ad

 o
ffi

ce
r o

n 
ca

pi
ta

l 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e

W
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 S
W

R
E

IP
 o

n 
th

ei
r o

ffe
rin

g/
su

pp
or

t
M

ar
k 

H
op

ki
ns

30
th

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

9

N
ew

 B
id

 F
or

m
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 F

in
an

ce
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

vi
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 b
id

di
ng

 fo
r f

un
di

ng
 a

nd
 

th
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 s
ta

rt 
of

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 o

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f a

n 
as

se
t

Lu
nc

h 
an

d 
Le

ar
n 

se
ss

io
ns

 ru
n 

fo
r 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

er
s 

on
 ri

sk
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

pr
oc

es
s

E
st

im
at

es
 fo

r c
ap

ita
l s

pe
nd

 
im

pa
ct

ed
 o

n 
by

 e
xt

er
na

l e
co

no
m

ic
 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s 
e.

g.
 s

te
el

 p
ric

e 
in

cr
ea

se
s

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 c

ap
ita

l e
xp

en
di

tu
re

C
ap

ita
l s

pe
nd

 re
vi

ew
 re

po
rt 

m
on

th
ly

 
to

 C
or

po
ra

te
 B

oa
rd

 a
nd

 q
ua

rte
rly

 to
 

C
ab

in
et

U
nf

or
es

ee
n 

fa
ct

or
s 

ca
us

e 
de

la
ys

 
e.

g.
 e

co
lo

gi
ca

l
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

sc
ho

ol
s,

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

, 
se

rv
ic

es
 e

tc
.

P
ro

je
ct

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

w
ith

 A
ss

et
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

A
ct

iv
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

.  
   

   
   

   
C

on
st

an
t 

re
vi

ew
 o

f m
ar

ke
t c

on
di

tio
ns

.  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
R

eg
ul

ar
 

re
po

rti
ng

 v
ia

 M
em

be
rs

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up

R
ob

 R
ic

ha
rd

s
S

tu
ar

t M
cK

el
la

r
O

ng
oi

ng

La
ck

 o
f v

is
ib

ili
ty

 a
ro

un
d 

sc
he

m
es

 
fu

nd
ed

 b
y 

S
10

6 
de

po
si

ts
 in

 w
ho

le
 o

r 
in

 p
ar

t

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
us

e 
of

 re
so

ur
ce

s
Th

e 
fo

cu
s 

an
d 

re
m

it 
of

 th
e 

O
A

M
G

 is
 b

ei
ng

 e
xp

an
de

d 
to

 
al

l p
ro

je
ct

s 
fu

nd
ed

 b
y 

ca
pi

ta
l i

nc
lu

di
ng

 S
B

C
 c

ap
ita

l, 
gr

an
ts

 a
nd

 S
10

6 

M
ar

k 
H

op
ki

ns
30

th
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
9

D
is

po
sa

l p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

do
es

n'
t r

ea
lis

e 
re

ce
ip

ts
 d

ue
 to

 e
xt

er
na

l e
co

no
m

ic
 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s

D
ed

ic
at

ed
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e

P
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 b

ut
 a

re
 n

ot
 

fu
lly

 u
nd

er
st

oo
d 

or
 fo

llo
w

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
m

aj
or

ity

N
ee

ds
 o

f c
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

ar
e 

no
t m

et
P

ro
ce

ss
es

, P
ro

ce
du

re
s 

an
d 

P
la

ns
 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 a
re

 re
gu

la
rly

 
re

vi
ew

ed

C
on

tin
uo

us
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f p

la
ns

 &
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
in

 li
gh

t 
of

 g
oo

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
S

am
 W

el
le

r/A
lis

ta
ir 

Ire
la

nd
O

ng
oi

ng

C
rit

ic
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
no

t d
el

iv
er

ed
B

us
in

es
s 

C
on

tin
ui

ty
 T

ea
m

 a
nd

 P
la

ns
 

in
 p

la
ce

R
ed

ra
fti

ng
 o

f B
us

in
es

s 
C

on
tin

ui
ty

 S
tra

te
gy

 &
 P

ol
ic

y
A

lis
ta

ir 
Ire

la
nd

31
st

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9

La
ck

 o
f c

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

ex
er

ci
si

ng
 

an
d 

tra
in

in
g 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

so
 p

la
ns

 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

in
vo

ke
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

ut
ie

s 
ar

e 
no

t m
et

E
xe

rc
is

e 
an

d 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

ra
is

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

is
 in

 p
la

ce
 a

nd
 is

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d

A
w

ar
en

es
s,

 T
ra

in
in

g,
 E

xe
rc

is
in

g 
&

 u
pd

at
in

g 
S

ch
ed

ul
e 

to
 

in
cl

ud
e 

in
te

rn
al

 b
us

in
es

s 
ar

ea
s 

an
d 

ex
te

rn
al

 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

,  
P

ar
is

he
s 

an
d 

th
e 

Th
ird

 S
ec

to
r 

S
am

 W
el

le
r/A

lis
ta

ir 
Ire

la
nd

O
ng

oi
ng

C
R

04
To

 d
el

iv
er

 c
ap

ita
l 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 C

ou
nc

il 

C
R

02
A

ch
ie

vi
ng

 in
 y

ea
r b

ud
ge

t

C
R

01
D

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

e 
S

ha
re

d 
V

is
io

n 
fo

r S
w

in
do

n 
20

08
-

20
30

U
na

bl
e 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 in

 
ye

ar
 b

ud
ge

t f
or

 
20

09
/1

0

S
tu

ar
t M

cK
el

la
r

C
ap

ita
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
sl

ip
s

H
ite

sh
 P

at
el

 
In

su
ffi

ci
en

t c
ap

ac
ity

 in
 c

lie
nt

 te
am

 o
r 

te
ch

ni
ca

l d
el

iv
er

y 
te

am
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

sc
ho

ol
s,

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

, 
se

rv
ic

es
 e

tc
.

4

H
ig

h

4 3

H
ig

h

La
ck

 o
f c

la
rit

y 
on

 
fu

tu
re

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 

th
e 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 re
fo

cu
s 

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n'

s 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

an
d 

se
cu

re
 p

ar
tn

er
 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t

G
av

in
 J

on
es

M
ed

iu
m

3

4
3

H
ig

h

3
4

4
3

2
M

ed
iu

m

2
M

ed
iu

m

C
R

07
R

ea
di

ne
ss

 to
 re

sp
on

d 
to

 
m

aj
or

 in
ci

de
nt

s
R

es
po

ns
e 

to
 m

aj
or

 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

/ e
ve

nt
s 

is
 

no
t f

ul
ly

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e

H
ite

sh
 P

at
el

Page 13



R
is

k 
R

ef
.

Li
nk

 to
 C

or
po

ra
te

 P
la

n,
 

Pr
om

is
e,

 P
ro

je
ct

 o
r w

id
er

 
ob

je
ct

iv
e

R
is

k
Tr

ig
ge

rs
/C

au
se

s
C

on
se

qu
en

ce
s/

Im
pa

ct
R

is
k 

O
w

ne
r(

s)
C

ur
re

nt
 c

on
tr

ol
s

Im
pa

ct
Li

ke
lih

oo
d

C
ur

re
nt

 
R

at
in

g 
(R

=I
*L

)
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n(

s)
O

w
ne

r o
f A

ct
io

n
Ta

rg
et

 D
at

e
Im

pa
ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

R
es

id
ua

l
R

at
in

g 
(R

=I
*L

)

La
ck

 o
f e

ng
ag

em
en

t i
n 

an
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 M
aj

or
 In

ci
de

nt
 

P
la

nn
in

g 
w

ith
in

 S
B

C
 a

nd
 p

ar
tn

er
s

B
ad

 p
ub

lic
ity

/L
os

s 
of

 re
pu

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 c
on

fid
en

ce
A

ct
iv

e 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t w
ith

 L
R

F
Jo

in
t w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 L

R
F 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
H

ea
lth

 P
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 a
lig

n
pl

an
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
S

am
 W

el
le

r/A
la

st
ai

r 
Ire

la
nd

O
ng

oi
ng

R
ob

us
tn

es
s 

of
 jo

in
t p

an
de

m
ic

 fl
u 

pl
an

s 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l i

m
pl

ic
at

io
ns

Jo
in

t p
an

de
m

ic
 fl

u 
pl

an
ni

ng
 in

 p
la

ce
 

w
ith

 P
C

T
Jo

in
t P

an
de

m
ic

 F
lu

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ex

er
ci

se
s 

S
B

C
/P

C
T

S
am

 W
el

le
r/A

lis
ta

ir 
Ire

la
nd

O
ng

oi
ng

 th
ro

ug
h 

pa
nd

em
ic

S
ch

oo
ls

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

an
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 th
ei

r r
ol

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r r
es

po
ns

e 
pl

an
s

R
eg

ul
ar

 d
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 th
ro

ug
h 

ke
y 

H
ea

d 
Te

ac
he

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
tiv

e 
gr

ou
ps

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

e 
C

ro
ss

-P
ha

se
 G

ro
up

 
an

d 
th

e 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

Jo
in

t S
af

et
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee

Ia
n 

B
ic

ke
rto

n
30

th
 J

ul
y 

20
09

 a
nd

 
on

go
in

g 

S
up

po
rt 

to
 s

ch
oo

ls
 o

n 
bu

si
ne

ss
 c

on
tin

ui
ty

 p
la

nn
in

g,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 te

m
pl

at
e

Ia
n 

B
ic

ke
rto

n
Ju

ne
 2

00
9 

an
d 

on
go

in
g 

A
ll 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
er

vi
ec

s 
D

ire
ct

or
s 

 re
gu

la
rly

 re
vi

ew
in

g 
B

us
in

es
s 

C
on

tin
ui

ty
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 P
la

ns
 fo

r a
ll 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
S

er
vi

ce
s'

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 s

ite
s 

th
at

 th
ey

 m
an

ag
e,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

Y
ou

th
 C

en
tre

s,
 C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
C

en
tre

s 
an

d 
of

fic
es

Ia
n 

B
ic

ke
rto

n
30

th
 J

ul
y 

20
09

 a
nd

 
on

go
in

g 

C
le

ar
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
 w

or
k 

ro
le

s 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
s.

R
eg

ul
ar

 re
vi

ew
s 

an
d 

re
-is

su
e 

of
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
P

la
nn

in
g 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
fo

r s
ch

oo
ls

 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 c
ur

re
nt

 D
C

S
F 

an
d 

ot
he

r s
ou

rc
es

 o
f 

gu
id

an
ce

.

Ia
n 

B
ic

ke
rto

n
30

th
 J

ul
y 

20
09

 a
nd

 
on

go
in

g 

E
ng

ag
em

en
t o

f a
nd

 b
et

w
ee

n 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 is

 n
ot

 
su

ffi
ci

en
tly

 d
ev

el
op

ed

Fa
il 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 re

al
 C

ha
ng

e 
un

de
r t

he
 

C
ha

ng
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e

Fo
cu

s 
gr

ou
ps

 h
el

d 
w

ith
 s

ta
ff 

ar
ou

nd
 

ke
y 

tra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

na
l p

ro
je

ct
s

C
on

ve
rt 

se
ni

or
 m

an
ag

em
en

t b
uy

-in
 in

to
 re

al
 m

om
en

tu
m

 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
- i

nt
er

ve
nt

io
n 

pl
an

s 
to

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
- c

ha
ng

e 
im

pl
em

en
tio

n 
pl

an
 fo

r N
ew

 
W

ay
s 

of
 W

or
ki

ng
 in

 p
la

ce
 a

nd
 b

ei
ng

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 +

 
C

om
m

s 
pl

an
 fo

r S
in

gl
e 

S
ta

tu
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

fro
m

 J
an

 2
01

0

P
at

ric
k 

W
ei

r /
 K

ar
en

 
M

cM
ah

on
O

ng
oi

ng

C
ha

ng
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 a
nd

 c
ap

ab
ili

ty
 

bu
ild

in
g 

no
t r

es
ou

rc
ed

Tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

be
ne

fit
s 

no
t r

ea
lis

ed
 

(fi
na

nc
ia

l, 
cu

st
om

er
, s

er
vi

ce
, 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
)

H
ea

d 
of

 C
ha

ng
e 

an
d 

C
ha

ng
e 

te
am

 
in

 p
la

ce
O

ng
oi

ng
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 c

ap
ab

ili
ty

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
- r

ef
re

sh
ed

 c
ha

ng
e 

ca
pa

bi
lit

y 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 

pl
an

 fo
r C

or
po

ra
te

 B
oa

rd
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
N

ov
 / 

D
ec

 2
00

9

P
at

ric
k 

W
ei

r /
 N

ic
k 

V
at

 
/ J

ac
k 

M
ar

ki
ew

ic
z

31
st

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9

E
xt

en
t o

f c
ha

ng
e 

un
de

re
st

im
at

ed
Im

pr
ov

ed
 o

ut
co

m
es

 n
ot

 d
el

iv
er

ed
C

ap
ab

ili
ty

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
-  

ph
as

e 
1 

ca
nd

id
at

es
 (p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
sp

on
so

rs
, l

ea
d 

di
re

ct
or

s,
 c

ha
ng

e 
pr

ac
tit

io
ne

rs
 a

nd
 k

ey
 p

ro
je

ct
 

m
an

ag
er

s)
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

&
 d

is
co

ve
ry

 
ph

as
e 

to
 a

sc
er

ta
in

 n
ee

d 
is

 b
ei

ng
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d

C
ha

ng
e 

so
lu

tio
ns

 
(p

ro
ce

ss
/s

ys
te

m
s/

ne
w

 w
ay

s 
of

 
w

or
ki

ng
) d

ev
el

op
ed

 w
ith

ou
t 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
r e

ng
ag

em
en

t

U
ns

us
ta

in
ab

le
 c

ha
ng

e 
/ C

ha
ng

e 
do

es
 

no
t b

ec
om

e 
em

be
dd

ed

Im
pa

ct
 o

f S
in

gl
e 

st
at

us
 o

n 
st

af
f

Lo
st

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y,

 im
pr

ov
ed

 v
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

 a
nd

 re
in

ve
st

m
en

t o
f h

um
an

 
an

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 re

so
ur

ce
s

La
ck

 o
f c

la
rit

y 
on

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
ac

co
un

ta
bi

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n.

C
rim

in
al

 P
ro

se
cu

tio
n,

 c
or

po
ra

te
 

m
an

sl
au

gh
te

r c
ha

rg
es

 a
nd

 
im

pr
is

on
m

en
t

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y 
po

lic
y 

an
d 

gu
id

an
ce

 w
ith

 s
up

po
rti

ng
 tr

ai
ni

ng
C

or
po

ra
te

 H
&

S
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

la
n 

in
 p

la
ce

A
m

an
da

 W
oo

dh
ea

d
31

st
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

0

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

pa
rtn

er
s 

on
 s

ha
re

d 
ris

k
R

ep
ut

at
io

n 
da

m
ag

ed
R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 a
nd

 s
af

e 
sy

st
em

s 
of

 w
or

k 
at

 lo
ca

l l
ev

el
s

E
ns

ur
e 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
an

d 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 H

&
S

 is
su

es
 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
vi

ew
 o

f r
ep

or
tin

g,
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

es
ca

la
tio

n 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
.  

A
m

an
da

 W
oo

dh
ea

d
31

st
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

0

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 re
sp

on
d 

to
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 
le

gi
sl

at
io

n
Fi

na
nc

ia
l c

os
t f

ro
m

 c
iv

il 
lit

ig
at

io
n,

 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
pr

em
iu

m
s,

  
da

m
ag

e 
to

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t a

nd
 p

ro
pe

rty

D
ed

ic
at

ed
 te

am
 o

f e
xt

er
na

lly
 

ac
cr

ed
ite

d 
H

ea
lth

 &
 S

af
et

y 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls

 w
ho

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

ud
it 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e.

E
nh

an
ce

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 d

ia
lo

gu
e 

an
d 

de
ba

te
 o

f J
oi

nt
 S

af
et

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 e
na

bl
in

g 
it 

to
 p

la
y 

a 
m

or
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 ro

le
 in

 
dr

iv
in

g 
sa

fe
ty

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

nd
 

ac
co

un
ta

bi
lit

y

Ja
ck

 M
ar

ki
ew

ic
z

31
st

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9

La
ck

 o
f c

ap
ac

ity
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

le
ga

l 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 s
ta

ff 
ab

se
nc

e/
si

ck
ne

ss
, 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
st

af
f m

or
al

e
H

ea
lth

, S
af

et
y 

&
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t B
oa

rd
 h

el
d 

qu
ar

te
rly

 
w

ith
 re

po
rt 

to
 J

oi
nt

 S
af

et
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee

R
ev

ie
w

 jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 k
ey

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

S
B

C
 le

ga
l r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
ar

e 
m

et
.

A
m

an
da

 W
oo

dh
ea

d
6 

m
on

th
ly

 re
vi

ew

In
ju

rie
s 

to
 s

at
ff 

or
 o

th
er

 s
ite

 u
se

rs
P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
up

da
te

d 
as

 
re

qu
ire

d
A

m
an

da
 W

oo
dh

ea
d

31
st

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
0

C
le

ar
 a

cc
ou

nt
ab

ili
tie

s 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 D

ire
ct

or
s 

Te
am

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 B

oa
rd

Ja
ck

 M
ar

ki
ew

ic
z

31
st

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9

S
ch

oo
ls

 a
w

ar
en

es
s,

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
ei

r 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 h
ea

d 
te

ac
he

r i
nd

uc
tio

n

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
sc

ho
ol

s 
no

t r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 

re
le

va
nt

 a
dv

ic
e

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
sc

ho
ol

s 
bu

y 
in

 H
ea

lth
 &

 
S

af
et

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
fro

m
 S

B
C

 o
r o

th
er

 
re

le
va

nt
 p

ro
vi

de
r

3
3

M
ed

iu
m

4
4

2
M

ed
iu

m

3

C
R

09
H

ea
lth

, S
af

et
y 

an
d 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
Fa

ilu
re

 to
 s

at
is

fy
 

du
ty

 o
f c

ar
e 

an
d 

st
at

ut
or

y 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

M
ed

iu
m

2 3

H
ite

sh
 P

at
el

4
3

H
ig

h
2

M
ed

iu
m

M
ed

iu
m

3

C
R

08
W

ho
le

 C
ou

nc
il 

Tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n

C
ul

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

is
 n

ot
 

re
ad

y 
fo

r t
he

 s
te

p 
ch

an
ge

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 

tra
ns

fo
rm

H
ite

sh
 P

at
el

Page 14



R
is

k 
R

ef
.

Li
nk

 to
 C

or
po

ra
te

 P
la

n,
 

Pr
om

is
e,

 P
ro

je
ct

 o
r w

id
er

 
ob

je
ct

iv
e

R
is

k
Tr

ig
ge

rs
/C

au
se

s
C

on
se

qu
en

ce
s/

Im
pa

ct
R

is
k 

O
w

ne
r(

s)
C

ur
re

nt
 c

on
tr

ol
s

Im
pa

ct
Li

ke
lih

oo
d

C
ur

re
nt

 
R

at
in

g 
(R

=I
*L

)
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n(

s)
O

w
ne

r o
f A

ct
io

n
Ta

rg
et

 D
at

e
Im

pa
ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

R
es

id
ua

l
R

at
in

g 
(R

=I
*L

)

La
ck

 o
f a

w
ar

en
es

s/
ex

pe
rti

se
 w

ith
in

 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
of

 a
ll 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds

R
et

en
tio

n 
in

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f S

ec
tio

n 
75

In
cl

ud
e 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
ac

ro
ss

 s
er

vi
ce

s
S

ar
a 

To
ug

h
30

th
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

9

In
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t o

f k
ey

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 e

.g
. s

ta
ff,

 m
an

ag
er

s,
 

sc
ho

ol
s

Le
ga

l c
ha

lle
ng

e 
w

ith
 la

rg
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 
co

st
s 

to
 b

e 
aw

ar
de

d
S

ig
ni

ng
 e

ve
nt

s 
to

 b
uy

 o
ut

 li
ab

ili
ty

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 s

us
pe

nd
ed

 d
ue

 to
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 c
as

e 
la

w
. A

pp
ea

l a
w

ai
te

d.

N
ew

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
te

m
 in

 p
la

ce
Ja

ck
 M

ar
ki

ew
ic

z
30

th
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

9

C
le

ar
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 w

ith
 a

ll 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 th

ro
ug

h 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
pl

an
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

m
an

ag
em

en
t t

ra
in

in
g

Ja
ck

 M
ar

ki
ew

ic
z

O
ng

oi
ng

 to
 A

pr
il 

20
10

P
ay

 a
nd

 g
ra

di
ng

 s
tru

ct
ur

e 
no

t f
it 

fo
r 

pu
rp

os
e

Fu
tu

re
 e

qu
al

 p
ay

 li
ab

ili
ty

 m
ou

nt
s 

up
 if

 
no

t t
ac

kl
ed

 n
ow

A
ll 

po
st

s 
re

-e
va

lu
at

ed
R

ob
us

t p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 to
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g 

pr
oc

es
se

s
Ja

ck
 M

ar
ki

ew
ic

z
O

ng
oi

ng
 to

 A
pr

il 
20

10

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 re
ac

h 
ag

re
em

en
t l

ea
di

ng
 to

 
de

la
y 

of
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 in

cr
ea

se
 o

f c
os

ts
N

ew
 p

ay
 li

ne
s 

de
vi

se
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d

E
xt

er
na

l /
in

de
pe

nd
en

t r
ev

ie
w

er
 T

M
S

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 to

 
re

vi
ew

 s
tru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
gu

id
an

ce
Ja

ck
 M

ar
ki

ew
ic

z
30

th
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
9

La
ck

 o
f c

ap
ac

ity
 o

f k
ey

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t t

ea
m

S
ta

ff 
m

or
al

e 
fa

lls
P

ro
je

ct
 re

al
ig

ne
d 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

d 
an

d 
ne

w
 ti

m
el

in
e 

in
 p

la
ce

Fi
na

nc
ia

l a
nd

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l p

re
ss

ur
es

A
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

60
0 

+ 
Jo

b 
E

va
lu

at
io

ns
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 w
ith

ou
t T

U
 

m
od

er
at

io
n 

an
d 

m
or

e 
w

ith
ou

t 
E

m
pl

oy
ee

 S
ig

n-
of

f

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t /

 A
dd

iti
on

al
 S

up
po

rt 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
vo

lu
m

e 
of

 J
ob

 R
e-

ev
al

ua
tio

ns
 &

 
A

pp
ea

ls
 e

xp
ec

te
d

TU
 in

vi
te

d 
on

 a
n 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
oc

ca
si

on
s 

to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 
ev

al
ua

tio
ns

.  

R
ev

ie
w

 S
up

po
rt 

M
od

el
 a

nd
 c

la
rif

y 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 m

ad
e 

in
 

de
te

rm
in

in
g 

th
e 

fin
al

 s
ha

pe
 o

f r
es

ou
rc

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 
su

pp
or

t i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 P

G
S

Ja
ck

 M
ar

ki
ew

ic
z

30
th

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

9

C
os

t E
nv

el
op

e,
 o

nc
e 

kn
ow

n,
 w

ill
 b

e 
di

sc
us

se
d 

w
ith

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 B
oa

rd
Ja

ck
 M

ar
ki

ew
ic

z
30

th
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
9

Fi
na

l s
ig

n-
of

f/v
al

id
at

io
n 

of
 P

G
S

 is
 n

ot
 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

tim
ef

ra
m

e/
sc

he
du

le
 d

ic
ta

te
d 

by
 th

e 
P

ro
je

ct
 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

tim
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 m

od
er

ni
sa

tio
n 

te
am

 to
 ta

ke
 

co
rr

ec
tiv

e 
ac

tio
n 

R
eg

ul
ar

 R
ev

ie
w

 s
et

 u
p 

to
 m

on
ito

r 
pr

og
re

ss
E

sc
al

at
e 

if 
D

ire
ct

or
at

es
 a

re
 n

on
-c

om
pl

ia
nt

A
gr

ee
 c

ut
-o

ff 
po

in
t.

Q
ue

rie
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 p
os

t c
ut

-o
ff 

to
 b

e 
re

so
lv

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
Ja

nu
ar

y.

Ja
ck

 M
ar

ki
ew

ic
z

31
st

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

0

V
ol

um
e 

of
 Q

ue
rie

s/
Is

su
es

 re
ce

iv
ed

 
fro

m
 fi

na
l s

ig
n-

of
f/v

al
id

at
io

n 
ca

nn
ot

 
be

 tr
an

sa
ct

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

tim
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t s

ch
ed

ul
e

S
ta

ff 
le

tte
rs

 m
ay

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

m
od

ifi
ed

 
po

st
 s

ub
m

is
si

on
 p

rio
r t

o 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
Ja

n 
- A

pr
il 

Ti
m

ef
ra

m
e 

- s
ig

ni
fic

an
t r

el
ia

nc
e 

on
 

re
so

ur
ce

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s

S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

en
ga

ge
d 

to
 

su
pp

or
t a

pp
ro

ac
h 

w
ith

 q
ue

rie
s

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 m
on

ito
r f

ee
db

ac
k

Ja
ck

 M
ar

ki
ew

ic
z

O
ng

oi
ng

 to
 A

pr
il 

20
10

In
du

st
ria

l a
ct

io
n

S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 m
an

ag
em

en
t w

ith
 

Tr
ad

e 
U

ni
on

s
C

on
tin

ue
 to

 m
on

ito
r (

P
ro

je
ct

 B
oa

rd
 a

gr
ee

d 
to

 to
le

ra
te

 
ris

k 
in

 c
ur

re
nt

 c
lim

at
e)

Ja
ck

 M
ar

ki
ew

ic
z

O
ng

oi
ng

 to
 A

pr
il 

20
10

Im
pa

ct
 o

f r
ec

es
si

on
 o

n 
To

w
n 

C
en

tre
 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

s 
a 

w
ho

le

S
w

in
do

n 
do

es
 n

ot
 d

ev
el

op
 in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tra
te

gy
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

gr
ee

m
en

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
fo

r 
of

fic
e 

le
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

n 
th

e 
To

w
n 

C
en

tre
 . 

C
ar

 p
ar

ki
ng

 c
ha

rg
es

 
re

du
ce

d 
fo

r r
un

 u
p 

to
 C

hr
is

tm
as

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
w

ith
 L

ea
d 

M
em

be
r a

nd
 L

ea
de

r o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il.
  P

la
ns

 to
 

re
co

nf
ig

ur
e 

th
e 

N
ew

 S
w

in
do

n 
C

om
pa

ny
 in

 h
an

d.

C
el

ia
 C

ar
rin

gt
on

1s
t A

pr
il 

20
10

A
bs

en
ce

 o
f S

tra
te

gi
c 

Fr
am

ew
or

k
E

D
A

 M
as

te
rp

la
n 

pr
od

uc
ed

"S
w

in
do

n 
C

an
" c

om
m

is
si

on
 d

ra
w

in
g 

to
 a

 c
lo

se
. I

t i
s 

he
lp

in
g 

to
 in

fo
rm

 "D
es

tin
at

io
n 

S
w

in
do

n"
.

B
ill

 C
ot

to
n

30
th

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

9

Tr
an

sp
or

t S
tra

te
gy

 a
pp

ro
ve

d
R

ec
es

si
on

 T
as

k 
Fo

rc
e 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 re
ce

ss
io

n 
im

pa
ct

.
B

ill
 C

ot
to

n
O

ng
oi

ng

C
ar

 p
ar

ki
ng

 c
ha

rg
es

 in
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 

an
d 

O
ld

 T
ow

n 
re

du
ce

d.

A
bi

lit
y 

to
 re

cr
ui

t a
nd

 re
ta

in
 k

ey
 s

ta
ff 

in
 a

ll 
ag

en
ci

es
C

hi
ld

 in
 c

om
m

un
ity

 c
om

es
 to

 h
ar

m
 

w
he

n 
it 

w
as

 a
vo

id
ab

le
C

le
ar

 m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

in
 p

la
ce

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t a

nd
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 re

m
un

er
at

io
n 

of
 s

oc
ia

l 
ca

re
 s

ta
ff 

an
d 

tra
in

in
g 

of
 tr

ai
ne

e 
he

al
th

 v
is

ito
rs

 is
 

co
nt

in
ua

lly
 re

vi
ew

ed

Je
an

 P
ol

la
rd

31
st

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
0

La
ck

 o
f c

ap
ac

ity
 a

nd
 v

ac
an

ci
es

 in
 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e,

 h
ea

lth
 v

is
iti

ng
S

oc
ia

l a
nd

 e
m

ot
io

na
l h

ea
lth

 s
uf

fe
rs

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
re

gi
m

e
O

ng
oi

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ar
in

g 
tra

in
in

g 
an

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n
S

ue
 W

al
d

O
ng

oi
ng

In
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
ki

ng
R

ep
ut

at
io

n 
da

m
ag

ed
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

sy
st

em
s 

in
 p

la
ce

S
ec

tio
n 

11
 A

ud
it 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nn

ua
lly

 a
cr

os
s 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
ci

es
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
B

oa
rd

 (L
S

C
B

)

Je
an

 P
ol

la
rd

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
9 

an
d 

on
go

in
g

La
ck

 o
f f

oc
us

 o
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sh
ar

in
g 

ac
ro

ss
 u

ni
ve

rs
al

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
ed

 
se

rv
ic

es

In
ab

ili
ty

 to
 re

cr
ui

t s
ta

ff
La

un
ch

 o
f q

ua
lit

y 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
ac

ro
ss

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
S

er
vi

ce
s,

 
bu

ild
in

g 
on

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
co

rp
or

at
e 

pa
re

nt
in

g

R
eg

ul
ar

 re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 u

pd
at

e 
of

 th
e 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
vi

a 
th

e 
LS

C
B

Jo
hn

 G
ilb

er
t/J

ea
n 

P
ol

la
rd

O
ng

oi
ng

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns

C
ou

nc
il 

se
en

 a
s 

fa
ill

in
g

M
ed

iu
m

M
ed

iu
m

4
2

4
2

M
ed

iu
m

C
R

12
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

ch
ild

re
n

V
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 
ar

e 
no

t s
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y

Jo
hn

 G
ilb

er
t

4
2

4
2

M
ed

iu
m

C
R

10
D

el
iv

er
y 

of
 S

in
gl

e 
S

ta
tu

s
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

S
in

gl
e 

S
ta

tu
s 

H
ite

sh
 P

at
el

 a
nd

 
Ja

ck
 M

ar
ki

ew
ic

z

C
R

11
G

ro
w

th
Fa

ilu
re

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 

S
w

in
do

n'
s 

vi
si

on
 

th
ro

ug
h 

ab
se

nc
e 

of
 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

to
 g

ui
de

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 in

 
co

rr
ec

t c
on

te
xt

C
el

ia
 C

ar
rin

gt
on

4
3

H
ig

h
4

2
M

ed
iu

m

Page 15



R
is

k 
R

ef
.

Li
nk

 to
 C

or
po

ra
te

 P
la

n,
 

Pr
om

is
e,

 P
ro

je
ct

 o
r w

id
er

 
ob

je
ct

iv
e

R
is

k
Tr

ig
ge

rs
/C

au
se

s
C

on
se

qu
en

ce
s/

Im
pa

ct
R

is
k 

O
w

ne
r(

s)
C

ur
re

nt
 c

on
tr

ol
s

Im
pa

ct
Li

ke
lih

oo
d

C
ur

re
nt

 
R

at
in

g 
(R

=I
*L

)
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n(

s)
O

w
ne

r o
f A

ct
io

n
Ta

rg
et

 D
at

e
Im

pa
ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

R
es

id
ua

l
R

at
in

g 
(R

=I
*L

)

U
np

re
ce

de
nt

ed
 d

em
an

d 
du

e 
to

 
re

ce
ss

io
n 

- h
ug

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 c
as

e 
an

d 
do

cu
m

en
t v

ol
um

e

N
ee

ds
 o

f S
w

in
do

n 
pe

op
le

 n
ot

 m
et

B
en

ef
its

 R
ec

ov
er

y 
P

la
n,

 P
ro

je
ct

  a
nd

 
B

oa
rd

 is
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 d
riv

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 b
eh

av
io

ur
s

S
co

pi
ng

 o
f n

ex
t p

ha
se

 o
f B

en
ef

its
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t
A

nd
re

a 
P

rit
ch

ar
d

30
th

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

9

In
su

ffi
ci

en
t s

ki
lle

d 
re

so
ur

ce
 w

ith
in

 
C

ap
ita

 to
 m

ee
t e

sc
al

at
in

g 
ca

se
 lo

ad
Ta

rg
et

s 
no

t a
ch

ie
ve

d
C

ap
ita

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

fo
r 

B
en

ef
its

 s
ta

ff 
lin

ke
d 

to
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
S

cr
un

ity
 o

f C
ap

ita
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e,
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 li

nk
ed

 
he

av
ily

 to
 a

cc
ur

ac
y

Ly
nn

 K
em

p
31

st
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9

C
lie

nt
 a

nd
 C

ap
ita

 te
am

 n
ot

 a
lig

ne
d 

on
 m

ea
su

re
s 

an
d 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 
pr

oc
es

si
ng

 S
pe

ed
 &

 Q
ua

lit
y 

R
ep

ut
at

io
n 

da
m

ag
ed

O
ne

 B
en

ef
its

 T
ea

m
 - 

jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 to
 

dr
iv

e 
be

st
 o

ut
co

m
es

 fo
r S

w
in

do
n 

pe
op

le

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
jo

in
t w

or
ki

ng
 e

.g
. t

hr
ou

gh
 jo

in
t 

m
ee

tin
gs

. H
ea

d 
of

 B
en

ef
its

 e
m

po
w

er
ed

 to
 ta

ke
 

op
er

at
io

na
l d

ec
is

io
ns

A
nd

re
a 

P
rit

ch
ar

d
31

st
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9

B
en

ef
its

 IT
 s

ys
te

m
s 

no
t r

el
ia

bl
e 

or
 

sl
ow

 
C

rit
ic

al
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

re
po

rts
 a

nd
 ra

tin
gs

 - 
tim

e 
w

as
te

d
S

ys
te

m
s 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
in

 p
la

ce
A

ni
te

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
su

es
 ra

is
ed

 d
ire

ct
ly

 w
ith

 C
ap

ita
 IT

. 
P

la
n 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 re

m
ed

y,
 th

is
 n

ow
 n

ee
ds

 c
lo

se
 

m
on

ito
rin

g

H
ite

sh
 P

at
el

31
st

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9

B
en

ef
its

 R
ec

ov
er

y 
pl

an
 is

 n
ot

 ro
bu

st
, 

de
liv

er
ab

le
s 

ar
e 

no
t q

ua
lit

y 
as

su
re

d 
&

 a
ll 

pa
rti

es
 n

ot
 b

ou
gh

t-i
n

N
o 

re
al

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

n 
th

e 
gr

ou
nd

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f a
nd

 s
cr

ut
in

y 
of

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 b
ei

ng
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ly
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

H
ite

sh
 P

at
el

31
st

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9

La
ck

 o
f r

is
k 

ba
se

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
se

cu
rit

y

R
ep

ut
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
da

m
ag

ed
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
S

ec
ur

ity
 F

or
um

 s
et

 u
p 

w
ith

 T
er

m
s 

of
 R

ef
er

en
ce

M
an

ag
em

en
t o

f t
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 p
la

n 
fo

r I
S

F 
Ja

ck
 M

ar
ki

ew
ic

z
31

st
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9

La
ck

 o
f c

or
po

ra
te

 s
tra

te
gy

 o
r 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
U

na
bl

e 
to

 m
ee

t s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
D

at
a 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

an
d 

FO
I p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
an

d 
of

fic
er

s 
in

 p
la

ce
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
cr

os
s 

se
rv

ic
es

Ja
ck

 M
ar

ki
ew

ic
z

31
st

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9

A
w

ar
en

es
s 

an
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 
is

su
es

 a
m

on
g 

st
af

f
P

ot
en

tia
l l

eg
al

 is
su

es
IC

T 
se

cu
rit

y 
sy

st
em

s
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

st
af

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pl

an
Ja

ck
 M

ar
ki

ew
ic

z
31

st
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9

M
ov

es
 to

 d
iff

er
en

t w
ay

s 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

In
cr

ea
se

d 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

ar
ou

nd
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

A
ct

iv
ity

 p
la

n 
fo

r I
S

F 
dr

aw
n 

up
 a

nd
 

ac
tio

ns
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 g

ro
up

 m
em

be
rs

 
fo

r i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

R
ob

us
tn

es
s 

of
 jo

in
t p

an
de

m
ic

 fl
u 

pl
an

s 
- e

xe
rc

is
in

g 
an

d 
te

st
in

g
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
P

C
T 

un
ab

le
 to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
cr

iti
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y
Jo

in
t p

an
de

m
ic

 fl
u 

pl
an

ni
ng

 in
 p

la
ce

 
w

ith
 P

C
T

O
ng

oi
ng

 te
st

in
g,

 e
xe

rc
is

in
g 

an
d 

st
re

ng
th

en
in

g 
of

 jo
in

t 
pl

an
s 

at
 a

ll 
co

m
m

an
d 

le
ve

ls
A

lis
ta

ir 
Ire

la
nd

/S
am

 
W

el
le

r
O

ng
oi

ng

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
rit

ic
al

 s
er

cv
ie

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il

O
ng

oi
ng

 re
vi

ew
 o

f c
rit

ic
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

S
w

in
do

n 
P

C
T

B
er

ni
e 

B
ra

nn
a/

A
lis

ta
ir 

Ire
la

nd
U

pd
at

ed
 o

n 
an

 
on

go
in

g 
ba

si
s

Ti
m

es
ca

le
s,

 m
ap

pi
ng

 h
ot

sp
ot

s 
an

d 
co

ur
se

 o
f p

an
de

m
ic

/e
pi

de
m

ic
S

w
in

do
n 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ne

ed
s 

ar
e 

no
t m

et
Jo

in
t A

C
P

 m
ee

tin
gs

 h
el

d
C

on
tin

uo
us

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 lo
ca

l a
nd

 re
gi

on
al

 d
is

ea
se

 
in

ci
de

nc
e 

Je
nn

y 
H

ar
rie

s
O

ng
oi

ng

In
su

ffi
ci

en
t e

ng
ag

em
en

t f
ro

m
 w

ith
in

 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
B

C
T 

m
ee

tin
g 

w
ee

kl
y 

an
d 

se
nd

in
g 

up
da

te
 to

 C
or

po
ra

te
 B

oa
rd

R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

re
 n

ot
 a

lig
ne

d 
be

hi
nd

 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

th
e 

si
tu

at
io

na
l n

ee
ds

Li
nk

ed
 p

la
ns

 a
cr

os
s 

LR
F 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ho

sp
ita

l a
nd

 P
C

T 
im

pr
ov

ed

R
ob

us
tn

es
s 

of
 B

us
in

es
s 

C
on

tin
ui

ty
 

P
la

ns
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
P

C
T 

un
ab

le
 to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
cr

iti
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y
M

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 s

itu
at

io
n

G
re

at
 W

es
te

rn
 C

rit
ic

al
 C

ar
e 

re
sp

on
se

 p
la

n 
be

in
g 

re
vi

ew
ed

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
po

ss
ib

le
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

w
id

er
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
se

rv
ic

es

Je
nn

y 
H

ar
rie

s
O

ng
oi

ng

Ti
m

es
ca

le
s,

 m
ap

pi
ng

 h
ot

sp
ot

s 
an

d 
co

ur
se

 o
f p

an
de

m
ic

/e
pi

de
m

ic
S

w
in

do
n 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ne

ed
s 

ar
e 

no
t m

et
C

rit
ic

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

m
ap

pe
d 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il

P
rio

rit
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
re

so
ur

ce
d 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 

ou
tb

re
ak

.  
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 s

ta
ff 

se
co

nd
ed

 to
 p

rio
rit

y 
ar

ea
s 

w
he

n 
re

qu
ire

d.

B
er

ni
e 

B
ra

nn
an

O
ng

oi
ng

Lo
ss

 o
f i

nc
om

e
4

2
M

ed
iu

m

Je
nn

y 
H

ar
rie

s 
an

d 
B

er
ni

e 
B

ra
nn

an

4
3

H
ig

h

C
R

15
b

P
an

de
m

ic
 F

lu
 o

ut
br

ea
k

S
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y 
is

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 

im
pa

ct
ed

 b
y 

sw
in

e 
flu

3
3

M
ed

iu
m

H
ite

sh
 P

at
el

3
4

H
ig

h

C
R

13
B

en
ef

its
 S

er
vi

ce
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 
B

en
ef

its
 S

er
vi

ce
 

do
es

 a
ch

ie
ve

 s
te

p 
ch

an
ge

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t i
n 

te
rm

s 
of

 ti
m

e 
ta

ke
n 

to
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 

ac
cu

ra
cy

C
R

14
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
se

cu
rit

y
S

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

/o
r 

se
cu

rit
y 

in
ci

de
nt

 
oc

cu
rs

H
ite

sh
 P

at
el

3
3

M
ed

iu
m

3
3

M
ed

iu
m

C
R

15
a

P
an

de
m

ic
 F

lu
 o

ut
br

ea
k

Jo
in

t r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 
sw

in
e 

flu
 is

 n
ot

 fu
lly

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e

Je
nn

y 
H

ar
rie

s

4
2

M
ed

iu
m

4
2

M
ed

iu
m

Page 16



Work undertaken by other Committees  
 

Audit Committee  26 January 2010 
 

 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nick Hobbs on 
01793 463940 or Email nhobbs@swindon.gov.uk 

 
Author: Head of Internal Audit 
 
Parish / Wards Affected: All 
 

 

Purpose 
 
To invite the Audit Committee to consider how it might best be kept advised of “work 
undertaken by other Committees of the Council, so it can take account of any 
significant control issues”. 
 

 
 

Recommendation 
 

That Audit Committee  

• considers how best to facilitate its continued awareness of work 
undertaken by other committees and allow it to identify any significant 
control issues for further review and investigation; and  

• determines whether it wishes to pursue either of the options set out in this 
report. 

 
 
1. Reasons 
 

1.1 The Council’s Audit Committee has a strategic role to ensure that the 
Council’s assurance framework is operating effectively. To this end it 
should seek assurance that key areas that contribute to this framework 
are operating properly. 

 
1.2 Other committees of the Council can contribute to the Council’s assurance 

framework, therefore, it is essential that this Committee take account of 
any significant control issues identified by other committees.  
 

2. Detail 
 
2.1 The recognition by Audit Committees that other committees of the Council 

can contribute to its assurance framework, and the importance of them 
taking account of any significant control issues identified by other 
committees, is identified as good practice and features in the Use of 
Resources Assessment theme: Internal Control (KLOE 2.4).  
 

2.2 Members of the Audit Committee already receive copies of the minutes of 
Scrutiny and Overview committees and Standards Committee as part of 
the papers for Full Council, however, it is suggested that the Committee 
needs to be more proactive in reviewing the work of other committees to 
identify any potential significant control issues arising from these 

Agenda Item 7

Page 17



Work undertaken by other Committees  
 

Audit Committee  26 January 2010 
 

 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nick Hobbs on 
01793 463940 or Email nhobbs@swindon.gov.uk 

committees. 
 

2.3 To achieve this, and comply with recognised best practice, the Committee 
is invited to consider one of the following two options: 

 
• that Council be requested to consider whether the Chair of the Audit 

Committee be appointed as a member of the Council’s Scrutiny 
Committee in order that the Chair can report back to Audit Committee 
on any significant control issues for further review and investigation; 
and/or 

 
• that the reports to Council on the meetings of its Scrutiny and 

Standards Committees, and its Overview and Scrutiny Committees, be 
submitted to this Committee for consideration in order that members 
themselves might  review the work of other committees and identify 
any significant control issues arising from these committees. 
 

2.4 In addition to considering how the Committee might effectively monitor the 
work of other committees, and identify and take account of any significant 
control issues, members are also invited to advise the meeting of any 
current issues that they feel warrant a greater level of review.  

 
2.5 Members are advised that, given the recent level of debate on the issue, 

the Chair has suggested that the Committee might wish to consider 
whether the Council’s decision to enter into a partnership arrangement 
with Digital City (UK) Limited to implement a Wi-Fi network in the Borough 
is a matter they might wish to review.     
 
 

Alternative Options 
No specific alternatives are suggested other than as mentioned in the report. 
 

 

Risk Management  
 
Financial and Procurement Implications 
• There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
  
Legal / Human Rights Implications 
• There are no direct legal or human rights implications. 
 
Links to Corporate Plans and Policies (in particular to Swindon 2010 Promises) 

• Effective systems of internal control within the Council will help to ensure that the 
objectives set out in the Corporate Plan and Swindon 2010 are achieved. 

 
 
 

Page 18



Work undertaken by other Committees  
 

Audit Committee  26 January 2010 
 

 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nick Hobbs on 
01793 463940 or Email nhobbs@swindon.gov.uk 

 
Consultees 
• The Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) and Director of Law and Democratic 

Services (Monitoring Officer) are consulted in respect of all reports). 
 
 
Background Papers and Appendices 
• None 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 
Report of Scrutiny and Overview Committees 

held between 25 October 2009 and 18 December 2009 
 

COUNCIL                                                                                    Date 14 January 2009 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from 

 Ian Willcox, Committee and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463601or Email 
iwillcox@swindon.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose 
• To report issues considered by the Scrutiny Committee, the Health Scrutiny 

Committee and the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committees, between 25 
October 2009 and 18 December 2009 and, where appropriate, to report on the 
outcome of their deliberations. 

 

Minutes for Confirmation and Recommendation 
• To note the proceedings of the Scrutiny Committee, Health Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee and Overview and Scrutiny Committees held since the 
last meeting of the Council.  

• There are no minutes of the Scrutiny Committee, Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee or Overview and Scrutiny Committees requiring the 
confirmation of the Council. 

 
1. SCRUTINY COMMITTEE       
1.1 Meeting of 26th October 2009: 
a) Consideration of Cabinet Decisions 
 
The Director of Law and Democratic Services submitted a report introducing decisions 
arising from the Cabinet meeting held on 21st October 2009. 
 
49. Outcome of Pre-Statutory Consultation on school places in Highworth 
 
The Committee resolved: 
(1) That Minute 49 of the Cabinet be noted and accepted and that the Cabinet 

Member’s assurances, that the feedback from parents and local residents as a 
result of the statutory consultation will be taken into consideration by the 
Cabinet Panel in reaching its decision, be welcomed. 

(2) That it be noted that the decision of the Cabinet Panel on this issue would be 
submitted to the Scrutiny Committee for consideration, providing Members with 
the opportunity to seek their own assurance that due consideration had been 
given to the views and opinions of local residents. 

(3)  That it be noted that, in conjunction with the statutory consultation exercise, a 
detailed assessment would be made of traffic management in the area of the 
schools and safe routes for pupils travelling from Northview to Westrop would 
be identified. 

   
53. Active Swindon Strategy 

Page 21



APPENDIX 1 
Report of Scrutiny and Overview Committees 

held between 25 October 2009 and 18 December 2009 
 

COUNCIL                                                                                    Date 14 January 2009 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from 

 Ian Willcox, Committee and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463601or Email 
iwillcox@swindon.gov.uk 

 

 
Councillor Justin Tomlinson welcomed the report to Cabinet but referred to the 
importance to the Active Swindon Strategy of ensuring that adequate open space 
provision is made within new development in the town to accommodate physical 
activity away from the organised environment. He emphasised the important role to be 
played by the Group Director, Environment, Regeneration and Community in the 
development of the Active Swindon Strategy.  The Group Director welcomed 
Councillor Tomlinson's comments and agreed that these would be taken on board in 
developing the strategy.  
 
b) Cabinet Member Question and Answer session 
 
Councillor Fionuala Foley was in attendance to respond to members’ questions on 
issues within her portfolio of responsibility.  The following issues were raised by 
members: 

• the performance of the Capita Contract in relation to the customer services 
elements falling within the Cabinet Member’s remit 

• the transformation of the Council's Streetsmart Division and the excellent 
standard of service that was being provided 

• the success of the plastic re-cycling service 
• prosecutions for graffiti offences 
• the Restorative Justice pilot scheme in West Swindon in partnership with the 

Police 
• the Council's Section 215 powers to remove graffiti 
• the effect of the Council's recycling strategy on the incidence of fly tipping  
• the ability of the Council to require private owners to properly maintain the 

immediate environment of their property 
• the refurbishment of the public conveniences in Victoria Road 
• improvements made to the monthly reporting of complaints data to Senior 

Managers and Councillors and the availability of this information for members 
• the removal of abandoned motor vehicles 
• the success of the public forums held in advance of Cabinet Meetings 
• the possibility of the Council offering a recycling service to schools and the 

possibility of including hospitals and businesses within local authorities’ 
recycling schemes 

• the promotion of the Council’s cable stripping and recycling facility 
• the Council's target of recycling more than 50% of household waste and 

measures that were being taken to both achieve and maintain this level of 
recycling 

• the failure of the Council to implement its agreed practice of refusing to collect 
from bins that were filled beyond capacity (i.e. where the lid would not close) 

• the Council’s failure to implement recommendations of the Task Group 
established to review the provision of public conveniences in the town 

Page 22



APPENDIX 1 
Report of Scrutiny and Overview Committees 

held between 25 October 2009 and 18 December 2009 
 

COUNCIL                                                                                    Date 14 January 2009 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from 

 Ian Willcox, Committee and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463601or Email 
iwillcox@swindon.gov.uk 

 

• Promise 23 and the likelihood that the final phase of the Shaw Park Forest 
would be completed on target 

  
In the final part of the meeting, the Deputy Leader introduced the newly produced 
“Corporate Complaints Report”, copies of which were tabled at the meeting. The 
report provided statistical information in relation to the volume of complaints received 
by the Council over the period September 2008 to September 2009, sorted by 
complaints received by each service directorate and by Capita and SCS. It was 
specifically noted that complaints received regarding streetsmart issues were included 
in the Environment, Regeneration and Community Directorate statistics. The 
Committee was also asked to note that whilst this report provided a corporate level 
perspective of complaints received, more detailed analyses would be available to 
Directors and Heads of Service to assist in the identification of problem areas.  
 
The Committee resolved: 
 
(1)  That it be noted that all cables deposited at the Waste Recycling Centre are 

separated and stripped and that the volumes involved keep the existing 
machinery operating at capacity. That the Head of Streetsmart pursue with SCS 
whether there was a business case to be made for the acquisition of a second 
cable-stripping device.   

(2)  That it be noted that the Deputy Leader was hopeful that the 50% recycling 
target would be achieved once the Council had addressed the issue of 
additional wheelie bins previously provided for individual properties in West 
Swindon and this policy was subsequently applied throughout the Borough. 

(3)  That it be noted that a contract had now been placed with Swindon Commercial 
Services for the refurbishment of the public conveniences in Victoria Road and 
that it was anticipated that the work would be completed in advance of the 
turning on of the Old Town Christmas Lights.  

(4)  That the Deputy Leader be asked to reconsider the recommendations of the 
Task Group established to review the provision of public conveniences in the 
town and to report to a future meeting on how these might be appropriately 
progressed. 

(5)  That it be noted that the new Corporate Complaints report would be regularly 
submitted to Cabinet for consideration and therefore Scrutiny Committee would 
also have the opportunity to consider the data. 

 
1.2 Meeting of 23 November 2009: 
 
a) Consideration of Cabinet Decisions 
 
The Director of Law and Democratic Services submitted a report introducing decisions 
arising from the Cabinet meeting held on 18 November 2009. 
 

Page 23



APPENDIX 1 
Report of Scrutiny and Overview Committees 

held between 25 October 2009 and 18 December 2009 
 

COUNCIL                                                                                    Date 14 January 2009 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from 

 Ian Willcox, Committee and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463601or Email 
iwillcox@swindon.gov.uk 

 

59. Budget Strategy 2010/2011 – 2013/14 
 
Councillor Mark Edwards, the Cabinet Member for Resources, was in attendance and 
responded to members’ questions on a number of issues concerning the Council’s 
current and projected budgetary position. Councillor Edwards advised that the 
identified budget gap was not the result of poor management but the result of years of 
under funding by Central Government, a situation that had been exacerbated due to 
the recession and consequent increasing costs and reduced income. Councillor 
Edwards added that Swindon did not receive a great deal from the Government 
funding formula and, with increasing demographic and other pressures on the budget, 
he did not anticipate that the situation would get any easier. However, he advised the 
meeting that, despite the budgetary position, he was confident that the Council would 
deliver a fair and affordable Council Tax rate for the people of Swindon.   
 
The following matters were raised by members during their consideration of Cabinet 
Minute 59: 
 

• the validity of some of the cost projections detailed in the report  
• the level of debt charges resulting from a reduced Capital Programme  
• the cost of "other inflation" of £10.6m and the 1.2% increase in staff pay 
• the projected reduction in the Council Tax base 
• the projected rate of recovery of Council Tax payments 
• the administration’s medium term resourcing plan and the Cabinet Member’s  

confidence that the Council would be able to deliver a fair and affordable 
Council Tax  

• the financial implications and liability of the Council in relation to the Borough-
wide Internet Project 

o the timeframe for the project 
• the growing cost of Adult Social Care provision  

o the reasons behind the significant overspend in recent years in Social 
Services.   

• the changing demographic of the borough and the use of Housing Associations 
and Housing Corporation Funding to off set the direct cost to the Council of the 
provision of residential care 

• the major impact on the Adult Social Care Budget as the result of  the provision 
of care packages for only a few individuals 

• the Council's approach to addressing the identified budget gap 
• transformational change and the New Ways of Working 

 
The Committee resolved that Minute 59 of the Cabinet be accepted.  

 

Page 24



APPENDIX 1 
Report of Scrutiny and Overview Committees 

held between 25 October 2009 and 18 December 2009 
 

COUNCIL                                                                                    Date 14 January 2009 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from 

 Ian Willcox, Committee and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463601or Email 
iwillcox@swindon.gov.uk 

 

Minute 60 – Single Status 
 
Councillor Keith Williams, the Cabinet Member for Leisure & Corporate Services, was 
in attendance and responded to members’ questions on a number of issues 
concerning Swindon Single Status. 
 
Councillor Williams advised that, under Single Status, 23% of staff would see a 
reduction in their pay, 20% would see an increase and the remainder would remain 
the same.  He agreed that, obviously, some people would be upset with the results of 
the Single Status project but he felt it was a necessary measure that had been 
introduced fairly and would result in a scheme that was equality proofed and would 
see a significant reduction in the differential in pay grade between male and female 
members of staff. 
 
The following matters were raised by members during their consideration of Cabinet 
Minute 60: 
 

• the reasons for not solely using that the NJC Pay Line, the unions’ preferred 
option 

• the Council’s decision to move away from national agreements  
• the percentage of staff represented by Unions and measures to ensure that the 

views of non-union represented employees had been sought as part of the 
consultation process 

• the cost of Single Status for schools and whether schools would be able to opt 
out of the arrangements 

• the availability of the TMS Report for inspection by members 
• the likely impact of Single Status on employee relations 
• the lack of any Government support for employees who were detrimentally 

affected by Single Status 
• the appeals process and the situation of employees detrimentally affected by 

Single Status who might refuse to sign a new contract of employment 
• the Council’s commitment to protecting pay levels of employees detrimentally 

affected by Single Status until April 2011  
• Pension and Redundancy Protection  

 
The Committee resolved that Minute 60 of the Cabinet be accepted and that copies of 
the full TMS report be made available to Scrutiny Committee Members on request.  
 
Minute 61- School Organisation – Primary School Places 
 
In response to a comment by the Chair, that the proposals might lead to continued 
teaching in temporary buildings, in contravention of the Swindon 2010 Promise, 
Councillor Perkins responded that the Promise related to the removal of all unsuitable 
temporary buildings by the end of 2010 and that, in fact, of these, some 97% had 

Page 25



APPENDIX 1 
Report of Scrutiny and Overview Committees 

held between 25 October 2009 and 18 December 2009 
 

COUNCIL                                                                                    Date 14 January 2009 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from 

 Ian Willcox, Committee and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463601or Email 
iwillcox@swindon.gov.uk 

 

already been removed. He acknowledged that some temporary buildings in use at the 
moment, such as those at Oakhurst, but these were of a high standard, representing a 
valuable resource for the schools concerned, and would continue to be used until 
permanent accommodation could be provided.  
 
In response to a question by Councillors Eric Shaw regarding the provision of an 
additional two temporary buildings at Croft, Councillor Perkins advised that it had been 
anticipated that the demand for places in the Old Town area in advance of the 
completion of East Wichel would be met by Central schools but that, due to the influx 
of new families into the Central area and a higher than anticipated number of primary 
aged children, there was no longer the surplus capacity in the Central area and this 
situation had necessitated the provision of the temporary buildings at Croft.   
 
Councillor Justin Tomlinson commented on factors which had detrimentally affected 
the Council's ability to accurately forecast school admission figures, particularly in 
relation to the high occupancy of new built properties by young families with primary 
school aged children which he felt had resulted in an increase in the number of 
primary school places that would be required.  Councillor Perkins agreed that the 
prediction formula might have to be changed to address the changing demographic. 
 
The Committee resolved that Minute 61 of the Cabinet be accepted. 
 
b) Cabinet Member Question and Answer Session 

 
Councillor Peter Greenhalgh, Cabinet Member for Sustainability, Transport and 
Strategic Planning was in attendance to respond to members’ questions on issues 
within his portfolio of responsibility.  The following issues were raised by members: 
 

• the reasons for the current “red” status of Promise 44 (“We will complete the 
Swindon Urban Cycle Network and introduce secure parking facilities for cycles 
at key points“) and measures being taken to ensure the delivery of this promise 

• the contributory factors behind the current “red” status of Promise 50a 
(“Through better safety initiatives on the roads we control, we will reduce the 
number of people killed or seriously injured on the roads by 40%“) and 
measures being taken to deliver against this promise 

• the analysis local road safety data following the removal of speed cameras 
• the level of former “speed camera” financial resources and the “refocusing” of 

these resources to deliver new road safety initiatives 
• the possibility of introducing a pedestrian “signalised” crossing as part of the 

Drove Road safety improvements 
• the need for improvements to road signage across the borough, particularly in 

the rural areas 
• the Eastern Development Area Land Use Plan 

Page 26



APPENDIX 1 
Report of Scrutiny and Overview Committees 

held between 25 October 2009 and 18 December 2009 
 

COUNCIL                                                                                    Date 14 January 2009 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from 

 Ian Willcox, Committee and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463601or Email 
iwillcox@swindon.gov.uk 

 

• the strategic importance to Swindon of the Meads Way Relief Road and the 
need to continue to make the case to Central Government for its provision 

• the current status of the Bruce Street Bridge re-design work 
 

The Chair thanked Councillor Greenhalgh for attending the meeting and for his full and 
open responses to Members' questions on service areas and issues within his 
portfolio of responsibility. 
 
1.3 Meeting of 14 December 2009: 
 
a) Consideration of Cabinet Decisions 
 
The Director of Law and Democratic Services submitted a report introducing decisions 
arising from the Cabinet meeting held on 9 December 2009. 
 
65. Revenue Budget Management 2009/10 
 
At the invitation of the Chair, the Cabinet Member outlined the reasons for the 
Councils difficult financial position, its continuing under-funding by central government 
and a significant reduction in income due to the current economic situation at a time 
when expenditure levels were increasing.  He confirmed that the budget was under 
constant scrutiny and that the process for managing the budget was working very 
effectively.  The Leader of the Council commented that there was not a £12m 
overspend, as the Chair indicated, but, rather, this was an ongoing budget gap 
resulting from the cost pressures that included inflation, pay settlements, and 
additional contributions to the Local Government Pension Scheme.  
 
66.  Capital Programme Monitoring 
 
In response to a question by Councillor Des Moffatt, regarding the Council’s 
investment portfolio, the Director of Finance advised that, currently, the Council was a 
“net holder” of assets.  In response to a further point by Councillor Moffatt, the Director 
of Finance confirmed that decisions regarding investments were made in accordance 
with the Council’s treasury management policy. 
 
The Chair asked for some further detail on the projected additional income for the 
Council through the use of its assets for advertising and through greater use of its 
leisure assets. Councillor Keith Williams explained that an increase in revenue of at 
least £144,000 was anticipated as a result of work with an external agency to develop 
ways in which the Council might increase usage of its leisure facilities. It was agreed 
that a written response be provided regarding the potential increase in revenue 
through utilising the Council’s assets for advertising purposes. 
 

Page 27



APPENDIX 1 
Report of Scrutiny and Overview Committees 

held between 25 October 2009 and 18 December 2009 
 

COUNCIL                                                                                    Date 14 January 2009 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from 

 Ian Willcox, Committee and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463601or Email 
iwillcox@swindon.gov.uk 

 

Councillor Nick Martin raised the issue of projected savings in relation to street lighting 
and highlighted the potential danger of removing street lighting in areas where there 
are no footways or cycle paths, suggesting that some sections of these roads were 
still used by pedestrians and that they may be put at risk by this proposal.  Councillor 
Peter Greenhalgh responded that pedestrians should not be walking along the 
carriageway and that it was difficult to legislate for that kind of behaviour. He 
continued, briefly summarising the anticipated savings in the initial year following 
removal and projected savings thereafter.  He confirmed that under no circumstances 
would street lighting be turned off in areas where there was a potential safety risk. 
 
In response to comments by members, the Leader of the Council agreed that written 
responses be provided regarding the Cabinet decision to remove provision within the 
budget for the evening cleaning of the town centre. He also agreed that the Chair be 
briefed at the earliest opportunity on proposals to relocate the Registry Office within 
the Civic Office complex. 
 
Councillor Glenn Smith referred to the increasing level of Landfill Tax and asked 
whether this might be reduced as a result of the Councils recycling efforts.  The 
Deputy Chief Executive confirmed that the Landfill Tax level was increasing year on 
year but it had to be recognised that the Borough was continuing to grow. She added 
that the recycling rate was also growing, up to around 48% at present, and that work 
would continue to improve recycling rates and to reduce the amount of landfill that was 
necessary. 
 
Councillor Smith asked whether the introduction of a charge for staff and school 
governors for the Swindoncard had seen a decrease in the uptake of the cards.  
Councillor Keith Williams responded that there had been a slight decline but this 
seemed to relate mainly to individuals who did not actually use their Swindoncard. 
 
Councillor Stan Pajak referred to a study by Capita of the issue of transport for 
schools and suggested that cuts in special schools transport might provide savings 
that could be used to fund Dial-a-Ride and that it might even be possible to utilise the 
Dial-a-Ride service for the provision of some special school transport needs.  
Councillor Garry Perkins confirmed that a study was being undertaken of schools 
transport to provide better value for money, including the possibility of utilising different 
transport providers, and that a report on the outcome of the study would be submitted 
to Cabinet in the near future, in advance of the budget being set for 2010/11.  
 
69. Annual Performance Assessment of Adult Social Care 2008/2009 
 
In response to a question by the Chair regarding the cost effectiveness of the 
Council’s Adult Care Services, Councillor David Renard, the Cabinet Member for 
Health, Housing and Adult Social Care, replied that he felt the service was cost 
effective. However, he emphasised that there was a growing demand for services and 

Page 28



APPENDIX 1 
Report of Scrutiny and Overview Committees 

held between 25 October 2009 and 18 December 2009 
 

COUNCIL                                                                                    Date 14 January 2009 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from 

 Ian Willcox, Committee and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463601or Email 
iwillcox@swindon.gov.uk 

 

agreed with the Inspectors’ report that there were areas that required further 
transformation.  The Chair asked if the overall rating would have been achieved 
without the identified overspend.  Councillor Renard acknowledged that there had 
been an overspend on that years budget for Adult Social Care but commented that the 
Council did not receive enough funding from central government to meet the increase 
in demand for services and that balancing this budget would remain a problem for 
some years to come.  He felt it had been necessary for the Council to commit this 
level of funding to Adult Social Care to achieve the assessment rating that it had, the 
service having improved “from being one of the worst in the country to become the 
third best in the region”. 
 
75. Final Business Case For The Creation Of Swindon Commercial Services As An 

Arms Length Company 
  
In response to a question by Councillor Des Moffatt regarding the monitoring of the 
performance of SCS as an arms length company, and the suggestion that quarterly 
progress reports be made to the Chief Executive, the Leader of the Council and the 
Leader of the main Opposition Party, the Director of Law and Democratic Services 
agreed to raise the matter of the reporting arrangements with SCS to ensure that an 
appropriate framework of accountability is set out in the memorandum of 
understanding and supporting documentation between the Council and SCS. 
 
The Committee resolved: 
 
(1)  The minutes of the Meeting of the Cabinet held on 9th December 2009 be 

accepted. 
(2)  That the Leader of the Council provide a written response, to be copied to all 

members of the Scrutiny, on the potential increase in revenue through utilising 
the Council’s assets for advertising purposes. 

(3)  That the Leader of the Council provide a written response, to be copied to all 
members of the Scrutiny, regarding the Cabinet decision to remove provision 
within the budget for the evening cleaning of the town centre.  

(4)  That a briefing be arranged for the Chair of Scrutiny Committee, at the earliest 
opportunity, on proposals to relocate the Registry Office within the Civic Office 
complex. 

 
b) Provision of a Loan to Digital City (UK) Limited for the purposes of Establishing 

a Wi Fi Network across the Borough of Swindon 
 
The Chair referred to concerns that he had, and that had been expressed to him, 
regarding the proposed Wi-Fi network, particularly in relation to the process by which 
the decision to proceed had been reached and whether the Council’s decision making 
protocol had been adhered to. He was concerned that the Scrutiny Committee or, 
indeed, anyone other than Cabinet members had been consulted regarding the 

Page 29



APPENDIX 1 
Report of Scrutiny and Overview Committees 

held between 25 October 2009 and 18 December 2009 
 

COUNCIL                                                                                    Date 14 January 2009 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from 

 Ian Willcox, Committee and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463601or Email 
iwillcox@swindon.gov.uk 

 

proposal and sought confirmation that the decision to proceed had been made under 
appropriate delegated authority.  
 
Councillor Rod Bluh, the Leader of the Council, responded that, in the current 
economic climate, the Council had to be prepared to pursue this type of commercial 
investment to secure new revenue streams. He commented that the current funding 
model for local authorities was not sustainable and that other models of funding had to 
be explored if the Council was to avoid insolvency and continue to provide quality 
services for its residents.  Councillor Bluh felt that it was essential that the Council 
investigated commercial opportunities as they arose and that such decisions had to be 
made within a realistic commercial setting.  He confirmed that the decision to proceed 
with this scheme had been made by officers under delegated authority, as authorised 
at the Cabinet Meeting on 23rd July 2008. 
 
The Chair maintained that most councillors had been unaware of this decision before 
the recent announcement of the implementation of the scheme and he felt that the use 
of £450,000 of public money in support of a deal with the private sector presented a 
significant risk.  He asked whether it was appropriate that this matter had not been 
debated by a larger forum of Councillors. The Leader of the Council concurred that 
any commercial venture generally involved some level of risk, however, he maintained 
that the business case presented by Digital City had been thoroughly investigated and 
discussed and it had ultimately been determined to be a sound commercial venture 
and one that addressed other priorities, including social inclusion.  The Leader of the 
Council assured the meeting that the decision had been made in accordance with 
Council policy and that consideration had been given to the level of consultation that 
might be undertaken in respect of the proposal but it was felt that the issue was one of 
competitive advantage, to make money for the taxpayers of Swindon, and that debate 
of the matter in a open forum would have increased the commercial risk.   
 
The Chair invited members to put questions to the Leader of the Council, and the 
other Cabinet Members present, on the issue of the loan to Digital City (UK) Limited 
for the purposes of establishing a Wi-Fi network across the borough. Topics raised by 
members included: 
 

• the failure of a similar scheme in Norwich 
• the concept of partnerships between a local authority and a private sector 

companies 
• the possibility of entering into an agreement for the provision of a wi-fi network 

with partners other than Digital City 
• the decision of Cabinet at his meeting on 23rd July 2008 as the authority for 

entering into an agreement with Digital City 
• the role and responsibility of the Council’s Section 151 officer to re-invest the 

Councils surpluses in risk free investments 

Page 30



APPENDIX 1 
Report of Scrutiny and Overview Committees 

held between 25 October 2009 and 18 December 2009 
 

COUNCIL                                                                                    Date 14 January 2009 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from 

 Ian Willcox, Committee and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463601or Email 
iwillcox@swindon.gov.uk 

 

• the role of the Performance Advisory Group and whether it should have been 
consulted regarding the Wi-Fi network proposal 

• the unique nature of this proposal, the officers’ analysis of the business case, 
and their confidence that the projected business levels would be met 

• the reasons for not pursuing an earlier approach made by BT regarding a 
similar scheme 

• the accommodation offered to Digital City and the assessment that this 
accommodation was “of no commercial value” 

• data available regarding the take-up of a Wi-Fi scheme in Glastonbury and the 
validity of extrapolating that data to provide a comparative assessment of 
Digital City's business case 

• the launch of the project in Highworth and the second phase "role out" in 
Central area 

• broadband access as a major political issue and recognition of the importance 
of broadband accessibility for businesses in the South West Region 

• the Government’s “Digital Britain” imperative and the delivery of broadband 
access before its target of 2017 

• the Council's investment in this scheme and people's concern that budgets 
elsewhere were having to be reduced to accommodate that investment 

• Digital City as a new business entity and its experience of this kind of 
commercial venture 

 
The Leader of the Council concluded the debate by commenting that he had no 
hesitation in saying that this action was being taken wholly in the interests of the 
Council and the residents of the Borough.  He acknowledged that the decision to 
proceed was a “judgement call” by himself and the Cabinet and that it was Scrutiny's 
role to determine whether or not they had acted appropriately and within their 
delegated authority.  Whilst he recognised members' concerns about the level of 
information made available to them regarding this venture, he hoped they would 
recognise that this had proven essential in order to maintain the commercial viability of 
the proposal. 
 
The Chair thanked the Leader of the Council and the other Cabinet Members present, 
for their comments. The Director of Law and Democratic Services asked the 
Committee to confirm whether, having considered the matter, it was satisfied that due 
process had been followed by the Cabinet in reaching its decision to enter into a 
partnership agreement with Digital City (UK) Limited for the purposes of establishing a 
Wi-Fi network across the Borough of Swindon.  
 
The Committee resolved that it was satisfied that due process has been followed by 
the Council in reaching the decision to enter into a partnership agreement with Digital 
City (UK) Limited for the purposes of establishing a Wi-Fi network across the Borough 
of Swindon.   
 

Page 31



APPENDIX 1 
Report of Scrutiny and Overview Committees 

held between 25 October 2009 and 18 December 2009 
 

COUNCIL                                                                                    Date 14 January 2009 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from 

 Ian Willcox, Committee and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463601or Email 
iwillcox@swindon.gov.uk 

 

(Councillors Derique Montaut and Des Moffatt asked that their vote against the above 
Resolution be recorded in the Minutes).   
 
c) Cabinet Member Question and Answer Session - Cabinet Member for Health, 

Housing and Adult Social Care 
 
Councillor David Renard, Cabinet Member for Health, Housing and Adult Social Care 
was in attendance and responded to members’ questions on issues within his portfolio 
of responsibility.  The following issues were raised by members: 
  

• the Maple Court Extracare facility and progress with the Council’s programme 
for the modernisation of its care homes 

• the Whitbourne specialist centre for dementia and proposals to turn Fessey 
House into a second dementia care facility 

• the development of the Hawthorns Respite Care Centre and possibilities the 
development of the remainder of that site 

• the commissioning of Dial-A-Ride and other transport service providers by Adult 
Social Care and the impact of a reduced Dial-A-Ride service on the continuing 
viability of the Council’s drop-in centres 

• the impact of the economic recession on the continuing viability of Enterprise 
Works 
o Energy II Supported Work Programme 

• improvements in Adult Social Care and the effect of the positive result of the 
Government Inspection on staff morale 

• the current status of Promise 42 (“We will create opportunities for low cost 
home ownership by building an average of 300 affordable homes each year. 
Priority will be given to Swindon’s key workers and local residents and we will 
also encourage shared equity schemes“) and the likelihood that this promise 
will be achieved within the given time period 

 
The Chair thanked Councillor Renard for attending the meeting and for his full and 
open responses to Members' questions on service areas and issues within his 
portfolio of responsibility. 
 
2. HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
2.1 Meeting of 18th November 2009 
 
a) The need for radiotherapy services for the Swindon population 

 
The Committee received a report setting out the need for radiotherapy services in 
Swindon and the next steps necessary to meet that need. It was noted that cancer 
patients from Swindon currently had to travel to Oxford to receive their radiotherapy 
treatment and the main concern was to reduce this travelling time. Initial research 

Page 32



APPENDIX 1 
Report of Scrutiny and Overview Committees 

held between 25 October 2009 and 18 December 2009 
 

COUNCIL                                                                                    Date 14 January 2009 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from 

 Ian Willcox, Committee and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463601or Email 
iwillcox@swindon.gov.uk 

 

indicated that the projected requirements of the catchment population for Swindon 
would justify establishing two linear accelerator machines here. Two machines would 
allow for routine maintenance down time but there was spare capacity within the area 
should there be any breakdowns or longer periods of maintenance required. However, 
there was a great deal of further research needed before a decision could be made on 
whether to proceed. 
 The Committee noted the report and gave its full support to the project, 
requesting that the PCT provide further reports as the project progressed.    

 
b) Presentation on the Swindon PCT Strategic Refresh 

 
The Committee received a presentation on the Swindon PCT Strategic Refresh. The 
presentation explained the steps taken and the principles involved in establishing a 
framework for determining priorities in the move towards greater integration of 
services and a more streamlined service provision.      

 
c) Tuberculosis Services 
 
The Committee received a report on the proposal to introduce a community based 
tuberculosis service in Swindon. It was noted that the number of cases in the town had 
doubled over the last five years so it was proposed to develop a service, alongside the 
hospital, to raise awareness and provide information on the disease. Many of those 
suffering from TB were recent immigrants, which was why a screening process would 
form part of the new service. Reference was made to the Cardiff arrangement for 
providing a service to those who found it difficult to take their medication regularly. 
However details of the arrangement were not known and it was agreed that further 
information would be ascertained and forwarded to the Scrutiny Officer. 
The Committee endorsed and welcomed the improvement to the tuberculosis service 
noted that future changes to commissioned services as part of the transforming 
community services programme would be the subject of impact assessments to the 
Health Committee to determine whether the change constituted a substantial variation 
in service. 
 
d) Urgent Care Services 
 
 The Committee received a report to provide an update on progress of the Urgent 
Care Programme of work. The Committee welcomed the update and noted that there 
had been a great deal of progress since the last report. Reference was made to the 
development of a single contact point through which appropriate care would be co-
ordinated and people directed to the appropriate service. This facility was to be 
phased in and the Committee was advised that the process had already started.  
 

Page 33



APPENDIX 1 
Report of Scrutiny and Overview Committees 

held between 25 October 2009 and 18 December 2009 
 

COUNCIL                                                                                    Date 14 January 2009 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from 

 Ian Willcox, Committee and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463601or Email 
iwillcox@swindon.gov.uk 

 

e) Swindon Dementia Strategy and Delivery Plan 
 
The Committee received a report on the plans to address the National Dementia 
Strategy. Members noted and endorsed the report, particularly the effectiveness of  
both the arrangements for the early diagnosis of dementia and the support provided. 
 
f) Dignity in Care Task Group Update 
 
The Committee received an interim report on the work being undertaken by the Dignity 
in Care Task Group. Councillor Michael Bray, Chair of the Task Group, advised that 
the visit to the Great Western Hospital on 13 November had been very useful. It was 
noted that visits to care homes would continue through November and December and 
an invitation to visit the Victoria Centre was extended to the Task Group Group at the 
meeting. It was noted that a final report would be submitted to this Committee in 
February 2010.  
 
3. CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE  
There were no meetings of the Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee during this period. 
 
4. ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL & SUSTAINABILITY OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
4.1   Meeting of 29th October 2009 
  
Review of the Arts Centre Task Group 
 
The Cabinet Member for Culture, Regeneration and Economic Development, the 
Culture Programming Manager and the Culture Marketing Manager updated Members 
of this Committee on the current performance of the Arts Centre, including information 
about the proposal to move the Old Town Library into the Arts Centre, information 
about the consultant’s review of the Arts Centre, including current and future 
marketing plans, and how the Arts Centre fits into the overall culture plans for 
Swindon. 
The Cabinet Member for Culture, Regeneration and Economic Development outlined 
the proposals to close the existing Old Town library facility and to put it into the Arts 
Centre, creating a cultural hub for Old Town.  A Capital bid had been submitted for the 
work as investment would be required and it was intended to start work in the new 
financial year, should the capital bid be successful.  This would result in an improved 
service, larger floor area for various activities with new facilities including a café.  
Members of the Committee felt that it was important that work started soon as there 
was a sense of expectation in Old Town and the existing facility was not fit for 

Page 34



APPENDIX 1 
Report of Scrutiny and Overview Committees 

held between 25 October 2009 and 18 December 2009 
 

COUNCIL                                                                                    Date 14 January 2009 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from 

 Ian Willcox, Committee and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463601or Email 
iwillcox@swindon.gov.uk 

 

purpose. 
 
With regards to the Arts Centre itself, the executive summary of the consultants review 
was currently being written and the recommendations included:- 

• Creating new day-time usage. 
• Implementing on-line booking facilities 
• A refreshment of the programme 
• Integration of a café 

 
The Culture Programming Manager confirmed that staff work across the Cultural 
Service in Swindon and that the best estimate of running the Arts Centre was 
approximately £200K with no budget increase anticipated in 2010/11.  It was 
confirmed that a major benefit would be the introduction of on-line booking and it was 
hoped that this would be up and running within the first three months of 2010.  Other 
initiatives included a re-vamped brochure, e-bulletins, using facebook and extending 
the opening hours of the box office. 
 
The Arts Centre was not a commercial concern and it was important to provide a 
diverse programme of activities, especially where it was of benefit to the local 
communities.  Members of the Committee felt that it was important to balance the 
range of activities between those that attracted large audiences and those that were of 
perceived benefit to the community, but with a smaller potential audience.  It was not 
always possible to compete with other commercial venues, such as the cinemas, and 
the Council had a duty to promote its cultural strategy and therefore has to provide 
services and events that other venues don’t provide. 
 
Concern regarding the proposed establishment of a café was expressed by some 
Members of the Committee, especially its financial viability, bearing in mind the 
number of other cafes within the vicinity of the Arts Centre and the Cabinet Member 
for Culture, Regeneration and Economic Development was keen to learn from the 
experiences of other colleagues within the council who had worked in similar 
establishments. 
 
The Chair expressed some concern about the low numbers of people who actually 
attend events at the Arts Centre and at the number of residents within his ward who 
were unaware of the existence of this venue.  The Cabinet Member for Culture, 
Regeneration and Economic Development agreed that it may be possible to look at a 
more commercially focussed programme for the Arts Centre and that he would be 
keen to take this debate to a wider audience. 
 

Page 35



APPENDIX 1 
Report of Scrutiny and Overview Committees 

held between 25 October 2009 and 18 December 2009 
 

COUNCIL                                                                                    Date 14 January 2009 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from 

 Ian Willcox, Committee and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463601or Email 
iwillcox@swindon.gov.uk 

 

4.2 Meeting of 10th December 2009 
 
Town Centre Regeneration 
 
Nick Condor (Public Realm, New Swindon Company) presented the regeneration 
plans for Regent Street to Members of this Committee.  These improvement works 
were being project managed by the New Swindon Company and were part funded by 
the Government’s Growth Point Funds as well as additional funding from the South 
West Regional Development Agency.  He explained that this was a brand new design 
and that the paving used would be the same as that used at Canal Wharf for which 
local suppliers were used.  The sandstone used was pre-cured and pre-treated as it 
came out of the quarry and was the best product for protecting against damage 
caused by chewing gum.  This would be a five year protected asset and utilities would 
only be able to dig the paving up for emergencies within this period, otherwise 
penalties would be incurred.   
 
It was felt that it would be useful to have better signage outlining what was happening 
in the area.  Nick Condor agreed to take this in board but advised that there were 
health and safety issues around where these signs were placed and that some shop 
keepers were reluctant to have any signage hiding their shop fronts. 
 
As part of the regeneration plans, information would be provided about the history of 
the area, including information about the trams that were used and that work was 
ongoing with a gateway artist to provide some modern art in the area.  It was also 
hoped that, by making improvements to the area, this would have a knock on effect to 
other organisations improving their buildings and Nationwide had already expressed 
an interest in participating in these plans. 
 
The Director of Economic and Cultural Development advised that Cabinet had agreed 
to a merger taking place between New Swindon Company and the Economic 
Development Team and that this merger would provide a much more effective and 
holistic approach to the regeneration of Swindon.  There was a more integrated and 
aggressive marketing message being put to potential developers and investors that 
Swindon was ready for regeneration when the economic climate improved and that 
Swindon did have a good reputation in its approach towards planning.  The Cabinet 
Member for Sustainability, Transport and Strategic Planning added that it was 
important for the Council and New Swindon Company to act as enablers for any 
potential investors or developers and that they were working closely with the private 
sector to encourage development in Swindon.  Talks were ongoing with some high 
profile restaurateurs about coming to Swindon and there was also potential to have 
boutique style shops in the town.  It was important for Swindon to have its own feel 
and look and that people’s aspirations of Swindon were lifted.  Consideration was also 
been given to the road and attraction signage and the Cabinet Member for 
Sustainability, Transport and Strategic Planning advised that he would be more than 

Page 36



APPENDIX 1 
Report of Scrutiny and Overview Committees 

held between 25 October 2009 and 18 December 2009 
 

COUNCIL                                                                                    Date 14 January 2009 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from 

 Ian Willcox, Committee and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463601or Email 
iwillcox@swindon.gov.uk 

 

happy to discuss this further with Councillors. 
 
The nature of retailing had changed over the years and it was important to aim 
towards economic sustainability whilst acknowledging that funding was a major issue 
for all towns.  Swindon’s profile had been raised with projects such as Wi-Fi and 
twinning with Disney World and that this was good news for any property developers 
wishing to bring business into the town. 

 
5. SAFER AND STRONGER COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE  
5.1 Meeting of 3rd December 2009 
 
a) Swindon Wiltshire Alcohol and Drug Service 

 
Bill Carlton, Swindon Wiltshire Alcohol and Drug Service (SWADS) gave a 
presentation on the background to the formation and of the current work and projects 
undertaken by SWADS. 
He referred to the Open Access Assessments Clinics and Support Groups, the 
Structured Day Programme, the affects of Psychological and Physical dependencies 
on Alcohol, Community Detoxification, Intervention Clinics for people drinking 
hazardously, Aftercare facilities including Arts and Recording Studios, and Project 
PASH 
  
He answered questions and points of information raised by members of the 
Committee on the following topics: 
  

• Financial Funding of SWADS  
• The age groups using the SWADS service  
• Sharing information with the Great Western Hospital (GWH), Safer 

Communities Partnership and Drug Reference Groups  
• The interaction between drug and alcohol users  
• The potential problems of selling alcohol at Council-run events  
• The pricing of alcohol  
• Binge-drinking  
• Underage drinking  
• Referrals from GP’s  
• The numbers of SWADS service users  
• Licensing Issues  
• Whether SWADS opening hours were user-friendly  
• The consequences of taking the drug ‘Anti-abuse’  
• Promoting education of safe sensible drinking  

 
b) Alcohol – Licensing 

Page 37



APPENDIX 1 
Report of Scrutiny and Overview Committees 

held between 25 October 2009 and 18 December 2009 
 

COUNCIL                                                                                    Date 14 January 2009 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from 

 Ian Willcox, Committee and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463601or Email 
iwillcox@swindon.gov.uk 

 

 
Lionel Starling, the Council’s Licensing Manger, gave a presentation concerning the 
link between Licensing and alcohol and the current practices that are in place in 
Swindon. He advised the Committee on the following matters: 

• Meeting with Planning Officers to discuss the density of pubs in the Fleet Street 
area.  

• Banning Orders  
• Publicity campaigns highlighting the dangers of drinking to excess  
• The urban myth of drink-spiking  
• Plastic glasses only policy  
• Proposals being considered for the Town Centre regeneration  
• Taxing bad behaviour  
• How the concentration of bars and pubs in one area can affect extended 

opening hours  
• The restriction of availability of alcohol  
• The importance of seating in bars and pubs.  
 

c) Alcohol – Update on Events 
 

Matthew Hibbert, the Strategic Development Manager for Substance Misuse gave a 
presentation on evens that have taken place relating to alcohol and answered 
questions by members of the Committee about the work of the Community Safety 
department and the budget for commissioning treatment services. He referred to work 
undertaken by the Community Safety Partnership highlighting work carried out in 
relation to Alcohol Awareness, working with the Police and the Nightime Economy. 
He provided feedback on the Alcohol Big Debate Event, and the initiatives taken as 
result, including: a follow up event scheduled for February 2010, the alcohol harm 
reduction strategy and this Committees role in developing a new strategy. 
 
The Committee agreed to setting up a Binge Drinking/Youth Drinking Task Group with 
the Children’s Overview Committee and invited the Licensing Committee to set up a 
joint Task Group to conduct a review of licensing topics. 
Members of the Committee also agreed to attend visits to the Accident and 
Emergency Unit at the Great Western Hospital and to accompany the Police. 
 
Background Papers and Information 
• Reports for all Scrutiny and Overview Committees and the related Minutes are 

available in full on the Committee and Member Information Pages of the 
Council’s Intranet and Website (www.swindon.gov.uk) or on request from 
Committee and Member Services. 

Page 38



APPENDIX 2 
Standards Committee Update 

 
COUNCIL   Date: 14 January 2010 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Sarah Lawrence, Committee 
and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463603 or Email slawrence@swindon.gov.uk 

Purpose 
� To receive a report on the work of the Committee in the period 15th September 

to 1st January 2010. 

 

Recommendation and Minutes for Confirmation 
� To note the proceedings of the Standards Committee held on 19th October 

2009. 

 
1. Standards Committee Meeting – 19th October 2009   
 
a) Minutes 

The Committee approved its minutes from the meeting held on 13th July 2009.  
Further to Minute 5, the Monitoring Officer advised that a new Standards for 
England training DVD was now available on the local assessment of complaints 
and would be used for a future training session for the Committee.  Further to 
Minute 9 (2), the Monitoring Officer confirmed that he had considered the 
timescales involved in the current Code of Conduct investigations and was 
assured that due to the circumstances of each case the time from complaint to 
investigation and hearing was reasonable, but assured the Committee that 
complaints would be dealt with, with appropriate speed and due process, to 
avoid Councillors and Parish Councillors having to wait excessively for the 
outcome of complaints made against them.  

 
b) Members Planning Code of Good Practice 
 The Committee considered and approved the ‘Swindon Borough Council – 

Members’ Planning Code of Good Practice’ as amended and following 
consultation, to take into account LGA Guidance Note ‘Probity in Planning: the 
role of councillors and officers dealing with planning matters’, subject to a 
typographical correction to the Declarations of Interest flowchart.  

 
c) Ethical Framework Update 
 The Committee received an update on various matters relating to the Ethical 

Framework including: 
• Use of Resources Score and Notable Practice - The Committee noted that 

the Council had achieved a Use of Resources score of 3, and took account 
in particular of the notable practice submission accepted in relation to 
Standards in Partnership. 

• Members Code of Conduct – The Monitoring Officer advised that the new 
Members Code of Conduct was due next month and was expected to take 
effect from April 2010. 

• Consultation on Codes and Protocols – The Committee agreed that the 
Monitoring Officer should consult with relevant stakeholders on the 
Monitoring Officer Protocol, Councillor Role Definitions, Media: Guidelines 

Page 39



APPENDIX 2 
Standards Committee Update 

 
COUNCIL   Date: 14 January 2010 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Sarah Lawrence, Committee 
and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463603 or Email slawrence@swindon.gov.uk 

for Councillors and Protocol for Member/Officer Relations, as part of their 
regular review, and report back to the next suitable meeting of the 
Committee. 

• Outcomes from the Standards in Partnership Masterclass – The Monitoring 
Officer advised that he was consulting with the Director of Policy and 
Performance on a draft action plan arising from the Masterclass, and would 
report back to the next suitable meeting with an update of ongoing action in 
relation to standards and probity within each of the partnership relationships.  
The Monitoring Officer tabled a Standards in Partnership Protocol from 
Manchester City Council which had been promoted at the Annual Assembly 
of Standards Committees and it was agreed that the revised action plan 
should take account of this protocol. 

• Public Perceptions of Ethics – The Committee noted the outcomes of the 
two-year research into the public perceptions of ethics carried out by 
Standards for England, and comparator information collected locally as to 
the public perceptions of public services in general.  

• Standards Board Publications – The Committee received the Standards for 
England Bulletin Issue 45. 

• Annual Assembly of Standards Committees – The Monitoring Officer 
reported back on the key messages from the Annual Assembly held on 12th 
-13th October 2009.  It was noted that all documentation was now published 
on the website, which could provide a resource for Members and standards 
committees. 

• Training Update – The Committee received an update on the training 
undertaken since the last meeting by Members and Parish Councils in 
relation to ethical standards.  A list of the number of Parish Clerks and 
Councillors having received training was included in the agenda.  The 
Parish Councillors present advised that there had been some confusion 
providing this information as to whether this should include both training 
provided by the Monitoring Officer, and that undertaken independently, and 
therefore it was agreed that clarification be sought from Parish Councils and 
an updated version provided to the next meeting.  

 
d) Case Study 
 The Committee explored an Appeals Tribunal decision from the Adjudication 

Panel for England made on 23rd June 2009, regarding a case concerning 
Councillor Michael Cox of the London Borough of Hillingdon, and discussed 
how they would have approached this case.  It was agreed that this was a 
useful training exercise.  It was agreed that for future case studies, the 
Monitoring Officer would remove the outcome of the case in order that the 
Committee could consider its own judgement before learning the actual 
decision.  

 
e) Ethical Framework Compliance Update 

The Committee noted an exempt report (under Paragraphs 1 and 2 of Schedule 
12A to the Local Government Act 1972) concerning the progress and outcome 
of various ethical framework compliance matters, including current 

Page 40



APPENDIX 2 
Standards Committee Update 

 
COUNCIL   Date: 14 January 2010 
 
 

 
Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Sarah Lawrence, Committee 
and Member Services on Direct Dial No. 463603 or Email slawrence@swindon.gov.uk 

whistleblowing, Code of Conduct Complaints and Member / Officer Protocol 
complaints.  The Committee agreed that the next hearings panel that is 
required, should comprise five members of the Committee, excluding the three 
members who had sat on Assessment Sub-Committee and referred the 
complaint for investigation. 
 

Background Papers and Information 
� Standards Committee Reports and the related Minutes are available in full on the 

Committee and Member Information Pages of the Council’s Intranet and Website 
(www.swindon.gov.uk) or on request from Committee and Member Services.  

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



January 2010 Progress report and briefing note  1 

Swindon BC 

January 2010 
Progress report 
and briefing note 
Swindon BC 
 
Audit 2009/1010 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 43



2  January 2010 Progress report and briefing note  

Swindon BC 

 

- Audit Commission descriptor to be inserted by Publishing- 

Document Control 

Author Peter Smith 

Filename Progress report January 2010 (2).doc 

Status of our reports 
The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the 
Audit Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the 
audited body. Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to 
non-executive directors/members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use 
of the audited body. Auditors accept no responsibility to: 

• any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  
• any third party. 

 

Copies of this report 
If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille,  
on tape, or in a language other than English, please call 0845 056 0566. 

. 

Page 44



January 2010 Progress report and briefing note  3 

Swindon BC 

Introduction 
1 The purpose of this paper is to provide the Audit Committee with a report on 

progress in delivering our responsibilities as the Council's external auditor.  

2 This update also seeks to highlight key emerging national issues and 
developments which may be of interest to members of the Committee. 

3 At the end of this update are a number of questions which the Audit Committee 
may wish to consider in order to ensure that it has received sufficient assurance 
on the emerging issues. 

4 If you require any additional information regarding the issues included within this 
briefing, please feel free to contact your District Auditor or member of the local 
audit team .

Page 45



4 
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
0 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rt 

an
d 

br
ie

fin
g 

no
te

 │
  

Sw
in

do
n 

B
C

 

A
ud

it 
pr

og
re

ss
 s

um
m

ar
y 

 A
re

a 
of

 w
or

k 
A

ud
it 

Pl
an

 
re

po
rt

in
g 

da
te

 
D

at
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 
to

 O
ffi

ce
rs

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 
D

at
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 to
 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 

C
om

m
en

t 

20
09

/1
0 

 
 

 
 

 

A
ud

it 
fe

es
 le

tte
r 

A
pr

il 
20

09
 

A
pr

il 
20

09
 

A
C

 P
et

er
 S

m
ith

 
Ju

ne
 2

00
9 

Fe
e 

le
tte

r s
en

t t
o 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

in
 

A
pr

il 
20

09
. W

e 
w

ill 
co

nf
irm

 th
e 

fe
e 

pr
io

r t
o 

co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 th
e 

op
in

io
n 

w
or

k.
   

In
te

rim
 a

ud
it 

A
pr

il 
20

10
   

(if
 re

qu
ire

d)
 

 
S

B
C

 D
ar

re
n 

S
te

ve
ns

/ 
N

ic
k 

H
ob

bs
 

A
C

 P
au

l B
en

fie
ld

 

 
S

ys
te

m
 w

al
kt

hr
ou

gh
s 

ar
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 fo

r a
ll 

m
at

er
ia

l s
ys

te
m

s 
ex

ce
pt

 fi
xe

d 
as

se
ts

. S
ys

te
m

s 
ex

am
in

ed
 a

re
 a

de
qu

at
el

y 
de

si
gn

ed
 

w
ith

 c
on

tro
ls

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 o

pe
ra

tin
g.

  

C
on

tro
ls

 te
st

in
g 

to
 b

e 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

in
 

M
ar

ch
 to

 a
sc

er
ta

in
 if

 c
on

tro
ls

 a
re

 
op

er
at

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y.

  

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t c

on
tro

l i
ss

ue
s 

w
ill 

be
 

re
po

rte
d 

on
 a

n 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

ba
si

s 
in

 
A

pr
il 

20
10

. I
f n

o 
m

at
er

ia
l i

ss
ue

s 
ar

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

a 
su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 fi

nd
in

gs
 w

ill 
be

 re
po

rte
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
IS

A
 2

60
 

Page 46



Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
10

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rt 

an
d 

br
ie

fin
g 

no
te

 │
 5

 

Sw
in

do
n 

B
C

 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 re

po
rt.

 

C
on

ne
ct

in
g 

P
eo

pl
e 

co
nn

ec
tin

g 
pl

ac
es

 
Ju

ne
 2

01
0 

 
 

 
S

et
 u

p 
w

or
k 

is
 p

la
nn

ed
 fo

r J
an

ua
ry

 
20

10
, w

ith
 o

n 
si

te
 w

or
k 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 

be
 in

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
0 

an
d 

a 
re

po
rt 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
by

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 A

pr
il 

20
10

. 

U
se

 o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Ju

ly
 2

01
0 

 

 
S

B
C

 S
tu

ar
t M

ck
el

la
r 

A
C

 P
et

er
 S

m
ith

 
 

P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
in

iti
al

 d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 s

ta
rte

d,
 w

ith
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 

w
ith

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 p
la

nn
ed

 fo
r F

eb
ru

ar
y 

to
 

A
pr

il 
20

10
. 

In
di

ca
tiv

e 
sc

or
es

 w
ill 

be
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 
to

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 b

y 
21

st
 

A
pr

il 
20

10
 w

ith
 fi

na
l s

ub
m

is
si

on
 fo

r 
Q

ua
lit

y 
R

ev
ie

w
 p

ro
ce

ss
 b

ei
ng

 th
e 

30
th

 J
ul

y 
20

10
. 

O
pi

ni
on

 fe
e 

re
vi

ew
 

M
ay

 2
01

0 
 

S
B

C
 G

av
in

 J
on

es
 

A
C

 P
et

er
 S

m
ith

 
 

N
ot

 y
et

 s
ta

rte
d 

O
pi

ni
on

 

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
0 

 
S

B
C

 S
tu

ar
t M

ck
el

la
r 

A
C

 P
et

er
 S

m
ith

 
 

N
ot

 y
et

 s
ta

rte
d 

P
os

t s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
ud

it 
te

st
in

g 
to

 b
e 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
in

 J
ul

y 
- A

ug
us

t 2
01

0 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 d
at

e 
fo

r a
pp

ro
va

l 
of

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
ha

s 
no

t y
et

 b
ee

n 
ag

re
ed

.  

V
FM

 C
on

cl
us

io
n 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
0 

 
S

B
C

 S
tu

ar
t M

ck
el

la
r 

A
C

 P
et

er
 S

m
ith

 
 

N
ot

 y
et

 s
ta

rte
d 

 

 

Page 47



6 
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
0 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rt 

an
d 

br
ie

fin
g 

no
te

 │
  

Sw
in

do
n 

B
C

 

A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
0 

 
S

B
C

 S
tu

ar
t M

ck
el

la
r 

A
C

 P
et

er
 S

m
ith

 
 

N
ot

 y
et

 s
ta

rte
d 

 

20
10

/1
1 

 
 

 
 

 

A
ud

it 
P

la
n 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
0 

 
S

B
C

 G
av

in
 J

on
es

 
A

C
 P

et
er

 S
m

ith
 

 
W

or
k 

is
 u

nd
er

w
ay

. t
o 

re
vi

ew
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il's
 in

te
rn

al
 ri

sk
 re

gi
st

er
s 

to
 

id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 
bu

si
ne

ss
 ri

sk
s 

af
fe

ct
in

g 
ou

r C
od

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s.
 

Page 48



Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
10

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rt 

an
d 

br
ie

fin
g 

no
te

 │
 7

 

Sw
in

do
n 

B
C

 

B
rie

fin
g 

fo
r J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
0 

Pr
ot

ec
tin

g 
th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 P
ur

se
 - 

Lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t f

ig
ht

in
g 

fr
au

d 
 

- c
he

ck
lis

t f
or

 a
ud

ite
d 

bo
di

es
 

 
O

n 
15

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
9 

th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
P

ro
te

ct
in

g 
th

e 
P

ub
lic

 P
ur

se
: L

oc
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t f

ig
ht

in
g 

fra
ud

. T
he

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 is
 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 to

 ra
is

in
g 

au
di

te
d 

bo
di

es
’ a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

is
su

es
 a

nd
 g

oo
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 to
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
au

di
te

d 
bo

di
es

 to
 u

se
 th

e 
ch

ec
kl

is
t w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
po

rt.
 W

e 
ar

e 
re

m
in

di
ng

 A
ud

it 
M

an
ag

er
s 

th
at

 th
ey

 m
ay

 w
is

h 
to

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
at

te
nt

io
n 

of
 a

ud
ite

d 
bo

di
es

 a
nd

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

, a
ud

it 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 m
em

be
rs

. 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 A

re
a 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Th
e 

fir
st

 C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 A

re
a 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t (

C
A

A
) r

es
ul

ts
 w

as
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

on
 D

ec
em

be
r 9

th
, t

he
 w

eb
si

te
 h

as
 a

 s
ho

rte
r a

nd
 fr

ie
nd

lie
r 

na
m

e 
– 

on
ep

la
ce

. 

A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 lo
ok

 d
iff

er
en

t: 
go

ne
 a

re
 th

e 
st

at
ic

 s
co

re
s 

us
in

g 
st

ar
s 

or
 le

ag
ue

 ta
bl

es
. I

ns
te

ad
 jo

in
t i

ns
pe

ct
or

at
e 

te
am

s 
w

ill 
pa

in
t a

n 
ov

er
al

l p
ic

tu
re

 o
f h

ow
 w

el
l p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
ta

ck
lin

g 
an

 a
re

a'
s 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
an

d 
pr

io
rit

ie
s.

 

O
ne

pl
ac

e 
w

ill 
he

lp
 a

ns
w

er
 th

e 
si

m
pl

e 
qu

es
tio

n 
'h

ow
 w

el
l a

m
 I 

be
in

g 
se

rv
ed

 b
y 

lo
ca

l p
ub

lic
 s

er
vi

ce
s?

' T
he

re
 w

ill 
be

 ja
rg

on
-fr

ee
, e

as
y-

to
-re

ad
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

on
 e

ve
ry

 p
la

ce
 in

 E
ng

la
nd

, a
nd

 li
nk

s 
to

 d
et

ai
le

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fro

m
 th

e 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t i
ns

pe
ct

or
at

es
 b

eh
in

d 
C

A
A

 - 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, O
fs

te
d,

 C
ar

e 
Q

ua
lit

y 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 a

nd
 H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 In
sp

ec
to

ra
te

s 
of

 C
on

st
ab

ul
ar

y,
 P

ris
on

s 
an

d 
P

ro
ba

tio
n.

 T
he

 
on

ep
la

ce
 s

ite
 is

 u
se

r-
fo

cu
se

d 
- e

as
y 

to
 n

av
ig

at
e 

an
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
. 

  

Page 49



8 
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
0 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rt 

an
d 

br
ie

fin
g 

no
te

 │
  

Sw
in

do
n 

B
C

 

M
ea

ns
 to

 a
n 

en
d:

 J
oi

nt
 fi

na
nc

in
g 

ac
ro

ss
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

Th
is

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 re
ce

nt
 n

at
io

na
l r

ep
or

t, 
M

ea
ns

 to
 a

n 
E

nd
, r

ev
ie

w
s 

th
e 

jo
in

t f
in

an
ci

ng
 a

nd
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 c
ar

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

be
tw

ee
n 

N
H

S
 b

od
ie

s 
an

d 
co

un
ci

ls
 w

ith
 a

du
lt 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s.

 It
 b

ui
ld

s 
on

 o
ur

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n,
 C

la
rif

yi
ng

 jo
in

t f
in

an
ci

ng
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

, t
ha

t e
xp

la
in

ed
 th

e 
pr

ac
tic

al
 im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 le

gi
sl

at
iv

e 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r j

oi
nt

 fi
na

nc
in

g.
  

It 
co

ns
id

er
s 

ho
w

 th
es

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

re
 u

se
d,

 fo
cu

si
ng

 o
n 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
is

ab
ilit

y,
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

- a
re

as
 w

he
re

 s
er

vi
ce

 
us

er
s 

m
os

t o
fte

n 
ne

ed
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e.

  

Th
e 

re
po

rt’
s 

ke
y 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 is

 th
at

 in
st

ea
d 

of
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

tin
g 

on
 th

e 
m

ec
ha

ni
cs

 o
f j

oi
nt

 fi
na

nc
in

g 
an

d 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

ki
ng

, c
ou

nc
ils

 a
nd

 
th

e 
N

H
S

 s
ho

ul
d 

lo
ok

 a
t h

ow
 th

ei
r j

oi
nt

 fu
nd

in
g 

ca
n 

im
pr

ov
e 

pe
op

le
's

 li
ve

s.
  

U
se

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

nt
in

ui
ty

 a
nd

 c
om

pa
ra

bi
lit

y 
of

 s
co

re
s,

 fo
r t

he
 s

ec
on

d 
ye

ar
 o

f t
he

 u
se

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t, 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
an

d 
th

e 
ke

y 
lin

es
 o

f e
nq

ui
ry

 h
av

e 
no

t c
ha

ng
ed

. T
hi

s 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
w

ill 
al

lo
w

 a
ud

ito
rs

 to
 ta

ke
 a

 m
or

e 
pr

op
or

tio
na

te
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

an
d 

bu
ild

 o
n 

ev
id

en
ce

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

fir
st

 y
ea

r. 
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
up

da
tin

g 
th

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 a

nd
 s

om
e 

up
da

te
s 

ha
ve

 a
lre

ad
y 

be
en

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
on

 o
ur

 w
eb

si
te

. T
he

 re
m

ai
ni

ng
 

up
da

te
s 

w
er

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

w
ee

k 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 1

1 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

10
.  

Pr
om

ot
in

g 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 w
el

l -
be

in
g 

Th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 h

as
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
 m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

th
e 

is
su

es
 a

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ub

lic
 s

ec
to

r b
od

y 
ha

s 
in

 p
ro

m
ot

in
g 

he
al

th
 

an
d 

w
el

l-b
ei

ng
 in

 th
e 

w
or

kp
la

ce
, m

an
ag

in
g 

si
ck

ne
ss

 a
bs

en
ce

 a
nd

 m
ak

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 fo

r i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t. 
It 

is
 in

te
nd

ed
 fo

r u
se

 
ac

ro
ss

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 a

s 
a 

lo
ca

l s
tu

dy
 in

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t o

r a
dd

iti
on

al
 ri

sk
 –

 b
as

ed
 w

or
k 

in
 h

ea
lth

, 
de

liv
er

ed
 u

nd
er

 A
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

po
w

er
s.

 It
 c

an
 d

o 
th

is
 b

y:
 

• 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

pu
bl

ic
 s

ec
to

r o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 to

 li
nk

 th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f s
ic

kn
es

s 
ab

se
nc

e 
to

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
, p

ro
du

ct
iv

ity
 a

nd
 v

al
ue

 fo
r m

on
ey

 
th

ro
ug

h 
as

se
ss

m
en

t a
nd

 a
na

ly
si

s 
of

 s
ic

kn
es

s 
ab

se
nc

e;
 a

nd
 b

y 
re

po
rti

ng
 o

n 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
av

in
gs

; a
nd

 
• 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
an

d,
 w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, s
up

po
rti

ng
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 b

es
t p

ra
ct

ic
e 

to
 re

du
ce

 s
ic

kn
es

s 
ab

se
nc

e 
ra

te
s.

  

Th
is

 w
or

k 
ca

n 
be

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 in

 a
ll 

pu
bl

ic
 s

ec
to

r b
od

ie
s.

 

Page 50



Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
10

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rt 

an
d 

br
ie

fin
g 

no
te

 │
 9

 

Sw
in

do
n 

B
C

 

Lo
ca

l c
ou

nc
il 

fin
an

ce
s 

an
d 

th
e 

re
ce

ss
io

n 
Th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 h
as

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
tw

o 
re

po
rts

 s
o 

fa
r o

n 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f t

he
 re

ce
ss

io
n 

on
 c

ou
nc

ils
. C

ru
nc

h 
Ti

m
e 

w
as

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
in

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
8 

an
d 

W
he

n 
it 

co
m

es
 to

 th
e 

cr
un

ch
 in

 J
ul

y 
20

09
. T

he
se

 re
po

rts
 fo

un
d 

th
at

, a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
re

ce
ss

io
n,

 c
ou

nc
il 

in
co

m
e 

ha
d 

fa
lle

n,
 a

nd
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 in

 s
om

e 
ar

ea
s 

ha
d 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
du

e 
to

 h
ig

he
r d

em
an

d.
 T

he
 s

pe
ed

 o
f c

ha
ng

e 
m

ea
nt

 7
0 

pe
r c

en
t o

f c
ou

nc
ils

 
ha

d 
to

 a
m

en
d 

th
ei

r f
in

an
ci

al
 p

la
ns

 a
nd

 b
ud

ge
ts

 to
 b

al
an

ce
 th

ei
r b

oo
ks

.  
 

W
he

n 
it 

co
m

es
 to

 th
e 

cr
un

ch
 fo

un
d 

th
at

 c
ou

nc
ils

 re
m

ai
n 

un
ce

rta
in

 a
nd

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
 a

bo
ut

 le
ve

ls
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

fu
nd

in
g.

 T
hi

s 
is

 a
ffe

ct
in

g 
th

ei
r 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 re
sp

on
d 

lo
ca

lly
 to

 th
e 

re
ce

ss
io

n 
no

w
 a

nd
 th

ei
r p

la
ns

 fo
r t

he
 fu

tu
re

. I
t a

ls
o 

lo
ok

ed
 a

t w
ha

t c
ou

nc
ils

 w
er

e 
do

in
g 

to
 h

el
p 

th
ei

r 
lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
y 

an
d 

ci
tiz

en
s 

de
al

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
ce

ss
io

n.
 It

 s
ug

ge
st

ed
 th

at
 c

ou
nc

ils
 w

ou
ld

 fa
ce

 fu
rth

er
 in

cr
ea

se
s 

in
 re

ce
ss

io
n 

re
la

te
d 

de
m

an
d 

in
 fu

tu
re

, l
in

ke
d 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
s 

in
 lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 u
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t. 

• 
Th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 is
 n

ow
 u

pd
at

in
g 

fin
an

ci
al

 a
nd

 d
em

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

lo
ok

in
g 

in
 m

or
e 

de
ta

il 
at

 c
ou

nc
ils

 a
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

or
s 

to
 

th
e 

lo
ca

l j
ob

 m
ar

ke
t. 

 T
he

 a
im

s 
of

 th
is

 re
se

ar
ch

 a
re

 to
: 

• 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

a 
ba

la
nc

ed
 p

ic
tu

re
 o

n 
ho

w
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

fin
an

ce
s 

an
d 

de
m

an
d 

fo
r s

er
vi

ce
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
re

ce
ss

io
n 

so
 fa

r; 
• 

id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

co
m

m
en

t o
n 

th
e 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 in

 im
pa

ct
 a

t l
oc

al
 le

ve
l; 

• 
id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
co

m
m

en
t o

n 
th

e 
ac

tio
ns

 ta
ke

n,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 e

ffi
ci

en
ci

es
, t

o 
ad

dr
es

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 p

re
ss

ur
es

; a
nd

 
• 

as
se

ss
 th

e 
re

si
lie

nc
e 

of
 c

ou
nc

il 
fin

an
ce

s 
an

d 
th

e 
ab

ilit
y 

of
 c

ou
nc

ils
 to

 w
ith

st
an

d 
fu

tu
re

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ho

ck
s.

  
• 

Th
e 

re
se

ar
ch

 w
ill 

ad
dr

es
s 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
qu

es
tio

ns
:  

• 
H

ow
 is

 c
ou

nc
il 

in
co

m
e 

ch
an

gi
ng

, e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 a

ct
ua

l a
nd

 p
re

di
ct

ed
 in

co
m

e 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

re
ce

ss
io

n?
  

• 
H

ow
 a

re
 c

os
ts

 c
ha

ng
in

g,
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

? 
 

• 
H

ow
 is

 d
em

an
d 

ch
an

gi
ng

? 
To

 w
ha

t e
xt

en
t i

s 
th

is
 re

ce
ss

io
n 

re
la

te
d?

 Is
 th

e 
ba

la
nc

e 
of

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 b
et

w
ee

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
s 

ch
an

gi
ng

? 
 

• 
H

ow
 d

id
 c

ou
nc

ils
 b

al
an

ce
 th

ei
r b

ud
ge

ts
 in

 2
00

8/
09

; w
ha

t c
ha

ng
es

 h
av

e 
th

ey
 m

ad
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ba

la
nc

e 
in

 2
00

9/
10

 a
nd

 w
ha

t a
re

 
ag

re
ed

 fu
tu

re
 p

la
ns

 (i
f c

le
ar

)?
  

• 
H

ow
 s

en
si

tiv
e 

ar
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 lo
ca

l e
co

no
m

ie
s 

to
 re

du
ct

io
ns

 in
 lo

ca
l p

ub
lic

 s
ec

to
r j

ob
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s?

  

R
ec

en
t r

es
ea

rc
h 

in
 th

is
 a

re
a 

ha
s 

re
lie

d 
on

 p
er

ce
pt

io
ns

 fr
om

 s
ur

ve
ys

. M
uc

h 
of

 th
is

 re
se

ar
ch

 w
ill 

be
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

an
 a

na
ly

si
s 

of
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

na
tio

na
l d

at
a 

re
tu

rn
s 

on
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t f
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
em

an
d,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t f
in

an
ci

al
 re

tu
rn

s 
fo

r 
20

08
/0

9 
an

d 
es

tim
at

es
 fo

r 2
00

9/
10

.  
 

Page 51



10
  J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
0 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rt 

an
d 

br
ie

fin
g 

no
te

 │
  

Sw
in

do
n 

B
C

 

W
e 

w
is

h 
to

 s
up

pl
em

en
t t

he
 n

at
io

na
lly

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
da

ta
 w

ith
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 in

 a
 s

am
pl

e 
of

 c
ou

nc
ils

 w
ho

 h
av

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

ro
fil

es
 a

nd
 

so
 w

ill 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

di
ffe

re
nt

ia
lly

 a
ffe

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 d
ow

nt
ur

n 
to

 d
at

e 
– 

fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e,

 s
om

e 
w

ho
 a

re
 m

or
e 

or
 le

ss
 re

lia
nt

 o
n 

C
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

in
co

m
e,

 fe
es

 a
nd

 c
ha

rg
es

 a
nd

/o
r i

nc
om

e 
fro

m
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
.  

Th
is

 w
ill 

be
 th

ro
ug

h 
an

 a
ud

ito
r l

ed
 q

ue
st

io
nn

ai
re

 o
n 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 in

co
m

e,
 d

em
an

d 
an

d 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 b
ud

ge
t c

ha
ng

es
.  

Th
is

 w
ill 

gi
ve

 a
 c

le
ar

er
 in

di
ca

tio
n 

of
 w

he
th

er
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

de
m

an
d 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
fro

m
 2

00
8/

09
 d

at
a 

ar
e 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
. I

t m
ay

 id
en

tif
y 

ne
w

 is
su

es
.  

 

Page 52



Strategic Fraud Update 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE Date: 26th January 2010 
 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nick Hobbs on Direct Dial No. 
01793 463940 or email nhobbs@swindon.gov.uk 
 

Author: Head of Internal Audit 
Wards Affected: None 

Purpose 
This report provides an update of current developments in respect of fraud 
against the public sector and how we are responding to them at Swindon 
Borough Council.   
 

 

Recommendations 
• It is recommended that the contents of the report be noted. 
 
• Members are asked to consider the robustness of the counter-fraud 

arrangements in the Council and how effective they are. 
 

 
1 Reasons 

 
1.1 The Council’s Audit Committee has a strategic role to ensure that the 

Council’s assurance framework is operating effectively. To this end it 
should seek assurance that key areas that contribute to this framework 
are operating properly. 

 
1.2 The pro-active anti-fraud work of both Internal Audit and the Benefits 

Fraud Team contributes to this assurance framework. 
 

1.3 Anti-fraud and corruption work is included as a sub-theme of the Use of 
Resources Assessment. 

 
2 Detail 

 
2.1  Introduction 
 
2.1.1 There has been a number of developments regarding fraud in the public 

sector which have, in the last year, considerably raised the profile of how 
organisations tackle fraud.  The purpose of this report is to advise the 
Committee of these developments and how Internal Audit and the Benefits 
Fraud Team are responding to them.  

 
2.2.  Fraud Review and the National Fraud Authority 

 
2.2.1 In 2006, the new Fraud Act came into effect and the Government published 

the findings from its Fraud Review - a development which aims to reduce the 
harmful effects of fraud on the UK economy and society by means of a co-

Agenda Item 9

Page 53



Strategic Fraud Update 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE Date: 26th January 2010 
 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nick Hobbs on Direct Dial No. 
01793 463940 or email nhobbs@swindon.gov.uk 
 

ordinated and strategic approach. It encourages public and private sectors to 
work together in tackling fraud and makes a considerable number of 
recommendations including the creation of the National Fraud Authority (NFA) 
in 2008 and publication of a National Fraud Strategy that was issued in March 
2009. 

 
2.2.2 The NFA has a key aim of co-ordinating activity across the whole economy 
 to make the UK a ‘hostile environment for fraudsters’. Their priorities include 

building and sharing knowledge about fraud, tackling the most serious and 
harmful threats, developing strategies to disrupt fraudsters, supporting victims 
of fraud and improving the UK's long term capability to prevent fraud. 

 
2.2.3 Current focuses of the NFA that affect the public sector include detailed 

reviews on identity fraud and the impact that the recession is having on the 
level and type of fraud being committed.  

  
2.3. Audit Commission Report - Protecting the Public Purse - Local 

Government Fighting Fraud (September 2009)  
 

2.3.1 This Audit Commission national report sets out their most recent findings 
resulting from their National Fraud Initiative (NFI) Data Matching exercise.  
The Commission acknowledge that there have been improvements in the 
efforts made in the public sector to strengthen measures to tackle fraud 
including: 
z improving national frameworks and strategic partnerships with public and 

private sectors working together in the fight against fraud 
z a general improvement in governance arrangements in local authorities 

with most Council's now having Audit Committees 
z external audit review of Councils' counter-fraud arrangements as part of 

the Use of Resources assessment 
z improved data-matching capabilities in an effort to detect fraud. 

 
 

Areas for attention 
 
2.3.2 However, there are three specific areas that the Commission report as often 

not being adequately addressed at a local level. These are: 
 

(1) Housing Tenancy Fraud 
 

Housing tenancy fraud is the occupation of social housing by those who 
are not entitled to it.  This mainly results from false applications for 
housing, tenancy succession fraud where the property is no longer 
occupied by the original tenant and illegal sub-letting of Council property.  
The report recognises that whilst rent is still receivable by the landlord in 
respect of their property, other impacts of this type of fraud include the 

Page 54



Strategic Fraud Update 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE Date: 26th January 2010 
 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nick Hobbs on Direct Dial No. 
01793 463940 or email nhobbs@swindon.gov.uk 
 

social impact of limited permanent housing solutions as well as the 
associated indirect costs e.g. re-housing families in temporary 
accommodation who are awaiting allocation of Council accommodation. 

 
The Audit Commission clearly view tenancy fraud as a significant area of 
concern and for the first time have provided funding for participation in a 
new element of NFI matching which draws together data from across the 
social landlord sector. 

 
(2) Local Taxation - Single Person's Discount Fraud 

 
 The Commission’s report advises that nationally Councils have noticed a 
sharp increase in the number of people claiming SPD and in the number 
of fraudulent claims for it. The report also identifies that whilst councils do 
recover current years discounts if they are found to be fraudulent, previous 
year entitlements are not always recovered - the Commission reports that 
back-dating recovery to the time the fraud started can have significant 
financial as well as deterrent effect. 

 
The Council submitted data in 2009 and received 1,696 matches where a 
person was claiming/being awarded Council Tax Single Person Discount 
and more than one adult was registered on Electoral Registration system 
at the same property. There were also 303 matches relating to rising 
eighteen year olds. Of these matches 1,515 have been processed of 
which 54 were found to be fraudulent and a further 255 were errors. The 
resulting saving, to date, is £136,723.38. 
 
Data sets will be submitted to the Commission again in January 2010.  
The results are awaited and anticipated in March 2010. Local Taxation 
staff will be advised of this latest advice from the Audit Commission 
regarding recovering of previous year discounts. 

 
(3) Recruitment Fraud 

 
Their report warns of the dangers of employing people in posts when the 
applicant’s identify, qualifications, previous job history and criminal record 
status has not been thoroughly checked.  Possible consequences of such 
practice include the risk of harm to vulnerable people, employment with no 
right to work in the UK, cost of re-recruiting and training staff, costs of 
disciplinary action/suspension and dismissal, high levels of absence, low 
performance and fraudulent losses. 

 
Internal Audit is currently reviewing the Council's recruitment vetting 
procedures and benchmarking these with both best practice guidance 
(Internal Audit have also visited Waltham Forest Council to look at their 
vetting procedures) and good practice adopted elsewhere, via the West of 
England Chief Auditors’ Fraud Sub Group.  

  

Page 55



Strategic Fraud Update 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE Date: 26th January 2010 
 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nick Hobbs on Direct Dial No. 
01793 463940 or email nhobbs@swindon.gov.uk 
 

Impact of the Recession 
 

2.3.3 The Commission report also focuses on the impact the recession is having on 
the risk of fraud and concludes that the risk of fraud is likely to increase 
because of current pressures in the economy.  Higher demand for local 
authority services coupled with financial cut backs and efficiency drives may 
increase the incentive for some people to commit fraud at the same time as 
weakening controls which prevent, or detect fraud.  It is therefore vital that 
councils maintain strong and efficient defences against fraud to address this 
increased risk. 

 
2.3.4 Internal Audit is currently drafting a fraud risk assessment methodology that 

will support the current pro-active fraud-testing programme.  This risk 
assessment methodology will be based on best practice and include a review 
of the impact of fraud in the current economic climate.  Key managers across 
the Council will be consulted to ensure they engage with the need to manage 
effectively the fraud risks faced in their Directorate and ensure it provides a 
sound basis for pro-active fraud work in Internal Audit.  

 
2.3.5 Additionally, the Audit Committee should consider the merits of maintaining at 

least the current level of Internal Audit resource at this time of economic 
downturn. 

 
2.3.6 In the light of the above, careful consideration needs to be given to the level 

of Internal Audit resource that can and should be dedicated to fraud work in 
2010. 

 
 

Staying focussed 
 

2.3.7 The report also identifies several areas which could have significant financial 
or social impact if fraud occurs and recommends that councils should 
continue to remain focussed and review their arrangements to prevent fraud 
in these areas.  They are:  
z Housing and Council Tax Benefit  - due to the level of expenditure and 

level of identified overpayments made (fraudulent and otherwise) and the 
withdrawal of incentive schemes that have previously funded dedicated 
counter fraud teams in this area (see also paragraph 2.7 below). 

z Procurement - due to the level of expenditure and intelligence about the 
level and type of fraud in this area available to the Commission. 

z Social Care Direct Payments - the Commission acknowledge the 
significance associated with improved choice but also recognise that this 
might also provide fraudsters with an opportunity to misuse public funds. 

z Disabled Parking Badge Concessions - due to the number of blue badges 
in use in England (about 2.3million) and their research that they are worth 
approximately £500 each on the black market. Income losses for Councils 

Page 56



Strategic Fraud Update 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE Date: 26th January 2010 
 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nick Hobbs on Direct Dial No. 
01793 463940 or email nhobbs@swindon.gov.uk 
 

results as well as genuine holders of such badges being denied the 
parking facilities they are entitled to. 

z Insurance Claims - due to the level of bogus/inflated claims made - the UK 
insurance industry estimates that it loses more than £1.9 billion each year 
to this type of fraud. 

z Abuse of Position - the report recognises that local government officers 
are overwhelmingly honest however some serious frauds had been 
reported where weak internal controls had allowed individuals to abuse 
the trust placed in them. 

 
 Minimising Fraud Opportunities 
 

2.3.8 The report concludes that there is more that councils can do to minimise fraud 
opportunities including: 
z assessing the effectiveness of current arrangements to prevent and detect 

fraud.  A checklist is appended to the Audit Commission’s report and it is 
recommended that the Audit Committee consider the robustness of 
counter-fraud arrangements in the Council and how effective they are.  
The checklist has been reproduced at Appendix 1 along with relevant 
comments. 

z focussing on high risks (the Council's approach to the high risk areas is 
detailed above and in the checklist). 

z setting clear targets and monitoring the return from their investment in 
counter-fraud resources.  With the exception of housing benefit fraud, 
setting such targets is difficult.  We will liaise with colleagues in other 
authorities to try and establish best practice. 

z working with other organisations to reduce fraud and the harm it causes.  
Again, it is intended to raise this as an area for consideration by the West 
of England Chief Auditors’ Fraud Group to ensure the Council engages 
best practice in this area. 

 
 
2.4. Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Guidance - 

Managing the Risk of Fraud - Red Book 2 
 
2.4.1 Recognised by the Audit Commission as one of the most authoritative sources of 

guidance on countering fraud in the public sector, this addresses good practice in 
five key action areas as follows: 
z adopting the right strategy - specifically, ensuring local strategies align to 

the national fraud strategy and contribute to its success. 
z accurately identifying the risks - the Commission is re-introducing an 

annual fraud survey to provide a base to assist in fraud measurement and 
analysis 

Page 57



Strategic Fraud Update 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE Date: 26th January 2010 
 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nick Hobbs on Direct Dial No. 
01793 463940 or email nhobbs@swindon.gov.uk 
 

z creating and maintaining a strong structure - the Commission recognises 
the benefit of an effective Audit Committee in countering fraud as well as 
the advantages of working with others in a collaborative and concerted 
way. 

z taking action to tackle the problem - the Commission's report advises that 
a strong counter fraud culture is fundamental to reduce the harm caused 
by fraud and in gaining public confidence.  Anti-fraud, whistleblowing and 
money laundering polices should be reviewed and policy commitments in 
relation to counter fraud translate into action. 

z defining success - the Commission stress the need for counter-fraud 
teams to demonstrate their practical effectiveness and the contribution 
they make to preventing and detecting fraud by having clear targets and 
expected outcomes. 

 
2.4.2 A gap analysis of best practice suggested by the Cipfa Red Book against the 

Council's current practice is currently being completed.  Any necessary actions 
identified as a result of this work will be reported to the Audit Committee at a later 
date. 

 
 
2.5. National Fraud Initiative (data submitted in 2009, matches investigated 

2010) 
 
2.5.1 The Council, via Internal Audit, has again participated in the Audit Commission's 

National Fraud Initiative (NFI) as part of the statutory external audit 
requirements. The NFI brings together data from across the public sector 
including local authorities, NHS, the Home Office/other government departments 
and other agencies to detect “matches” i.e. anomalies in the data which may or 
may not be indicative of fraud, for further investigation.   

 
2.5.2 Since its launch in 1996, the NFI is reported to have identified fraud and 

overpayments totalling in excess of £450 million nationally.  
 
2.5.3 For the 2008/09 exercise, data sets in respect of the following sources were 

nationally obtained and matched: 
z Housing Benefit 
z Housing Tenancy 
z Student Loans  
z Payroll  
z Illegal immigrants 
z Individuals with no recourse to public funds 
z Pensions 
z Licence holders - Taxi Drivers, Market Traders and Alcohol 

Page 58



Strategic Fraud Update 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE Date: 26th January 2010 
 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nick Hobbs on Direct Dial No. 
01793 463940 or email nhobbs@swindon.gov.uk 
 

z Blue Badge Records 
z Deceased persons 
z Concessionary fares 
z Residential Care  
z Insurance 
z Creditor Records  

 
2.5.4 An update on the progress made in investigating matches was reported to the 

previous meeting of the Committee (see also 2.3.2(2) above). A further update 
will be provided at the March meeting. 

 
2.5.5 The Audit Commission intend to release their overall report of outcomes from NFI 

2008/09 in May 2010 and have extended this to the two interim matches 
regarding tenancies and local taxation discounts.  In November 2009, the Audit 
Commission released their proposed work programme and scale of fees for NFI 
2010. This will be confirmed in March 2010 with full instructions received during 
June 2010 and proposed data download dates in October 2010. 

 
 
2.6 Other Fraud Matters: 
 
 Use of Resources assessment 2008/09 
 
2.6.1 The Use of Resources assessment contains ten separate themes, one of which 

is ‘Internal Control’ (2.4). Within this theme there is a sub-theme that examines 
whether the Council has ‘A clear strategy and effective arrangements, including 
allocation of appropriate resources, to manage the risk of fraud and corruption’. 
The Audit Commission reported in their Use of Resources assessment for 
2008/09 that the theme of 2.4 scored a three (out of a maximum of four) 
indicating that the Council was performing well in this area.  

 
2.6.2 The 2009/10 Use of Resources assessment will be carried out during February 

and March 2010. 
 
 Raising Awareness of Fraud 
 
2.6.3 Several initiatives continue in an attempt to raise awareness of fraud issues.  For 

staff, there is a quarterly fraud bulletin that aims to alert them to current fraud 
issues and provide examples of real frauds that have taken place within the 
region.   

 
2.6.3 Regular use of the Council’s Core Brief is used to raise staff awareness of the 

Council’s anti-fraud and corruption strategy and whistleblowing policy. 
 
2.6.4 Internal Audit staff continues to make use of fraud awareness groups, both 

nationally and regionally, to maintain an awareness of frauds occurring that could 

Page 59



Strategic Fraud Update 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE Date: 26th January 2010 
 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nick Hobbs on Direct Dial No. 
01793 463940 or email nhobbs@swindon.gov.uk 
 

affect the Council.  Additionally, the Groups often share best practice in the fight 
against fraud.  Specifically, Internal Audit is an active member of the National 
Anti-fraud Network (NAFN), the West of England Fraud Group and the CIPFA 
Better Governance fraud forum. 

 
2.6.5 Internal Audit are rolling out a series of Fraud Awareness sessions for 

management teams concentrating on areas that the staff survey indicated had 
lower confidence levels in the Whistleblowing process. 

 
 Fraud Benchmarking and Fraud Statistics 
 
2.6.6 The annual Audit Commission survey was completed and submitted in 

December 2009.  The survey will be used as an additional source of information 
to inform Internal Audit’s proactive fraud work. 

 
2.6.7 In January 2009, the West of England Fraud Sub Group will be conducting a 

fraud benchmarking exercise that concentrates on identifying and comparing 
numbers and types of fraud and the amount of time spend on anti-fraud 
activities.  This will help to inform the Council's own assessment of fraud risk as 
well as give an indication of the effectiveness of our anti-fraud arrangements. 
The outcome of this benchmarking will be reported back to a future meeting of 
this committee. 

 
2.6.8 The following summary provides a brief summary of the levels of investigations 

undertaken by Internal Audit over the past few years. 
 
 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 

 (to Dec 09)
No. of Whistleblowing investigations 5 3 9 

No. of other investigations 10 12 10 

Total 15 15 19 
 
 Investigations Procedure Review 
 
2.6.9 Work is in progress with the Western Unitaries Audit Group (Bristol, Bath and 

North East Somerset, South Gloucestershire, North Somerset and Swindon) to 
develop a best practice approach for Internal Audit staff when investigating 
potential fraud.  Once it is finalised it will include procedures and documentation 
to ensure legal and best practice requirements are met during investigative work. 

 
 
2.7 Future Action 
 
2.7.1 Future action regarding anti-fraud and corruption work will be included in the 

updated Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy that will be presented at the March 
meeting of the Committee and in the annual audit plan. 

Page 60



Strategic Fraud Update 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE Date: 26th January 2010 
 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nick Hobbs on Direct Dial No. 
01793 463940 or email nhobbs@swindon.gov.uk 
 

2.8 Benefits Fraud Team 
 
2.8.1 The Benefit Fraud Team consists of 6 members made up of a Manager, Senior 

Investigator, 3 Investigators and a Technical Support Officer.  Currently the 
Investigators are a Contract Investigator and a Trainee Investigator, leaving one 
full time investigator.  

 
2.8.2 The Team investigates allegations of irregularity in the claims submitted from 

persons in receipt of Housing and Council Tax Benefit. These referrals come 
from a variety of sources, phone calls, letters, email, personal reports, and data 
matches from HBMS and the Audit Commission National Fraud Initiative. A 
proportion of the investigations involve joint working with the Fraud Team from 
Jobcentre Plus. 

 
2.8.3 Following the receipt of a referral there are office-based checks made both with 

in-house systems and the use of ‘legal Gateways’ with external agencies. The 
foremost of these being the National Anti-Fraud Network. 

 
2.8.4 Once it has been established that a potential offence has been made the 

claimant is invited to attend an Interview under caution. This is a formal tape-
recorded interview conducted in the same manner as the Police or other Law 
Enforcement Agencies. As the result of that interview a decision is made as to 
the disposal of the referral. 

 
2.8.5 The Benefit Fraud Team follows guidelines set down by the Department for Work 

Pensions as to Sanctions and Prosecutions. Depending on the financial loss to 
the Authority one of three Sanctions can be administered. Two are alternatives to 
Prosecution, which are Formal Cautions and Administrative Penalties. In the 
latter case the claimant is asked to accept a ‘fine’ of 30% of the total 
overpayment. In both cases the claimant does not receive a Criminal Record. 
Prosecutions are sought only for the more serious or high profile cases. A file of 
evidence is prepared and forwarded to the Solicitors Branch of the Department 
for Work and Pensions who will prosecute on behalf of the Council through the 
Criminal justice system. 

 
2.8.6 Since 1 April 2009 to the present date the Benefit Fraud Team has identified 

overpayments of Housing and Council Tax Benefit totalling £140,791. This is 
made up of 5 Prosecutions, 13 Administrative Penalties and 22 Formal Cautions.  

 
2.8.7 There have been 533 referrals made to the Team since the 1 April 2009 
 
2.8.8 The Fraud Manager is also an accredited Financial Investigator. This enables 

investigations to be conducted under the Proceeds of Crime Act 2003 to recover 
monies from criminal activity. There are a number of cases that are being 
prepared for submission to the Crown Court for Confiscation Orders to be made. 

 
 
 

Page 61



Strategic Fraud Update 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE Date: 26th January 2010 
 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nick Hobbs on Direct Dial No. 
01793 463940 or email nhobbs@swindon.gov.uk 
 

Alternative Options 
 
Not Applicable 
 

Risk Management 
Financial and Procurement Implications 
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report however 
individual audit reports address the suitability of internal controls within the 
systems examined.  
Legal/Human Rights Implications 
Internal Audit is a statutory requirement of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2006. The Internal Audit service also provides assurance to the Director of 
Finance regarding the requirements of Section 151 of the Local Government Act 
1972. 

Links to Corporate Plans and Policies (in particular to Swindon 2010 Promises) 
Internal Control, Audit Committee and the Statement on Internal Control all 
feature significantly in the CPA Use of Resources Assessment. Effective systems 
of internal control within the Council will help to ensure that the objectives set out 
in the Corporate Plan and Swindon 2010 are achieved. 

Consultees  
The Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) and the Director of Law and Democratic 
Services (Monitoring Officer) are consulted on all reports. 
 
Benefits Counter Fraud Manager 
 
 
Appendices / Background papers 
Appendix 1 – checklist taken for the Audit Commission publication: Protecting the Public 
Purse 
 
 
Key Decision/Decision in Forward Plan 
Not Applicable 

Page 62



Appendix 1 
 
Audit Commission - Protecting the Public Purse - Local Government Fighting Fraud 

September 2009 
 
Checklist For Those Responsible for Governance 
 
  Yes No In 

Part
Arrangements/ 

Action 
General 
1 Have we committed ourselves to 

zero tolerance? 
9   Anti-fraud and Corruption strategy sets out 

zero tolerance and the strategy is referred to 
in Financial Regulations. No specific 
mention of zero tolerance in the Code of 
Conduct. 

2 Do we have appropriate 
strategies, policies and plans? 

9   Whistleblowing Policy,  
Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy; and 
Money Laundering Policy are all in place. 

3 Do we have dedicated counter-
fraud resources? 

9   Benefits Fraud Team is a dedicated 
resource in the benefit fraud area.  Internal 
Audit team has proactive and reactive 
resource allocations but not specific to 
individuals. 

4 Do the resources cover all of the 
activities of our organisation? 

9   Internal Audit resources will cover all 
activities outside Benefit Fraud. 

5 Do we receive regular reports on 
fraud risks, plans and outcomes? 

9   Reports on progress against Whistleblowing 
cases reported to each Standards 
Committee. Ad-hoc reports to Audit 
Committee. Benefits Fraud Team report to 
Members Monitoring Group. Audit 
Committee approve the Internal Audit and 
the Head of Internal Audit’s Annual report. 

6 Have we assessed our 
management of counter-fraud 
resources against good practice? 

9   Further work being undertaken via 
assessment of the Cipfa ‘Red Book’ (jointly 
with the West of England Chief Auditors’ 
Fraud Group). CAA Use of Resources 
includes such a review and concluded 
positively (score of 3 for internal control 
theme). 

7 Do we raise awareness of fraud 
risks with: 
z new staff (including agency 

staff)? 
z existing staff? 
z Members? 

 
 
 
 
9 
9 

  
 
9 

Starters checklist refers to Council’s 
whistleblowing policy although nothing 
specific on fraud. 
 
Fraud bulletins issued quarterly and in core 
briefs. 

8 Do we join in appropriately with 
national, regional and local 
networks and partnerships to 
ensure we are up to date with 
current fraud risks and issues? 
 

9   NAFN, West of England Chief Auditors 
Group and Fraud Sub-Group, CIPFA Better 
Governance Forum. Western Unitaries Chief 
Internal Auditors Group. 

Page 63



  Yes No In 
Part

Arrangements/ 
Action 

9 Do we have working 
arrangements with relevant 
organisations to ensure effective 
sharing of knowledge and data 
about fraud? 

9   As 8 above. 
 

10 Do we identify areas where 
internal controls may not be 
performing as intended? 

9   As part of Internal Audit planned audits and 
if fraud experienced. 

11 Do we maximise the benefit of our 
participation in the Audit 
Commission NFI and receive 
reports on outcomes? 

9   See section 2.5 of the main report.  

Fighting Fraud in the Recession 
12 Have we reassessed our fraud 

risks because of the recession? 
  9 In progress. 

13 Have we amended our counter-
fraud action plan as a result? 

  9 In progress. 

14 Have we reallocated staffing as a 
result? 

  9 Audit plan for 2010 will consider any change 
in resource requirements. 

Some Current Risks and Issues 
15 Do we take effective action to 

ensure that social housing is 
allocated only to those in need? 

  9 Work in progress on NFI tenancy match and 
results of this work will inform this 
assessment. Choice Based Lettings audit to 
be followed up. 

16 Do we take effective action to 
ensure that social housing is 
occupied by those to whom it is 
allocated? 

  9 As above. 

17 Are we satisfied that payment 
controls are working as intended? 

9   Creditors audits suggest controls are 
satisfactory.   

18 Have we reviewed our contract 
letting procedures against the 
good practice guidance issued by 
the office of fair trading? 

  9 OFT guidance has not been reviewed. 
However, procedures are reviewed in light 
of any legal guidance or best practice issued 
by the Office of Government Commerce. 

19 Are we satisfied that our 
recruitment procedures are: 
z preventing employment of 

people working under false 
identities? 

z Validating employment 
references effectively? 

z Ensuring applicants are eligible 
to work in the UK? 

 
 
 

  
 
9 
 
 
9 
 
 
9 

Current audit of starters and leavers will 
establish current Council procedures. 
Currently benchmarking our procedures 
against best practice and the West of 
England fraud group. Actions identified from 
this work to be reported to the Director of 
HR and Change.  

20 Where we are moving to direct 
payments (for example, social 
care) have we introduced suitable 
and proportionate control 
arrangements in line with 

  9 Internal Audit have been providing advice 
around direct payments and supplied a risk-
based checking grid. 
 

Page 64



  Yes No In 
Part

Arrangements/ 
Action 

recommended practice? 
21 Are we effectively controlling the 

discounts and allowances we give 
to council tax payers? 

  9 Liaising with Directorate staff to review the 
arrangements. NFI hits on SPD have 
resulted in savings of £136k – see 2.3.2 (2) 
of main report. 

22 Are we satisfied that we are doing 
all that we can to tackle housing 
and council tax benefit fraud? 

9   HB Fraud Team work. 

23 Do we have a reporting 
mechanism that encourages our 
staff to raise their concerns of 
money laundering? 

9   Money Laundering Policy and reporting 
procedure in place   
 

Other Actions Recommended not Covered by the Above Checklist: 
A Councils should consider whether 

they have properly vetted staff 
already in post and take 
appropriate and risk-based action. 

 9  Working with the West of England Fraud 
Group to determine good practice. 

B Councils should test their whistle-
blowing arrangements against 
good practice guidance and 
ensure staff understand and trust 
them. 

9   Policy is in line with the British Standard. 
Will review in light of any findings from the 
review of the CIPFA Red Book and Audit 
Commission Guidance. 

C Councils should set clear targets 
and expected outcomes for the 
work of counter fraud teams. 

  9 No targets set. Will liaise with colleagues 
from the West of England Chief Auditors’ 
Fraud Group to try and establish best 
practice. 

 

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Anti-Fraud & Corruption Strategy and Whistleblowing Procedure  
 

Audit Committee  26 January 2010 
 

 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nick Hobbs on 
01793 463940 or Email nhobbs@swindon.gov.uk 

 
Author: Monitoring Officer and 

Head of Internal Audit 
 
Parish / Wards Affected: All 
 

 

Purpose 
 
To inform Members that the Monitoring Officer and Head of Internal Audit will be 
reviewing the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy, Whistleblowing Policy and Fraud 
Response Plan in consultation with relevant parties. Any comments from Members on 
the Strategy and associated documents would be welcome  
 

 
 

Recommendation 
 

• That Audit Committee review the strategy, whistleblowing policy and fraud 
response plan and make any recommendations regarding any necessary 
changes. 

 

 
 
1. Reasons 
 

1.1 To ensure that the Council’s Policies on Anti-Fraud and Corruption and 
Whistleblowing are up-to-date and reflect best practice. 

 
1.2 To ensure that Members and officers are made aware of how to identify 

the types of fraud, how it occurs, indicators of potential fraud and how to 
respond if it is discovered. 

 
2. Detail 

2.1 The Council controls millions of pounds of public money and takes very 
seriously the high expectations of the public and the degree of scrutiny to 
which the affairs of the Council are subject. 

 
2.2 In carrying out its functions and responsibilities the Council wishes to 

promote a culture of openness and fairness and expects that elected 
members and employees at all levels will adopt the highest standards of 
propriety and accountability. The Council also wishes to promote a zero-
tolerance to fraud and corruption. Proper accountability, achieved through 
probity, internal control and honest administration is therefore essential. 

 
2.3 The Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy sets out measures designed to 

frustrate any attempted fraudulent or corrupt acts and the steps to be 
taken if such action occurs. 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 67



Anti-Fraud & Corruption Strategy and Whistleblowing Procedure  
 

Audit Committee  26 January 2010 
 

 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nick Hobbs on 
01793 463940 or Email nhobbs@swindon.gov.uk 

2.4 The Council’s Whistleblowing Policy supports the Strategy and makes it 
clear that concerns can be raised without the fear of reprisals. It is 
intended to encourage and enable employees, Members and Governors 
to raise serious concerns within the Council, irrespective of seniority, rank 
or status, rather than overlooking a problem or reporting the matter 
externally. 

 
2.5 The Internal Audit section have also developed a Fraud Response Plan 

and Fraud Awareness Guide that is being rolled out to relevant Members 
and staff during 2010. 

 
2.6 All of the above documents are attached as appendices. 
 
2.7 Internal Audit is also working closely with colleagues in Bristol, South 

Gloucestershire, Bath and North East Somerset and North Somerset to 
develop a Fraud Investigation toolkit. Once drafted this will also be 
brought to a future meeting of Standards Committee. 

 
2.8 The Monitoring Officer and the Head of Internal Audit will be reviewing 

these documents in consultation with relevant parties and will report back 
to the next meeting of this Committee on the findings of the review.  

 
 
Alternative Options 
None 
 

 

Risk Management  
 
Financial and Procurement Implications 
• There are no direct financial or procurement implications. The cost of carrying out 

any investigations is currently borne by the Monitoring Officer or Internal Audit’s 
budget.  

 
Legal / Human Rights Implications 
• The policies and procedures have been written to take account of the Public 

Interest Disclosure Act 1998 and takes account of other relevant legislation such 
as the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000, the Local Government Act 
1972 and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003. 

 
Links to Corporate Plans and Policies (in particular to Swindon 2010 Promises) 
• The outcome of complaints links with the theme ‘Council for the Future’ and the 

wish to improve the Council’s performance and ensure that the Council’s corporate 
governance system are considered to be accountable, effective and transparent 
(Objective 1).  

 

 

Page 68



Anti-Fraud & Corruption Strategy and Whistleblowing Procedure  
 

Audit Committee  26 January 2010 
 

 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nick Hobbs on 
01793 463940 or Email nhobbs@swindon.gov.uk 

 
 
Consultees 
• The Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) and Director of Law and Democratic 

Services (Monitoring Officer) are consulted in respect of all reports. 
 
 
Background Papers and Appendices 
• Appendix 1: Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy 
• Appendix 2: Whistleblowing Policy 
• Appendix 3: Fraud Response Plan 
 
 
 

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



SWINDON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 
 

ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION  
 

STRATEGY 
 

 

 

Reviewed: January 2009 
  
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 71



Contents  

 
 Page Number 

Introduction – why do we need a strategy? 1 

Links to strategic objectives 1 

What are Fraud and Corruption? 2 

Objectives of the strategy 2 

Adopting the right strategy 3 

Accurately identifying the risks 3 

Creating and maintaining a strong structure 4 

Taking action to tackle the problem 6 

Defining Success 8 

Keeping ahead 9 

Action Plan 10 

  

Appendix 1: Whistleblowing Policy  

Appendix 2: Fraud Response Plan   

  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 72



 

January 2009 1 Swindon Borough Council
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
Swindon Borough Council controls millions of pounds of public money and takes very 
seriously the high expectations of the public and the degree of scrutiny to which the affairs of 
the Council are subject.   
 
In carrying out its functions and responsibilities the Council wishes to promote a culture of 
openness and fairness and expects that elected members and employees at all levels will 
adopt the highest standards of propriety and accountability. Proper accountability, achieved 
through probity, internal control and honest administration is therefore essential. 
 
Although the Council has a good reputation for integrity and honesty things may go wrong 
and, in case they do, we must have procedures for combating fraudulent or improper 
attempts to obtain assets or services.  
 
The Council needs to maintain constant vigilance in order to safeguard the resources to 
which we are entrusted and protect our reputation. We must raise awareness, deter and 
identify fraud and, at the same time, provide mechanisms for employees to raise legitimate 
concerns when they feel justified, hence, the need for this strategy. 
 
The principle outlined in this strategy apply to Members and all employees of the Council 
including school based staff and they demonstrate, to the community of Swindon, our 
commitment to the prevention, detection and investigation of all forms of fraud and corruption 
wherever it is found. 
 
The Council also expects the same level of commitment from all outside individuals and 
organisations, including partners and contractors and claimants ensuring that they act 
towards the Council with honesty and integrity. 
 
 
LINKS TO STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
 
The Council has adopted a Corporate Plan for the period 2006/10. This is called ‘Making 
Swindon the UK’s Best Business Location’. The plan identifies seven corporate priorities for 
this period of which three are partly dependent on strong anti-fraud and corruption 
arrangements i.e. 

• To deliver excellent services – there is a continuing drive towards ensuring people 
from all of Swindon’s communities experience excellent services. 

• To transform the performance and effectiveness of the organisation – the 
Council is focussing on service excellence, customer first, modern workforce and 
value for money. 

• To make the best use of resources – through a programme of efficiency reviews, 
implementing a new value for money programme and benchmarking of costs, quality 
and effectiveness. 

 
Delivering excellent services requires obtaining value for money and ensuring that there are 
strong arrangements in place to combat fraud and corruption so that public confidence in the 
Council is maintained. 
 
 
 

Page 73



 

January 2009 2 Swindon Borough Council
 

WHAT ARE FRAUD AND CORRUPTION 
 
Fraud – the Fraud Act 2006 establishes a new general offence of fraud that can be 
committed in three ways – by false representation, by failing to disclose information and by 
abuse of position. It also establishes a number of specific offences to assist in the fight 
against fraud – these include an offence of possessing articles for use in fraud and an 
offence of making or supplying articles for use in fraud.  

• Fraud by false representation: a person is in breach of this section if this is done 
dishonestly and there is intent, by making the representation, to make a gain for 
himself or another; or to cause or expose the risk of loss to another. 

• Fraud by failing to disclose information:  a person is in breach of this section if he 
dishonestly fails to disclose to another person information which he is under a legal 
duty to disclose; and intends by failing to do so, make a gain for himself or another; or 
to cause or expose the risk of loss to another. 

• Fraud by abuse of position: a person is in breach of this section if he occupies a 
position in which he is expected to safeguard, or not to act against, the financial 
interests of another person; dishonestly abuses that position with the intention to make 
a gain for himself or another; or to cause or expose the risk of loss to another. 
 

Theft is defined in the 1968 Theft Act, as ‘a person shall be guilty of theft if he dishonestly 
appropriates property belonging to another with the intention of permanently depriving the 
other of it’. 
 
Corruption – is the offering, giving, soliciting or acceptance of an inducement or reward that 
may influence the actions taken by the audited body, its members or officers. 
 
 
OBJECTIVES OF THE STRATEGY 
 
The Council’s objectives for its Anti-Fraud Strategy for 2008-2011 are to maintain minimal 
losses through fraud and corruption and embed management of fraud risk within the culture 
of the organisation. The intention is to achieve this by implementing the CIPFA Fraud 
Standards that state that the foundations of an effective anti-fraud framework comprise five 
key elements:  

• Adopting the right strategy  
• Accurately identifying the risks 
• Creating and maintaining a strong structure 
• Taking action to tackle the problem 
• Defining success 

 
The next section of this strategy document outlines each of the CIPFA fraud standards and 
assesses how each of these will be delivered.  Key activities that will be taken forward in the 
Action plan for 2008-2011 are highlighted; the Action plan also includes actions that seek to 
introduce other elements of best practice from the Use of Resources Key Lines of Enquiry for 
2008 and 2009 and other local authorities. 
 

 
 

Page 74



 

January 2009 3 Swindon Borough Council
 

ADOPTING THE RIGHT STRATEGY 
 
To reduce losses to fraud and corruption to an absolute minimum, a strategic approach is 
required with a clear remit covering all areas of fraud and corruption affecting the 
organisation.   The Council’s anti-fraud and corruption strategy is linked to its strategic 
objectives and describes outcomes against which to evaluate its effectiveness. The strategy 
meets the requirements of the Use of Resources Key Line of Enquiry for 2009 and also the 
Cipfa Better Governance Forum guidance ‘Managing the risk of Fraud: actions to counter 
fraud and corruption’. The strategy has also been updated to reflect the changes introduced 
by the Fraud Act 2006.   
 
The Council’s Whistleblowing Policy, which is an appendix to this strategy, also complies with 
best practice and the British Standard on Whistleblowing. 
 
The Council adopts a zero tolerance to acts of fraud and corruption and will pursue in 
accordance with the ‘Sanctions and Redress’ section of this strategy. 
  
Additionally, there needs to be a clear understanding of the importance of the links between 
policy work (to develop an anti-fraud and corruption culture, create a strong deterrent effect 
and prevent fraud and corruption by designing and redesigning policies and systems) and 
operational work (to detect and investigate fraud and corruption and seek to apply sanctions 
and recover losses where they are found).  
 
The temptation may be to ‘pick and choose’ actions. However, the full range of integrated 
action must be taken forward with the organisation’s focus clearly on outcomes (i.e. reduced 
losses) and not just activity (i.e. the number of investigations, prosecutions, etc). 
 
 
ACCURATELY IDENTIFYING THE RISKS 
 
Measuring the level of illicit activity is inherently difficult, however this must be done where 
practicable.  Through measuring the problem of fraud and learning from where it is detected 
and how systems are penetrated, we can gain knowledge of where it is necessary to 
strengthen or introduce systems.   
 
Both Internal Audit and the Council’s Housing Benefits Fraud Team carry out pro-active 
counter fraud and corruption work, based on an assessment of risk.  Measuring the potential 
risk exposure will be key to developing this informed approach. 
 
Internal Audit is a member of the West of England Chief Auditors Group and is an active 
member of the Fraud sub-group. The Fraud sub-group allows for the exchange of best 
practice, experiences of recent frauds/scams, shared training programmes and the 
opportunity to benchmark etc. This is a valuable source of information in identifying the risks 
of fraud. 
 
The Council is also a member of the Cipfa Better Governance Forum that issues guidance, 
best practice etc. in the area of counter fraud and corruption arrangements. The Forum 
issues weekly newsletters that identifies potential risk issues and has also developed a 
training programme that covers counter fraud issues. 
 
 

Page 75



 

January 2009 4 Swindon Borough Council
 

 
CREATING AND MAINTAINING A STRONG STRUCTURE 
 
Authority  
 
The responsibility for an anti-fraud culture is the joint duty of all those involved in giving 
political direction, determining policy and management. The Standards Committee and the 
Audit Committee are key member forums for ensuring sufficient authority is given to anti-
fraud activity.  
 
Corporate Board own the fraud strategy and are responsible for ensuring a strong counter 
fraud culture within their Group Directorates, and that staff accept that they are responsible 
for preventing and detecting fraud and corruption. 
 
All Group Directors and Directors are required to sign annual governance assurance 
statements that include reference to the assessment of the risk of fraud and internal control 
arrangements within their directorates. 
   
In order for the Council to deal robustly and effectively with suspected incidents of fraud, 
those responsible for investigating matters must be fully supported by all officers. 
 
Culture 
 
The Audit Commission, in its annual survey and report on fraud and corruption in the Public 
Sector (“Protecting the Public Purse”), has highlighted the need for Members and senior 
officers to create an anti-fraud culture and environment within the organisation.  The fight 
against fraud and corruption can only truly be effective where these acts are seen as anti-
social, unacceptable behaviour and Whistleblowing is perceived as a public-spirited action. 
 
The culture of the Council is one of openness and the Council is committed to sound 
corporate governance, and supports the general principles as set out in The Relevant 
Authorities (General Principles) Order 2001 i.e. 

• Selflessness 
• Honesty and Integrity 
• Objectivity 
• Accountability 
• Openness 

• Personal judgement 
• Respect for others 
• Duty to uphold the law 
• Stewardship 
• Leadership 

 
By establishing a Standards Committee the Council has reinforced this culture. The 
Standards Committee report to the Council: 

• When it considers standards of conduct and behaviour in a particular area need 
reviewing; and 

• When it feels the level of commitment necessary to resolve these difficulties should be 
greater 
 

Concerns must be raised when members, or employees, reasonably believe that one or 
more of the following has occurred, is in the process of occurring, or is likely to occur: 

• A criminal offence 
• A failure to comply with statutory or legal obligation 

Page 76



 

January 2009 5 Swindon Borough Council
 

• Improper unauthorised use of public or other funds 
• A miscarriage of justice 
• Maladministration, misconduct or malpractice 
• Endangering of an individuals health and safety 
• Damage to the environment 
• Deliberate concealment of any of the above 

 
The Council will ensure that any allegations received in any way including by anonymous 
letters or telephone calls will be taken seriously and investigated in an appropriate manner. 
 
The Council will deal firmly with those who defraud the Council, or are corrupt, or where there 
has been financial malpractice. There is a need to ensure that any investigation process is 
not misused and, therefore, any abuse (such as employees raising malicious allegations) 
may be dealt with as a disciplinary manner. 
 
When fraud and corruption has occurred due to a breakdown in the Council’s systems or 
procedures, senior managers will ensure that appropriate improvements in systems of control 
are implemented in order to prevent a re-occurrence. 
 
The actions outlined in the action plan aim to help the Council to continue to ensure that the 
culture and tone of the organisation will continue to be one of honestly and opposition to 
fraud and corruption.   
 
Safe Recruitment 
 
The Council recognises that one of the most important aspects in relation to the prevention of 
fraud and corruption is the recruitment of staff.  The Council already seeks to: 

• Obtain satisfactory references before appointments are made 
• Verify and retain copies of certificates for stated qualifications 
• Comply with s.8 of the Asylum and Immigration Act 1999  
• Undertake checks with the Criminal Records Bureau, where appropriate for the post  
• Compliance with other Codes of Practice (e.g. OFSTED) for staff dealing with 

vulnerable service users 
 
Training and Staff Development 
 
As part of the annual review of the mechanisms to prevent and detect fraud, training and 
appropriate skills and expertise will need to be developed.  Both officers involved in anti-fraud 
work, and general operations, will need to develop appropriate knowledge and skills in 
respect of fraud awareness, prevention, detection and investigation. 
 
The Council will ensure that key anti-fraud staff have in place an appropriate personal 
development and training plan that will ensure that they have the right competency levels to 
prevent, identify and investigate fraud.  
 
The Council will also consider the need to provide ‘fraud risk awareness’ training to groups of 
Officers, this may consist of general fraud awareness, or specific fraud awareness training 
such as case handling and IT crime; this may be provided internally, on-line, or be procured 
externally. 

Page 77



 

January 2009 6 Swindon Borough Council
 

 
Such courses may include:  

• Pre-employment screening 
• Interviewing skills 
• Money laundering 
• Identity Fraud 
• Fraud Identification and Prevention 
• Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 
• Data Protection Act 

 
Relationships with other organisations 
 
Arrangements need be put into place to encourage the exchange of information about fraud 
and corruption between the Council and other public agencies.  Any such exchange of 
information will be undertaken in accordance with the principles contained in the Data 
Protection Act 1998. 
 
These public agencies may include:  

• Police 
• Local, Regional and National Auditor Networks 
• The National Anti-Fraud Network 
• Audit Commission (NFI etc.) 
• External Auditor (Audit Commission) 
• Office of Fair Trading 
• Department of Work and Pensions 
• Health Service 
• District Councils 
• Other key partners such as Capita, LAA partners etc. 

 
Protocols will be developed with key partners for the sharing of information and for the 
reporting and investigating of any allegations made. 
 
 
TAKING ACTION TO TACKLE THE PROBLEM 
 
Deterrence 
 
There are a number of ways to deter potential fraudsters from committing, or attempting 
fraudulent or corrupt acts, whether they are internal or external to the Council.  These 
include, but are not limited to:   

• Publicising the fact that the Council is firmly set against fraud and corruption and 
stating this at every opportunity 

• Acting robustly and decisively when fraud and corruption are suspected and proven 
• Taking action to effect maximum recoveries for the Council 

Page 78



 

January 2009 7 Swindon Borough Council
 

• Informing the Council’s Press Office where cases of fraud and corruption against the 
Council are referred for criminal proceedings and subsequently brought to court, with 
a view to issuing a press release 

• Having sound internal control systems which allow for innovation but do not provide 
the opportunity for fraud and corruption 

• When designing new systems or reviewing existing ones ensuring that the possibility 
of fraud and corruption is considered and apparent weaknesses are removed/reduced. 

 
Prevention 
 
There is an important role to be played in the prevention of fraud and corruption by managers 
within all services.  It is vital that managers understand the importance of soundly designed 
systems which meet key control objectives and minimise the opportunities for fraud and 
corruption.  They are responsible for assessing the potential for fraud and corruption within 
their own Service’s activities and for implementing appropriate strategies to reduce this risk.   
 
To this end, Internal Audit and Risk Management endeavours to provide appropriate advice 
to service Managers to ensure that they are fully aware of the need to give sufficient 
emphasis to the preventative aspects of fraud and corruption work. Internal Audit issue Fraud 
Bulletins on a regular basis informing staff of recent frauds and scams that have occurred in 
both the public and private arenas. Fraud Alerts are also issued where a particular issue has 
arisen that requires immediate attention. 
 
Internal audit anti-fraud work plan 
 
As well as furthering the corporate actions identified in the accompanying action plan, a plan 
for Anti-Fraud work is produced by Internal Audit. This work is included in the annual internal 
audit plan. The areas selected for review are those fraud risk scenarios and activities that are 
assessed as being at high risk. 
 
Detection 
 
It is often the alertness of employees or members that enables detection to occur. 
 
Under our Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy, employees must report any suspected cases of 
fraud and corruption to the appropriate manager, or if necessary, directly to the Head of 
Internal Audit.  Reporting cases in this way is essential to the anti-fraud and corruption 
strategy and ensures that:  

• Suspected cases of fraud and corruption are investigated properly 
• The fraud response plan is carried out properly 
• People and our interests are protected 

 
The Council’s Whistleblowing Policy is intended to encourage and enable employees to raise 
serious concerns. The Council has a dedicated, secure Whistleblowing hotline telephone 
number that is advertised widely across the Council through both poster campaigns and 
articles in the Core Brief etc. 
 
The Council participates in the biennial National Fraud Initiative and detects certain types of 
fraud by this means.   
 

Page 79



 

January 2009 8 Swindon Borough Council
 

Investigation 
 
Depending on the nature and anticipated extent of the allegation(s), the Head of Internal 
Audit will normally work closely with management and other agencies, such as the Police, to 
ensure that the allegation(s) are properly investigated, reported and where appropriate, 
maximum recoveries are achieved. 
 
The follow-up of any allegation of fraud and corruption received will be through the agreed 
procedures of the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy, the Fraud Response Plan and 
Disciplinary Procedures.  The Council must also adhere to the provisions of the Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act and Money Laundering Legislation. 
 
Where a fraud has occurred, management must take any necessary changes to systems and 
procedures to ensure that similar frauds will not recur.  Any investigation undertaken may 
highlight where these has been a failure of supervision or a breakdown/absence of control.  
Any lessons learnt will be disseminated to all relevant sections.  
 
Sanctions and Redress 
 
After any investigation, sanctions should be applied where fraud and corruption are proven to 
be present. This should be done in a comprehensive, consistent and proportionate manner 
with all possible sanctions – disciplinary, civil and criminal – considered. Success rates need 
to be monitored routinely as an indicator and part of the quality process. The organization 
should be effective in recovering any losses incurred to fraud and corruption using, as 
appropriate, criminal and/or civil law. 
 
Methods of recovery include, but are not confined to: 

• Recovery of pension contributions from employees who are members of the Pension 
Fund 

• An assessment of what assets an employee or third party who has committed fraud 
has and whether the losses incurred by the County Council can be recovered 

• Bankruptcy - if it is believed an individual has a poor history of paying 
• If an individual remains an employee of the County Council any assessed losses can 

be recovered from future salary payments 
 
 
DEFINING SUCCESS 
 
Activity should not be confused with outcomes. The focus should always be fixed firmly on 
the clear outcomes described above for work to counter fraud and corruption. It is important 
that these relate to the actual sums lost to fraud and corruption rather than to the activity 
around it. This is no different from a commercial organization focusing on profit rather than 
turnover.  
 
While activity can give an organisation the air of being busy – and, therefore, successful – 
what matters is the bottom line. Preventing fraud prevents losses – losses that can be 
directed into core business.  
Only a comprehensive and professional approach to countering fraud and corruption can fully 
protect an organisation’s valuable resources.  
 

Page 80



 

January 2009 9 Swindon Borough Council
 

KEEPING AHEAD  
 
In order to try and stay one step ahead of the fraud to which the Council may be exposed, it 
will be necessary to undertake a regular review of national developments and strengthen 
systems and procedures.  Key sources of information that will be used to inform the ongoing 
continuous improvement of the Anti-Fraud Strategy will be:   
 

• Audit Commission Publications – in particular: 
 National Fraud Initiative Newsletters 
 Audit Commission Fraud Reports 
 Protecting the Public Purse 
 ICT Fraud and Abuse 

 
• HM Treasury Publications – in particular: 

 Annual Fraud Reports 
 

• CIPFA Better Governance Forum (IPF) 
 Weekly Newsletters 

 
• National Anti-Fraud Network 

 Strategic Risk Assessment – Local Authority Fraud 
 Ongoing Alerts on website 

 
• West of England Chief Auditors Group (Unitary and County Councils) Fraud sub-group 

 Benchmarking 
 Shared training programme 
 Exchange of information on recent frauds and scams 

 
• KPMG Forensic 

 Fraud Risk Management publications

Page 81



 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
09

 
10

S
w

in
do

n 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
C

ou
nc

il 
 

A
nt

i-F
ra

ud
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 –
 2

00
9 

 

R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
D

ea
dl

in
e 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

A
D

O
PT

IN
G

 T
H

E 
R

IG
H

T 
ST

R
A

TE
G

Y 

1.
1 

In
cl

ud
e 

ex
pl

ic
it 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 th
e 

ris
k 

of
 fr

au
d 

an
d 

co
rru

pt
io

n 
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

tra
te

gy
. 

 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
09

 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
er

 

1.
2 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 F

ra
ud

 R
is

k 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t t
o 

in
fo

rm
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it’

s 
an

ti-
fra

ud
 a

nd
 

co
rru

pt
io

n 
pr

oa
ct

iv
e 

w
or

k.
 

 

Ju
ne

 2
00

9 
H

ea
d 

of
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

1.
3 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
e 

th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 a
nt

i-f
ra

ud
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

on
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 b
as

is
. 

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

09
 

H
ea

d 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
 

A
C

C
U

R
A

TE
LY

 ID
EN

TI
FY

IN
G

 R
IS

K
S 

2.
1 

R
ev

ie
w

 te
ch

ni
qu

es
 fo

r m
ea

su
rin

g 
fra

ud
 a

nd
 c

or
ru

pt
io

n 
lo

ss
es

 a
nd

 a
ss

es
s 

ap
pl

ic
ab

ilit
y 

to
 S

w
in

do
n.

 
 

A
ug

us
t 2

00
9 

H
ea

d 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
 

 

2.
2 

Id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

pr
ov

en
 re

co
rd

 o
f a

ct
ua

l a
m

ou
nt

s 
lo

st
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
fo

r 
re

co
ve

ry
 p

ro
ce

ed
in

gs
. 

 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
9 

P
rin

ci
pa

l A
ud

ito
r 

C
R

EA
TI

N
G

 A
N

D
 M

A
IN

TA
IN

IN
G

 A
 S

TR
O

N
G

 S
TR

U
C

TU
R

E 
 

3.
1 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 C
or

po
ra

te
 B

oa
rd

, S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 a
nd

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
ap

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
fin

al
 F

ra
ud

 S
tra

te
gy

. 
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
09

 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f L
aw

 a
nd

 
D

em
oc

ra
tic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

3.
2 

In
cl

ud
e 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 m
ea

su
re

s 
ta

ke
n 

to
 c

ou
nt

er
 fr

au
d 

an
d 

co
rr

up
tio

n 
in

 A
nn

ua
l 

D
ire

ct
or

s 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 m

ad
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
al

l s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 th

ei
r r

es
po

ns
ib

ilit
ie

s 
in

 th
is

 a
re

a.
 

 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
09

 
H

ea
d 

of
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

Page 82



 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
09

 
11

S
w

in
do

n 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
C

ou
nc

il 
 

R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
D

ea
dl

in
e 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

3.
3 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

p 
fo

rm
al

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 w
ith

 k
ey

 p
ar

tn
er

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 h

ea
lth

 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
ot

he
r L

A
A

 p
ar

tn
er

s,
 C

ap
ita

 e
tc

. t
o 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
th

e 
ex

ch
an

ge
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 n
at

io
na

l a
nd

 lo
ca

l f
ra

ud
 a

nd
 c

or
ru

pt
io

n 
ac

tiv
ity

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 a

ffe
ct

 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y.

  

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

9 
 

H
ea

d 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
 

3.
4 

D
ev

el
op

 p
ro

to
co

ls
 fo

r t
he

 re
po

rti
ng

 a
nd

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
of

 a
lle

ga
tio

ns
 re

la
tin

g 
to

 
fra

ud
 o

r c
or

ru
pt

io
n.

 
Ju

ly
 2

00
9 

H
ea

d 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 

TA
K

IN
G

 A
C

TI
O

N
 T

O
 T

A
C

K
LE

 T
H

E 
PR

O
B

LE
M

  
4.

1 
D

ev
el

op
, p

ub
lic

is
e 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

 c
ou

nt
er

 fr
au

d 
pa

ge
 o

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 in

tra
ne

t, 
to

 in
cl

ud
e:

 
� 

C
ou

nt
er

 F
ra

ud
 S

tra
te

gy
,  

� 
C

on
fid

en
tia

l R
ep

or
tin

g 
(W

hi
st

le
bl

ow
in

g)
 P

ol
ic

y,
  

� 
Th

ef
t F

ra
ud

 a
nd

 C
or

ru
pt

io
n 

R
es

po
ns

e 
P

la
n 

� 
M

on
ey

 L
au

nd
er

in
g 

P
ol

ic
y 

� 
Fe

ed
ba

ck
 fo

rm
 

� 
H

ow
 to

 re
po

rt 
su

sp
ic

io
n 

of
 fr

au
d 

� 
C

on
ta

ct
 d

et
ai

ls
 fo

r I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
an

d 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
9

P
rin

ci
pa

l A
ud

ito
r 

4.
2 

D
ef

in
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 u

p 
to

 d
at

e 
po

lic
ie

s 
in

 re
sp

ec
t o

f S
af

e 
R

ec
ru

itm
en

t. 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
9 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f H

R
 a

nd
 C

ha
ng

e 
/ P

rin
ci

pa
l A

ud
ito

r 

4.
3 

Id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

gr
ou

p 
of

 p
os

ts
, w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r f
ra

ud
 a

nd
 re

vi
ew

 n
ee

d 
fo

r C
R

B
 c

he
ck

s 
to

 b
e 

un
de

rta
ke

n.
 

 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

9 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f H
R

 a
nd

 C
ha

ng
e 

/ P
rin

ci
pa

l A
ud

ito
r 

4.
4 

In
cl

ud
e 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 W
hi

st
le

bl
ow

in
g 

in
 S

ta
ff 

S
ur

ve
y 

to
 te

st
 th

e 
co

nf
id

en
ce

 in
 

th
es

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
.  

  
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
9

H
ea

d 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
 

4.
5 

D
ev

el
op

 o
ng

oi
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 a

nt
i-f

ra
ud

 a
ud

its
 - 

a 
cy

cl
ic

al
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 

ad
dr

es
s 

ar
ea

s 
w

he
re

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 m

os
t v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
to

 fr
au

d 
an

d 
co

rru
pt

io
n.

 
 

A
pr

il 
20

09
 

H
ea

d 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 

4.
6 

D
ev

el
op

 w
ar

ni
ng

 s
ig

ns
 re

fe
re

nc
e 

lis
t f

or
 a

ud
ito

r u
se

 in
 re

vi
ew

s.
 

 
Ju

ne
 2

00
9 

P
rin

ci
pa

l A
ud

ito
r 

Page 83



 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
09

 
12

S
w

in
do

n 
Bo

ro
ug

h 
C

ou
nc

il 
 

R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
D

ea
dl

in
e 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

4.
7 

C
as

ca
de

 th
e 

Fr
au

d 
R

es
po

ns
e 

P
la

n 
to

 re
le

va
nt

 s
ta

ff.
 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9

P
rin

ci
pa

l A
ud

ito
r 

4.
8 

R
ev

ie
w

 e
xi

st
in

g 
an

ti-
fra

ud
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

re
la

te
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
ey

 a
re

 
co

m
pl

ia
nt

 w
ith

 le
ga

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 w

he
th

er
 th

ey
 a

re
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

ly
 ro

bu
st

 in
 

re
sp

ec
t o

f s
an

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 re

dr
es

s.
 

 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
09

 
H

ea
d 

of
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

 

4.
9 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

nn
ua

l r
ev

ie
w

s 
of

 s
an

ct
io

ns
 le

vi
ed

, r
ed

re
ss

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
an

d 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 in
 c

as
es

 w
he

re
 fr

au
d 

an
d 

co
rr

up
tio

n 
ar

e 
pr

ov
ed

 
to

 b
e 

pr
es

en
t, 

w
ith

 a
 v

ie
w

 to
 re

po
rti

ng
 to

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

nd
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
s.

 
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

9 
P

rin
ci

pa
l A

ud
ito

r 

D
EF

IN
IN

G
 S

U
C

C
ES

S 
 

5.
1 

D
ev

el
op

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
ea

su
re

s 
fo

r t
hi

s 
ar

ea
. 

 
Ju

ne
 2

00
9 

H
ea

d 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 

5.
2 

R
ep

or
t t

he
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

on
 a

ct
iv

ity
 a

ga
in

st
 th

is
 s

tra
te

gy
 o

n 
an

 a
nn

ua
l b

as
is

. 
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

9 
H

ea
d 

of
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

 

Page 84



APPENDIX 1 

SWINDON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

DISCLOSURE  
(‘WHISTLEBLOWING’)  

POLICY 
 

Reviewed: JANUARY 2009 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 85



 

Contents  

 
 Page 

Number 

1.    Introduction  1 

2.    Aims and Scope of Policy 1 

3.    Safeguards 2 

4.    How to raise a concern 3 

5.    How the Council will respond 4 

6.    How the matter can be taken further 5 

7.    The Monitoring Officer 6 

8.    The Law 6 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

Page 86



Disclosure ‘Whistleblowing’ Policy 
 

January 2009 1 Swindon Borough Council
 

 

 
1.1  Employees, Members and School Governors are often the first to realise that 

there may be something seriously wrong within the Council. However, they may 
not express concerns because they feel that speaking up would be disloyal to 
their colleagues or to the Council. They may also fear harassment or 
victimisation. In these circumstances, it may be easier to ignore the concern 
rather than report what may just be a suspicion of malpractice. 

  
1.2  The Council is committed to the highest possible standards of openness, probity 

and accountability. In line with that commitment, we encourage employees and 
others with serious concerns about any aspect of the Council's work to come 
forward and voice those concerns. It is recognised that certain cases will have to 
proceed on a confidential basis. This policy document makes it clear that staff 
can do so without fear of reprisals. This Disclosure Policy is intended to 
encourage and enable staff to raise serious concerns within the Council rather 
than overlooking a problem or blowing the whistle outside.  

 
1.3  This Disclosure Policy has been devised in accordance with the provisions of the 

Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 and the recent British Standard Institute 
Code of Practice regarding Whistleblowing arrangements, and seeks to bring 
into the open concerns of the staff and public relating to issues concerning 
dishonesty involving the Council.  

 
1.4  This policy supports the Council's Anti Fraud and Corruption Policy, and makes it 

clear that concerns can be raised without fear of reprisals. It is intended to 
encourage and enable employees, Members and Governors to raise serious 
concerns within the Council, irrespective of seniority, rank or status, rather than 
overlooking a problem or reporting the matter externally.  

 
 

2. Aims and Scope of the Policy 
 
2.1  This policy aims to:  

• Provide avenues for staff to raise concerns and receive feedback on any 
action taken;  

• Allow staff to take the matter further if they are dissatisfied with the Council's 
response; and  

• Reassure staff that they will be protected from reprisals or victimisation for 
whistleblowing in good faith.  

 
2.2  There are existing procedures in place to enable staff to lodge a grievance 

relating to their own employment for example in relation to areas such as terms 
and conditions of employment; health and safety; work relations; new working 

1. Introduction  

Page 87



Disclosure ‘Whistleblowing’ Policy 
 

January 2009 2 Swindon Borough Council
 

practices; working environment and conditions; workload; organisational change, 
etc. This Disclosure Policy is intended to cover concerns that fall outside the 
scope of that procedure.  

 
2.3  That concern may be about something that:  

• Is unlawful, or  
• Is contrary to the Council's Standing Orders or policies, or  
• Falls below established standards or practice; or  
• Amounts to improper conduct  

 
For example (this list is not exhaustive):  
• Malpractice or ill treatment of a client/customer   
• A criminal offence has been committed, is being committed or is likely to be 

committed  
• Suspected fraud  
• Disregard for legislation, particularly in relation to health and safety at work  
• Breach of Financial Regulations, Standing Orders  
• Showing undue favour over a contractual matter or to a job applicant  
• A breach of any code of conduct or protocol  
• Information on any of the above has been, is being, or is likely to be 

concealed.  
 
2.4  The overriding concern should be that it would be in the public interest for the 

malpractice to be corrected and, if appropriate, sanctions applied.  
 
 
3. Safeguards 
 
Harassment or Victimisation 
  
3.1  The Council recognises that the decision to report a concern can be a difficult 

one to make, not least because of the fear of reprisal from those responsible for 
the malpractice. The Council will not tolerate harassment or victimisation and will 
take action to protect staff when they raise a concern in good faith. The Council 
will treat any harassment or victimisation as a serious disciplinary offence to be 
dealt with under the Disciplinary Procedure.  

 
3.2  This does not mean that if staff are already the subject of disciplinary or 

redundancy procedures, that those procedures will be halted as a result of their 
whistleblowing. 

 
 

Page 88



Disclosure ‘Whistleblowing’ Policy 
 

January 2009 3 Swindon Borough Council
 

Confidentiality 
 

3.3  The Council will do its best to protect a staff member's identity when they raise a 
concern and do not want their name to be disclosed. It must be appreciated that the 
investigation process may reveal the source of the information and a statement by 
staff may be required as part of the evidence.  

 
Anonymous Allegations  

 
3.4 This policy encourages staff to put their name to their allegation. Concerns 

expressed anonymously are much less powerful, but they will be considered at the 
discretion of the Council.  

 
3.5 In exercising the discretion, the factors to be taken into account would include the:  

• seriousness of the issues raised;  
• credibility of the concern; and  
• likelihood of confirming the allegation from an attributable source.  

 
Untrue Allegations 
 
3.6 If staff make an allegation in good faith, but it is not confirmed by the investigation, 

no action will be taken against them. If, however, staff make malicious or vexatious 
allegations, disciplinary action may be taken against them.  

 
 

4. How to raise a concern 
 
4.1  Employees who raise concerns that fall within the scope of other Council 

procedures will not be dealt with in this procedure, but will be advised on the 
appropriate procedure to use. Such employees will still receive protection as 
detailed in this policy. 

 
4.2 As a first step, staff should normally raise concerns with their immediate manager 

or supervisor as soon as the employee has reasonable suspicion. This depends, 
however, on the seriousness and sensitivity of the issues involved and who is 
thought to be involved in the malpractice. If in doubt, contact the Chief Executive, or 
the Director of Law and Democratic Services (the Council’s Monitoring Officer), or 
the Head of Internal Audit.  

 
4.3  Alternatively, staff can leave a message on the 24-hour Whistleblowing answer 

phone and fax service (telephone number 01793 464603). The phone and fax are 
located in a secure area. This service is strictly confidential and callers will not be 
asked to give their name if they do not want to.  

 

Page 89



Disclosure ‘Whistleblowing’ Policy 
 

January 2009 4 Swindon Borough Council
 

4.3  Concerns are better raised in writing. Staff are invited to set out the background 
and history of their concern, giving names, dates and places where possible, and 
the reason why they are particularly concerned about the situation. If staff do not 
feel able to put their concern in writing, they can telephone or meet the appropriate 
officer. The earlier staff express the concern, the easier it is to take action.  

 
4.4  Although staff are not expected to prove the truth of an allegation, they will need to 

demonstrate to the person contacted that there are sufficient grounds for the 
concern.  

 
4.5  Advice and guidance on matters of concern may be pursued and can be obtained 

from:  
• Chief Executive  
• Group Directors / Directors  
• Director of Law and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer)  
• Director of Finance 
• Head of Internal Audit  
• any of those listed in paragraph 6.1 below 

 
4.6  Staff may invite a trade union representative or work colleague to raise a matter on 

their behalf.  
 
 

5. How the Council will respond 
 
5.1  The action taken by the Council will depend on the nature of the concern and may:  

• be resolved by agreed action without the need for investigation 
• be investigated internally  
• be referred to the Police;  
• be referred to the external auditor;  
• form the subject of an independent inquiry  

 
5.2  In order to protect individuals and the Council, initial enquiries will be forwarded to 

the Monitoring Officer who will consult with the Head of Internal Audit and the Chair 
of Standards Committee and decide whether an investigation is appropriate and, if 
so, what form it should take. The Monitoring Officer can decide to take no further 
action if a complaint appears to be trivial or vexatious. All such decisions will be 
reported to the next meeting of Standards Committee. Concerns or allegations that 
fall within the scope of specific procedures, for example discrimination issues, will 
normally be referred for consideration under those procedures.  

 

Page 90



Disclosure ‘Whistleblowing’ Policy 
 

January 2009 5 Swindon Borough Council
 

5.3 Some concerns may be resolved by agreed action without the need for 
investigation and staff will be involved in those discussions. The Monitoring Officer 
shall report periodically thereon to the Standards Committee.  

 
5.4 If an investigation is required, the Monitoring Officer will consult with the Head of 

Internal Audit and the Chair of Standards Committee and designate an appropriate 
officer to investigate the concern. Following this that officer will, within ten working 
days, write to the member of staff:  
• Acknowledging that an investigation will be carried out 
• Indicating how he/she proposes to deal with the matter 
• Giving an estimate of how long it will take to provide a final response 
• Telling them whether any initial enquiries have been made 
• Telling them whether further investigations will take place, and if not, why not  
• Advising them that any investigation will be carried out in the strictest 

confidence; and  
• Keeping them informed of the progress of the investigation.  

 
5.5 The amount of contact between the officers considering the issues and the staff 

member will depend on the nature of the matters raised, the potential difficulties 
involved and the clarity of the information provided. If necessary, further information 
will be sought from staff.  

 
5.6 When any meeting is arranged, staff have the right, if they so wish, to be 

accompanied by a union representative or work colleague who is not involved in the 
area of work to which the concern relates.  

 
5.7 The Council will take steps to minimise any difficulties that staff may experience as 

a result of raising a concern. For instance, if they are required to give evidence in 
criminal or disciplinary proceedings, the Council will advise them about the 
procedure.  

 
5.8 The Monitoring Officer will report on the outcome of any investigation to the 

Standards Committee who will monitor the implementation of the recommendation 
of the investigation.  

 
 

6. How the matter can be taken further 
 
6.1  This policy is intended to provide staff with an avenue to raise concerns within the 

Council. The Council hopes staff will be satisfied. If they are not, and feel that it is 
right to take the matter outside the Council, the following are possible contact 
points:  
• Local Council member (if staff member lives in the area of the Council)  

Page 91



Disclosure ‘Whistleblowing’ Policy 
 

January 2009 6 Swindon Borough Council
 

• Chair or any member of the Standards Committee  
• The External Auditor (Audit Commission: tel. no. 0117 923 6757) 
• Relevant professional bodies or regulatory organisations  
• Solicitor  
• The Police  
• An independent person or organisation nominated for the purpose by the 

Council  
• Public Concern at Work (tel. no. 020 7404 6609). If staff do take this matter 

outside the Council, they need to ensure that they do not disclose confidential 
information or that disclosure would be privileged. Staff should check with the 
contact point about that.  

 
 
7. The Monitoring Officer 
 
7.1  The Monitoring Officer has overall responsibility for the maintenance and operation 

of this policy, and he will liase as necessary with the Head of Internal Audit and 
Chair of Standards Committee.  

 
7.2  The Monitoring Officer maintains a record of concerns raised and the outcomes (but 

in a form which does not endanger staff confidentiality) and will report as necessary 
to the Standards Committee. 

 
 
8. The Law 
 
8.1  This policy and procedure has been written to take account of the Public Interest 

Disclosure Act 1998, which protects workers making disclosures about certain 
matters of concern, where those disclosures are made in accordance with the Act's 
provisions.  

 
8.2 The Act is incorporated into the Employments Rights Act 1996, which also already 

protects employees who take action over, or raise concerns about health and safety 
at work. For the avoidance of doubt, financial issues are covered by Section 151 
Local Government Act 1972, Section 114 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1988, The Local Government and Housing Act 1989, and Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2003. 

Page 92



APPENDIX 2 

 
 
 

SWINDON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

FRAUD RESPONSE PLAN 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PREPARED BY:  Nick Hobbs 

Head of Internal Audit 
 
DATE: January 2009 
 
VERSION: 2.1

Page 93



Fraud Response Plan 
 

January 2009 2 Swindon Borough Council
 

 

1. Introduction  
 
1.1 The Council is committed to protecting the public funds with which it has been 

entrusted. Minimising the losses to fraud and corruption is an essential part of 
ensuring that all of the Council’s resources are used for the purpose for which they 
are intended, namely the provision of high quality services to the citizens of the 
borough. The Council has a range of policies and procedures that facilitate this 
process and form equally important parts of the Council’s overall strategy. These 
include the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy, the Whistleblowing Policy and the 
Surveillance Policy (RIPA). 

 
1.2 This document is intended to provide direction and help to officers and members in 

reporting and reacting with suspected cases of theft, fraud and corruption. It also 
gives direction to others wanting to report matters of concern in these areas.   

 
1.3 The two flowcharts (Chart 1 and Chart 2) on Pages 3 and 4 give a brief 

overview as to how an allegation should be dealt with. 
 
 

2. Scope of Response Plan  
 
2.1 The scope of this response plan is not limited to fraud and corruption but is 

applicable to any suspected act of financial impropriety. This includes any act that 
puts the Council’s resources at risk. 

 
2.2 The exception to this are the arrangements for reporting Housing Benefit Fraud, 

which is dealt with in the Council’s “Reporting Fraud” document for Housing Benefit 
claims.  The Council’s in-house Benefit Fraud Team investigates these frauds. 

 
2.3 Definitions of what constitutes a fraud can be found in the Anti-Fraud and 

Corruption Strategy on page fraud  
 

 

Page 94



Fr
au

d 
R

es
po

ns
e 

Pl
an

 
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

09
 

3 
S

w
in

do
n 

B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il 

 1.
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Fr

au
d 

   
 

                            

Yo
u 

su
sp

ec
t f

ra
ud

 / 
ill

eg
al

 a
ct

iv
ity

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

th
is

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
by

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

, c
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
, m

em
be

r o
f t

he
 p

ub
lic

 e
tc

. 

D
is

cu
ss

 w
ith

 L
in

e 
M

an
ag

er
 o

r 
an

ot
he

r S
en

io
r O

ffi
ce

r. 
R

ep
or

t t
o 

H
ea

d 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it,
 D

ire
ct

or
 

of
 F

in
an

ce
, M

on
ito

rin
g 

O
ffi

ce
r, 

or
 u

se
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

W
hi

st
le

bl
ow

in
g 

H
ot

lin
e.

 

R
ep

or
t s

us
pi

ci
on

s 
to

 H
ea

d 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it.
 

In
iti

al
 in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

by
 

m
an

ag
er

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

ce
ip

t o
f a

dv
ic

e 
fr

om
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it,

 o
r b

y 
In

te
rn

al
 

A
ud

it 
th

em
se

lv
es

, o
r b

y 
Po

lic
e 

if 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

. 

M
an

ag
em

en
t t

ak
e 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 a

ct
io

n 
to

 
pr

ev
en

t f
ur

th
er

 lo
ss

es
 a

nd
 c

or
re

ct
 

co
nt

ro
ls

 in
 li

ai
so

n 
w

ith
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

To
 C

ha
rt

 2
  

C
on

ta
ct

 N
um

be
rs

: 
 H

ea
d 

of
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it:

 0
17

93
 4

63
94

0 
 D

ire
ct

or
 o

f F
in

an
ce

: 0
17

93
 4

63
30

0 
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

O
ffi

ce
r:

 0
17

93
 4

63
01

2 
 W

hi
st

le
bl

ow
in

g 
H

ot
lin

e:
 0

17
93

 4
64

60
3 

 Page 95



Fr
au

d 
R

es
po

ns
e 

Pl
an

 
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

09
 

4 
S

w
in

do
n 

B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il 

 

N
o

O
r

N
o

O
r

N
o

Ye
s

Ye
s

2.
 

C
on

du
ct

in
g 

th
e 

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
        

   
   

   
       

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  E
ith

er
 

              

Fr
om

 C
ha

rt
 1

 

Ea
rly

 in
fo

rm
al

 
co

nt
ac

t w
ith

 P
ol

ic
e 

if 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 

N
o 

ca
se

 to
 a

ns
w

er
 

R
ec

or
d 

fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

C
on

si
de

r c
iv

il 
ac

tio
n

In
ve

st
ig

at
or

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 b

y 
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
(in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
O

ffi
ce

r (
if 

re
le

va
nt

) 

C
rim

in
al

 a
ct

? 

In
te

rn
al

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n,
 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t w

ith
 H

R
 

ad
vi

ce
, d

ec
id

es
 …

…
 

Er
ro

r o
f j

ud
ge

m
en

t o
r 

ne
gl

ig
en

ce
 

In
fo

rm
 P

ol
ic

e 
an

d 
Ex

te
rn

al
 A

ud
ito

rs
 

G
ro

ss
 m

is
co

nd
uc

t. 

Lo
ss

 re
co

ve
re

d 

In
iti

at
e 

di
sm

is
sa

l 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 

Im
pl

em
en

t d
is

ci
pl

in
ar

y 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 

Lo
ss

 re
co

ve
re

d.
 

C
on

si
de

r c
iv

il 
ac

tio
n 

Ye
s

Fo
llo

w
 a

ct
io

ns
 a

s 
ad

vi
se

d 
by

 P
ol

ic
e

Page 96



Fraud Response Plan 
 

January 2009 5 Swindon Borough Council
 

3. Reporting Suspicions 
 
 If fraud or corruption is suspected, then the matter should be reported without 

delay. Officers should report to a line manager at the outset and retain all 
evidence.  If it is thought that the line manager may be involved, or that there may 
be a conflict of interest, the matter should be reported directly to a more senior 
officer, or to the: 
• Head of Internal Audit  
• Director of Finance  
• Monitoring Officer (Director of Law and Democratic Services) 
 
Employees may raise their concerns verbally, or preferably in writing, to ensure 
allegations are reflected accurately to those conducting investigations. 
 
Employees who make a written allegation should ensure their account includes the 
background, history and nature of their concern (including names and relevant 
dates and locations, where applicable) and the reason why they are particularly 
concerned about the situation. 
 
Internal Audit also provides a 24-hour Whistleblowing hotline that employees can 
use to report their concerns (telephone number 01793 464603). Messages left are 
treated as strictly confidential and are only accessed by authorised Internal Audit 
staff. 
 
Employees can leave their personal details when calling the hotline or make the 
allegations anonymously. It should be noted that it is considerably more difficult to 
investigate anonymous allegations.  
 
Alternatively contact can be made by writing to the Head of Internal Audit, Civic 
Offices, Euclid Street, Swindon. SN1 2JH or e-mail at nhobbs@swindon.gov.uk  
 
If in doubt, Public Concern at Work (www.pcaw.co.uk) will give free and totally 
independent advice on how to proceed (contact helpline@pcaw.co.uk or telephone 
020 7404 6609). 
 
If suspicions have been reported through the Whistleblowing Policy they will be 
reported to the Council’s Monitoring Officer who, in liaison with the Head of Internal 
Audit and Chair of Standards Committee, will appoint an appropriate investigating 
officer (for more details see the Whistleblowing Policy which is available on the 
Intranet – under the A-Z list of services (under ‘W’)).   

 
  

4. Investigation 
 
 Managers & Supervisors: 

As soon as an officer reports fraud or corruption, the manager or supervisor 
should, in all instances, seek advice from Internal Audit. 
 
 

Page 97



Fraud Response Plan 
 

January 2009 6 Swindon Borough Council
 

The Manager should: 
• Obtain a written record of the concerns from the person making the 

allegations, or in cases where they have discovered the potential fraud, 
prepare a written report themself. This should include: 
- Background details and nature of the suspicions (including relevant 

names, dates and locations). 
- Details of the job and areas of responsibility of the individuals implicated. 
- Why the person raising the matter is concerned. 
- Action taken to date. 
- A description of the systems, controls and procedures that should be 

operating within the area subject to abuse.  
• Contact the Head of Internal Audit as soon as possible to discuss the 

seriousness and factual basis of the allegations and the next steps to be 
taken.  

• Take care, at this stage, to ensure that the suspect(s) are not alerted to the 
potential investigation and the confidentiality of informants is not 
compromised. 

• Under no circumstances take any action to investigate the allegations 
themselves, or allow employees to do so, without sanction or guidance from 
Internal Audit. This includes interviewing, or observation, of suspects in 
connection with the suspected act. This is to ensure that evidence is collected 
in a way that complies with relevant legislation and does not compromise the 
investigation and/or subsequent disciplinary procedures/prosecutions. 

 
Internal Audit: 
Once an allegation has been made and an investigation deemed necessary it is 
likely that Internal Audit will either conduct the investigation or be involved in some 
way. 
 
Internal Audit will take appropriate advice from the Council Human Resources 
directorate and, where relevant, the Police during the course of their investigation.  
 
The purpose of the audit investigation is to establish the facts in an equitable and 
objective manner. The process will involve the use of authority or delegated 
powers to: 

• screen allegations, or information, to gauge their credibility; 
• secure all evidence;  
• interview suspects;  
• interview witnesses;  
• take statements;  
• liase with departments, or other agencies (including the Police). 

 
Where evidence of offences or irregularities is found, the Council will take suitable 
further action. The investigating officer will compile a report of their findings for 
submission to the department concerned detailing their recommendations 
regarding disciplinary action or referring to the Police (see below). 
 
 
 

Page 98



Fraud Response Plan 
 

January 2009 7 Swindon Borough Council
 

5. Establishing and Securing Evidence 
 

In order to initiate disciplinary/criminal proceedings against a suspect of financial 
misconduct it is essential that evidence be secured in a legally admissible form, 
without alerting suspects at the outset of the investigation. 
 
As such, managers and staff should not attempt to collect any form of evidence 
(e.g. records, statements or surveillance evidence) without sanction from Internal 
Audit, who will be responsible for co-ordinating the collection of evidence as part of 
any internal investigation.  Any IT equipment that may hold evidence should be 
secured without being accessed by anyone. 
 
Staff collecting evidence (whether audit staff or otherwise) should ensure it is 
stored securely at all times and is not tampered with, that no marks are made on 
original documents and a record is kept of anyone handling evidence.  The Data 
Protection Act should be complied with at all times. 
 
Staff responsible for interviewing suspect(s) should be trained in the requirements 
of the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984. Failure to comply with PACE 
requirements in interviews will mean that nothing said by the suspect will be 
admissible in a court of law. 
 
Staff responsible for commissioning and carrying out surveillance of suspects 
should do so in accordance with the requirements of the Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) and the Council’s Policy and Protocol on 
Surveillance. Failure to comply with RIPA will make all surveillance evidence 
inadmissible in court and may leave the Council liable to court action.  The 
Council’s Monitoring Officer or Head of Internal Audit can provide advice in the 
requirements of RIPA. 
 
 

6. Police Referral Procedures 
 

The decision to refer a matter to the Police will only be taken by the Head of 
Internal Audit, in consultation with the Director of Finance, the appropriate Head of 
Service and the Director of Law and Democratic Services and where appropriate 
the Chief Executive. In such cases the Head of Internal Audit will instigate contact 
with the Police. 
 
The Head of Internal Audit shall handle all requests from the Police for additional 
evidence, statements or any other form of assistance. 
 
 

7. Prevention of Further Losses  
 

When a suspected fraud is reported the Head of Internal Audit will liaise with the 
Head of Service and appropriate Human Resources Manager to determine the 
most appropriate course of action to prevent any further losses to the Authority 
being incurred. 
 

Page 99



Fraud Response Plan 
 

January 2009 8 Swindon Borough Council
 

This may require the suspension of the suspected individual(s) concerned. The 
normal circumstances for suspension would be: 
• Where the continued employment of the individual(s) could lead to further 

losses. 
• Where the continued employment of the individual(s) could jeopardise the 

investigation (where the individuals could destroy or remove evidence). 
• Where the Police have charged the officer with a criminal offence relating to 

the Council. 
 
All suspensions will be carried out in line with the Standards of Conduct and 
Disciplinary Procedure. Suspension does not constitute disciplinary action. 

 
Any security passes and keys to Council property should be obtained from the 
suspect(s) along with other Council owned items (such as laptops), and returned to 
the appropriate officer or kept securely pending investigation. The appropriate 
Systems Administrators should be contacted to disable access to all relevant IT 
systems. 
 
To prevent further losses and where it will not prejudice any subsequent 
investigation, management should liase with Internal Audit to remedy any identified 
control weaknesses that have permitted the act of financial impropriety to be 
undertaken. 

 
 

8. Recovery of Losses 
 

Managers should seek to recover any losses incurred through acts of financial 
impropriety from the offenders concerned. Management should consult the 
Director of Law and Democratic Services to establish the options available to 
recover losses. 
 
Where substantial potential losses have been identified at the outset of an 
investigation, management should seek legal advice immediately from the Director 
of Law and Democratic Services regarding the need to freeze the suspect’s assets 
through the Court, pending conclusion of the investigation. 

 
 

9. Publicity and Dealing with the Media in Connection with Suspected or 
Proven Fraud 

 
Any public statements regarding pending, current or completed investigations or 
allegations of financial impropriety should only be made through the 
Communications team, by contacting the Director of Partnership, Policy and 
Communications.  
 
Officers, Members and third parties of the Council should not make any public 
statement regarding suspected financial impropriety in order to avoid making 
libellous statements, or statements that may prejudice investigations, or any 
subsequent disciplinary/legal action. All such statements will be co-ordinated by 
the Communications team. If contacted by the public or the press, SBC personnel 

Page 100



Fraud Response Plan 
 

January 2009 9 Swindon Borough Council
 

(including members and third parties) should refer those making the enquiry to the 
Director of Partnership, Policy and Communications.  
 
The Director of Partnership, Policy and Communications should optimise the 
publicity opportunities available to make employees and the public aware of the 
Council’s commitment to taking action on acts of financial impropriety. As such any 
action taken relating to acts of financial impropriety should be reported in the 
press, as a deterrent to other potential offenders. 

 
 

10. Roles and Responsibilities (who does what)
 

Director of Finance: has overall responsibility for the Council’s response to fraud 
and to oversee the action taken to investigate.  
 
Head of Internal Audit: has responsibility for investigation of fraud and advising 
on action to be taken.  

  
Directors: have responsibility for establishing and maintaining adequate system 
controls within their directorates, including responsibility for prevention and 
detection of fraud and ensuring staff awareness.  
 
Monitoring Officer (Director of Law and Democratic Services): has 
responsibility for operation of the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy. 
 
Managers and supervisors: have responsibility for the prevention and detection 
of fraud and corruption within their work area and for swiftly reporting allegations 
brought to them (see Reporting Suspicions, section 3 of this Appendix).  

 
Investigating Officers (usually a member of the Internal Audit team)  
Have responsibility for investigating matters of suspected fraud or corruption 
complying with relevant legislation and best practice/guidance.  
 

 Employees: are required to act in accordance with the Staff Code of Conduct to 
report all actual or suspected cases of financial impropriety. 

 
Human Resources: will provide timely advice and guidance on Council policies 
and procedures during the course of any investigation and any subsequent 
disciplinary action. 

 
External Contractors/Third Parties:  should immediately contact the relevant 
service manager, or any of the personnel listed in section 3 of this Appendix, with 
concerns they have whilst working within the Council.  

 
Council Members: are required to act in accordance with the Members Code of 
Conduct and should report any suspected, or detected, acts of financial impropriety 
immediately to the Monitoring Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Director of Finance or 
Chief Executive. 

 
 
 

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



Head of Internal Audit Update 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE Date: 26th January 2010 
 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nick Hobbs on Direct Dial No. 
01793 463940 or email nhobbs@swindon.gov.uk 
 

Author: Head of Internal Audit 
Wards Affected: None 

Purpose 
To present Members with a summary of the main issues arising from the Internal 
Audit reports finalised since the Audit Committee meeting in November, and to 
update Members with regard to progress against the annual internal audit plan.  
 

 

Recommendation 
• It is recommended that the contents of the report be noted. 
 

 
1 Reasons 

 
1.1 The Council’s Audit Committee has a strategic role to ensure that the 

Council’s assurance framework is operating effectively. To this end it 
should seek assurance that key areas that contribute to this framework 
are operating properly. 

 
1.2 The Council’s Internal Audit section is a key component of the assurance 

framework and therefore it is essential that this Committee monitor its 
performance against the annual plan along with the implementation of 
agreed recommendations by Client departments.  

 
2 Detail 

 
Reports Issued 
 
2.1 Details of Internal Audit reports finalised since the November Audit 

Committee are set out in Appendix 1. The appendix sets out a summary 
of the audit recommendations made along with the overall risk 
assessment to the Council.  

 
Progress on completion of Internal Audit Plan 2009/10 
 
2.2 As at the end of December we have completed 60% of the plan against 

a target of 63%. Appendix 2 details the audits issued to date. We are 
currently hoping to achieve at least 85% of the plan. We will aim to 
ensure that work is completed on the high priority audits and those 
required to provide assurance to the External Auditor and those required 
to comply with Government requirements i.e. FMSIS. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 103



Head of Internal Audit Update 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE Date: 26th January 2010 
 

Further information on the subject of this report can be obtained from Nick Hobbs on Direct Dial No. 
01793 463940 or email nhobbs@swindon.gov.uk 
 

Staffing 
 
2.3 A School Auditor has now been appointed and started work with us in 

January. She is ACCA qualified and will be working school term-time 
only. Our temporary Senior Auditor has now left as our budget to support 
her appointment has run out. 

 
External Contract  
 
2.4 We will be discussing options regarding our work for beyond this current 

financial year with the Fire Authority in January. 
 
 

Alternative Options 
 
Not Applicable 
 

Risk Management 
Financial and Procurement Implications 
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report however 
individual audit reports address the suitability of internal controls within the 
systems examined.  
Legal/Human Rights Implications 
Internal Audit is a statutory requirement of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2006. The Internal Audit service also provides assurance to the Director of 
Finance regarding the requirements of Section 151 of the Local Government Act 
1972. 

Links to Corporate Plans and Policies (in particular to Swindon 2010 Promises) 
Internal Control, Audit Committee and the Statement on Internal Control all 
feature significantly in the CPA Use of Resources Assessment. Effective systems 
of internal control within the Council will help to ensure that the objectives set out 
in the Corporate Plan and Swindon 2010 are achieved. 

Consultees  
The Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) and the Director of Law and Democratic 
Services (Monitoring Officer) are consulted on all reports. 
Appendices / Background papers 
Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Reports finalised since the November Audit Committee. 
Appendix 2 – Progress against 2009/10 Internal Audit plan. 
Key Decision/Decision in Forward Plan 
Not Applicable 

Page 104



IN
TE

R
N

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

 R
EP

O
R

TS
 F

IN
A

LI
SE

D
 O

C
TO

B
ER

 - 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

9 

Fi
na

l a
ud

it 
re

po
rt

s 
is

su
ed

: 
  A

ud
it 

Ti
tle

:  
C

on
ta

ct
 P

oi
nt

 
 

D
at

e 
of

 A
ud

it:
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
9 

N
um

be
r o

f H
ig

h 
Pr

io
rit

y 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
: 

N
/A

 
C

ur
re

nt
 A

ud
it 

O
pi

ni
on

:  
N

/A
 

Pr
ev

io
us

 A
ud

it 
O

pi
ni

on
:  

N
/A

 
O

ve
ra

ll 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

(R
is

k)
:

N
o 

op
in

io
n 

gi
ve

n 

K
ey

 F
in

di
ng

s 
an

d 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 A
 re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

by
 th

e 
C

on
ta

ct
 P

oi
nt

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

 w
er

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 to

: 
• 

en
su

re
 th

ey
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
C

S
F;

 
• 

co
nf

irm
 th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 p
ro

ce
ss

 in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 a

pp
ro

va
l o

f t
he

 p
ol

ic
y;

 
• 

co
nf

irm
 th

at
 th

is
 p

ro
ce

ss
 h

ad
 b

ee
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 fo
llo

w
ed

 fo
r a

ll 
C

on
ta

ct
 P

oi
nt

 p
ol

ic
ie

s.
 

 Th
e 

ov
er

al
l f

in
di

ng
s 

of
 th

e 
re

vi
ew

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
so

m
e 

ga
ps

 in
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 th
at

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

fil
le

d 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
e 

po
lic

ie
s 

m
ee

t t
he

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 D

C
S

F.
  A

 n
um

be
r o

f s
pe

ci
fic

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

ag
re

ed
 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
on

ta
ct

 P
oi

nt
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

M
an

ag
er

. 
              

Page 105



IN
TE

R
N

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

 R
EP

O
R

TS
 F

IN
A

LI
SE

D
 O

C
TO

B
ER

 - 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

9 

A
ud

it 
Ti

tle
:  

D
ep

ut
ys

hi
ps

 
 

D
at

e 
of

 A
ud

it:
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

9 

N
um

be
r o

f H
ig

h 
Pr

io
rit

y 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
: 

9 
C

ur
re

nt
 A

ud
it 

O
pi

ni
on

:  
3 

Pr
ev

io
us

 A
ud

it 
O

pi
ni

on
:  

N
/A

 
O

ve
ra

ll 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

(R
is

k)
:

O
f C

on
ce

rn
 

K
ey

 F
in

di
ng

s 
an

d 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

A
 re

vi
ew

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ca

rri
ed

 o
ut

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 to
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 fo

r H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

th
at

 th
e 

D
ep

ut
ys

hi
p 

sy
st

em
 is

 
ro

bu
st

 a
nd

 e
ffi

ci
en

t. 
 Th

e 
ke

y 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 a

re
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

• 
A

 S
er

vi
ce

 L
ev

el
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t 
(S

LA
) 

be
tw

ee
n 

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l 
C

ar
e 

an
d 

th
e 

C
en

tra
l 

Fi
na

nc
e 

Te
am

 (
D

ep
ut

y 
Te

am
) 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

vi
se

d 
an

d 
ag

re
ed

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 c

le
ar

ly
 s

ta
te

 th
e 

ro
le

s 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 a
ll 

pa
rti

es
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 th
e 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
of

 c
lie

nt
 

ac
co

un
ts

. T
hi

s 
sh

ou
ld

 in
cl

ud
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f i
nt

er
fa

ce
 m

ee
tin

gs
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

be
st

 in
te

re
st

s 
w

he
re

 c
ar

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 is

 d
is

pu
te

d.
 

• 
Fo

rm
al

 d
oc

um
en

te
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
re

at
ed

 in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

go
ve

rn
 t

he
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 in
te

gr
al

 t
o 

th
e 

op
er

at
in

g 
of

 d
ep

ut
ys

hi
p 

ac
co

un
ts

.  

• 
S

ta
nd

ar
di

se
d 

fo
rm

s 
an

d 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 d

ev
is

ed
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
on

si
st

en
cy

 a
cr

os
s 

al
l t

he
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s.
 

• 
Th

e 
G

ro
up

 D
ire

ct
or

 fo
r H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
sh

ou
ld

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

n 
ac

tiv
e 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
ro

le
 in

 th
e 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
of

 c
lie

nt
 a

cc
ou

nt
s.

 

• 
P

ur
ch

as
es

 o
r a

llo
w

an
ce

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 th
e 

cl
ie

nt
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 re
ce

ip
te

d 
an

d 
si

gn
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

cl
ie

nt
 to

 c
on

fir
m

 re
ce

ip
t o

f t
he

 m
on

ey
 o

r 
go

od
s.

  
• 

B
es

t v
al

ue
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

d 
fo

r a
ll 

pu
rc

ha
se

s 
m

ad
e 

fro
m

 a
 c

lie
nt

’s
 a

cc
ou

nt
 a

nd
 h

ow
 th

is
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

cl
ea

rly
 e

vi
de

nc
ed

. 
        

Page 106



IN
TE

R
N

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

 R
EP

O
R

TS
 F

IN
A

LI
SE

D
 O

C
TO

B
ER

 - 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

9 

A
ud

it 
Ti

tle
:  

H
ou

si
ng

 R
en

ts
 

 
D

at
e 

of
 A

ud
it:

 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
9 

N
um

be
r o

f H
ig

h 
Pr

io
rit

y 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
: 

1 
C

ur
re

nt
 A

ud
it 

O
pi

ni
on

:  
1 

Pr
ev

io
us

 A
ud

it 
O

pi
ni

on
:  

2 
O

ve
ra

ll 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

(R
is

k)
:

M
od

er
at

e 

K
ey

 F
in

di
ng

s 
an

d 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 A
 re

vi
ew

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ca

rri
ed

 o
ut

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 to
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

th
at

 th
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
fo

r p
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
en

ts
 is

 ro
bu

st
. I

t i
s 

al
so

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 m
an

ag
ed

 a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

ag
re

ed
 b

et
w

ee
n 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
an

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
ud

ito
rs

. 
 Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

, w
ith

 m
ed

iu
m

 p
rio

rit
y 

d 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 re
qu

ire
d:

   

• 
R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
ns

 o
f r

en
t r

ec
ei

pt
s 

an
d 

de
bi

ts
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t b
y 

C
ap

ita
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 d
oc

um
en

te
d 

an
d 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
C

ap
ita

 a
nd

 H
ou

si
ng

 
Fi

na
nc

e,
 s

o 
as

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

nt
in

ui
ty

 in
 th

e 
ev

en
t o

f s
ta

ff 
ch

an
ge

s.
 

• 
W

he
re

 c
as

h 
is

 re
ce

iv
ed

 fr
om

 te
na

nt
s 

at
 H

ay
 L

an
e 

an
d 

th
e 

S
up

po
rte

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 S

ch
em

es
 th

at
 is

 n
ot

 in
 re

sp
ec

t o
f d

eb
ts

 p
rin

te
d 

on
th

e 
re

nt
 s

tri
ps

 b
y 

O
H

S
, t

he
 re

ce
ip

t s
ho

ul
d 

be
 w

rit
te

n 
on

 a
 s

pa
re

 li
ne

 o
n 

th
e 

re
nt

 s
tri

p 
pr

in
te

d 
by

 O
H

S
 a

nd
 n

ot
 o

n 
a 

bl
an

k 
re

nt
 s

tri
p

A
ll 

ca
sh

 re
ce

ip
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

ai
d 

in
to

 C
as

hi
er

s 
in

 th
e 

w
ee

k 
in

 w
hi

ch
 th

ey
 a

re
 re

ce
iv

ed
. 

• 
W

he
re

 te
na

nt
s 

ar
e 

in
 a

rre
ar

s 
an

d 
no

t m
ak

in
g 

re
gu

la
r p

ay
m

en
ts

, t
he

 R
en

t A
rr

ea
rs

 P
ro

gr
es

si
on

 M
an

ag
em

en
t P

ro
ce

du
re

 s
ho

ul
d 

b
fo

llo
w

ed
 a

nd
 n

on
-p

ay
m

en
t w

ee
ks

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t b

e 
al

lo
w

ed
. 

• 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 d
eb

t c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 s
ou

gh
t f

ro
m

 th
e 

ag
en

cy
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 e
ng

ag
ed

. I
f t

hi
s 

is
 n

ot
 fo

rth
co

m
in

g 
or

 is
 

un
sa

tis
fa

ct
or

y,
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r d
eb

t c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

. 

• 
Fo

rm
er

 te
na

nt
s’

 a
rr

ea
rs

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

on
ito

re
d 

du
rin

g 
20

09
/2

01
0 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 to

 d
at

e 
is

 
se

as
on

al
 o

r a
 lo

ng
er

-te
rm

 tr
en

d.
 T

hi
s 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
sh

ou
ld

 in
cl

ud
e 

co
m

pa
ris

on
s 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s.
 

• 
B

en
ch

m
ar

ki
ng

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
ho

us
in

g 
as

so
ci

at
io

ns
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 s
ou

gh
t o

n 
cu

rr
en

t t
en

an
ts

’ a
rr

ea
rs

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 n

ew
 

te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

co
ur

t r
ef

er
ra

ls
, a

nd
 a

ls
o 

fo
rm

er
 te

na
nt

s’
 a

rr
ea

rs
. 

     

Page 107



IN
TE

R
N

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

 R
EP

O
R

TS
 F

IN
A

LI
SE

D
 O

C
TO

B
ER

 - 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

9 

A
ud

it 
Ti

tle
:  

P
ay

ro
ll 

 
D

at
e 

of
 A

ud
it:

 
A

pr
il 

– 
Ju

ne
 2

00
9 

N
um

be
r o

f H
ig

h 
Pr

io
rit

y 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
: 

17
 

C
ur

re
nt

 A
ud

it 
O

pi
ni

on
:  

3 
Pr

ev
io

us
 A

ud
it 

O
pi

ni
on

:  
2 

O
ve

ra
ll 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
(R

is
k)

:
O

f C
on

ce
rn

 

K
ey

 F
in

di
ng

s 
an

d 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 A
 re

vi
ew

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
to

 th
e 

G
ro

up
 D

ire
ct

or
 o

f B
us

in
es

s 
Tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
th

at
 th

e 
P

ay
ro

ll 
sy

st
em

 is
 ro

bu
st

 a
nd

 
ef

fic
ie

nt
. 

 Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ke

y 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 re

qu
ire

d:
   

• 
Th

e 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

fo
r 

st
ar

te
rs

 a
nd

 le
av

er
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ob

ta
in

in
g 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
ev

id
en

ce
 a

nd
 r

ec
or

di
ng

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

fo
llo

w
ed

 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

ly
.  

• 
D

oc
um

en
te

d 
de

ta
ile

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 d

ev
is

ed
, a

gr
ee

d 
an

d 
is

su
ed

 fo
r t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g:

 

¾
 

P
ay

ro
ll 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
us

in
g 

th
e 

M
id

la
nd

 T
re

nt
 S

ys
te

m
 (i

.e
. d

et
ai

le
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

flo
w

ch
ar

ts
 o

f p
ro

ce
ss

es
) 

¾
 

H
on

or
ar

iu
m

s 

¾
 

O
ve

rti
m

e 

¾
 

C
he

ck
in

g 
ne

w
 a

nd
 e

xi
st

in
g 

em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 e

nt
itl

em
en

t t
o 

w
or

k 
in

 th
e 

U
K

 

• 
E

xc
ep

tio
n 

re
po

rts
, s

ho
w

in
g 

th
e 

ne
t p

ay
 v

ar
ia

nc
e 

of
 s

ta
ff,

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

du
rin

g 
ea

ch
 p

ay
ro

ll 
ru

n.
 A

ls
o,

 fo
r c

as
es

 w
he

re
 n

et
 p

ay
 h

as
 

in
cr

ea
se

d/
de

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 m

or
e 

th
an

 a
n 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 le

ve
l. 

• 
Th

e 
A

1 
fo

rm
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 u
pd

at
in

g 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
to

 re
co

rd
 th

e 
cr

ed
it 

si
de

 o
f t

he
 G

L 
up

lo
ad

 fi
le

, s
o 

th
e 

fig
ur

es
 w

rit
te

n 
on

 th
e 

A
1 

fro
m

 
m

at
ch

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
l t

ot
al

, p
rio

r t
o 

th
e 

fil
e 

be
in

g 
up

lo
ad

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l l
ed

ge
r. 

• 
Tr

en
t 

sy
st

em
 a

cc
es

s 
pr

of
ile

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

ad
eq

ua
te

 s
eg

re
ga

tio
n 

of
 d

ut
ie

s 
is

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

se
tti

ng
 u

p 
a 

m
em

be
r 

of
 s

ta
ff/

ne
w

 p
os

t o
n 

th
e 

sy
st

em
 a

nd
 a

tta
ch

in
g 

th
em

 to
 th

e 
P

ay
ro

ll 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

pa
ym

en
t. 

P
as

sw
or

d 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 th

e 
P

ay
ro

ll 
sy

st
em

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ac

ce
ss

 g
ra

nt
ed

 is
 a

ut
ho

ris
ed

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

. 

• 
C

op
ie

s 
of

 a
ll 

re
qu

ire
d 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
re

po
rts

 th
at

 a
re

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
an

d 
ch

ec
ke

d 
w

he
n 

th
e 

pa
yr

ol
ls

 a
re

 ru
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

ta
in

ed
 o

n 
fil

e.
 

• 
C

ha
ng

es
 m

ad
e 

to
 th

e 
P

ay
ro

ll 
sy

st
em

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 fu

lly
 te

st
ed

 a
nd

 s
ig

ne
d 

of
f b

ef
or

e 
up

gr
ad

es
 to

 th
e 

liv
e 

sy
st

em
 a

re
 m

ad
e.

 

  

Page 108



IN
TE

R
N

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

 R
EP

O
R

TS
 F

IN
A

LI
SE

D
 O

C
TO

B
ER

 - 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

9 

A
ud

it 
Ti

tle
:  

R
ec

ou
pm

en
t 

 
D

at
e 

of
 A

ud
it:

 
Ju

ne
 –

 J
ul

y 
20

09
 

N
um

be
r o

f H
ig

h 
Pr

io
rit

y 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
: 

8 
C

ur
re

nt
 A

ud
it 

O
pi

ni
on

:  
4 

Pr
ev

io
us

 A
ud

it 
O

pi
ni

on
:  

N
/A

 
O

ve
ra

ll 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

(R
is

k)
:

O
f C

on
ce

rn
 

K
ey

 F
in

di
ng

s 
an

d 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 A
 re

vi
ew

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ca

rri
ed

 o
ut

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 to
 th

e 
G

ro
up

 D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

th
at

 th
e 

R
ec

ou
pm

en
t s

ys
te

m
 is

 
ro

bu
st

 a
nd

 e
ffi

ci
en

t. 
 Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ke
y 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 m

ad
e 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 re

qu
ire

d:
   

• 
Th

e 
bu

dg
et

 p
os

iti
on

 fo
r 

20
09

/1
0 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
cl

ar
ifi

ed
 b

y 
S

E
N

A
T,

 w
ith

 a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

fro
m

 th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Fi
na

nc
e 

Te
am

, a
nd

 
re

po
rte

d 
as

 a
 m

at
te

r o
f p

rio
rit

y.
 

• 
D

at
a 

an
d 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
us

ed
 to

 p
re

pa
re

 th
e 

bu
dg

et
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
st

im
at

es
 o

f t
he

 
fu

tu
re

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 c

os
ts

 a
nd

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r r

ec
ou

pm
en

t. 
   

• 
A

 d
et

ai
le

d 
an

d 
ac

cu
ra

te
 f

or
ec

as
t 

of
 t

he
 2

00
9/

10
 r

ec
ou

pm
en

t 
bu

dg
et

 o
ut

tu
rn

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

ro
du

ce
d.

  
A

ct
io

ns
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
ag

re
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

se
ni

or
 m

an
ag

em
en

t t
ea

m
 to

 m
iti

ga
te

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f o
ve

rs
pe

nd
 o

n 
ch

ild
re

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 b

ud
ge

ts
.  

A
ct

io
ns

 ta
ke

n 
an

d 
th

e 
po

si
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

bu
dg

et
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 re

gu
la

r a
nd

 fo
rm

al
 re

vi
ew

. 

• 
A

cc
ur

at
e 

bu
dg

et
 a

nd
 a

ct
iv

ity
 f

or
ec

as
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ad
e 

m
on

th
ly

, 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 t

he
 

B
ud

ge
t M

an
ag

er
s’

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

. 

• 
A

n 
ex

er
ci

se
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 c

ha
rg

in
g 

ot
he

r 
LE

A
’s

 fo
r 

re
co

up
m

en
t c

os
ts

 is
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 

m
ee

t t
he

 c
os

ts
 o

f t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

. 

• 
A

ll 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t 

in
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 t

he
 r

ec
ou

pm
en

t 
se

rv
ic

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

fu
lly

 d
oc

um
en

te
d 

in
 a

 p
ro

ce
du

ra
l g

ui
de

 t
o 

en
su

re
 c

on
tin

ui
ty

 a
nd

 c
on

si
st

en
cy

 in
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e.
   

• 
Fo

rm
al

 d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

se
nt

 t
o 

ot
he

r 
LE

A
’s

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 t

o 
co

nf
irm

 t
he

ir 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

to
 m

on
ito

r 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
co

st
s 

of
 p

la
ce

m
en

ts
. 

   

Page 109



IN
TE

R
N

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

 R
EP

O
R

TS
 F

IN
A

LI
SE

D
 O

C
TO

B
ER

 - 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

9 

 A
ud

it 
Ti

tle
:  

A
nt

i-F
ra

ud
 &

 C
or

ru
pt

io
n 

- M
ob

ile
 P

ho
ne

s 
 

D
at

e 
of

 A
ud

it:
 

Ju
ly

 2
00

9 

N
um

be
r o

f H
ig

h 
Pr

io
rit

y 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
: 

13
 

C
ur

re
nt

 A
ud

it 
O

pi
ni

on
:  

4 
Pr

ev
io

us
 A

ud
it 

O
pi

ni
on

:  
N

/A
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
(R

is
k)

:
O

f C
on

ce
rn

 

K
ey

 F
in

di
ng

s 
an

d 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

A
 r

ev
ie

w
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ca
rri

ed
 o

ut
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 to

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f B

us
in

es
s 

Tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

th
at

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
 c

on
tro

ls
 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s 

pr
oc

es
s.

  
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 E

xt
er

na
l 

A
ud

ito
r’s

 a
ls

o 
ex

pe
ct

 I
nt

er
na

l 
A

ud
it 

to
 c

ov
er

 f
ra

ud
 a

nd
 c

or
ru

pt
io

n 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 to

 p
re

ve
nt

 a
ny

 m
at

er
ia

l l
os

s 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

  
 Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ke
y 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 w
er

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 re

qu
ire

d:
   

 

• 
A

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t n

um
be

r o
f k

ey
 s

ys
te

m
 c

on
tro

ls
 to

 p
re

ve
nt

 p
os

si
bl

e 
fra

ud
 a

nd
 c

or
ru

pt
io

n,
 w

as
ta

ge
 a

nd
 m

is
us

e 
of

 m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
ar

e 
ab

se
nt

.  
In

 a
dd

iti
on

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 m
ad

e 
in

 th
e 

au
di

t r
ep

or
t f

ro
m

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 

• 
A

 m
ea

ns
 o

f p
ro

vi
di

ng
 m

an
ag

er
s 

w
ith

 a
n 

on
-li

ne
 b

ill 
ap

pr
ov

al
 p

ro
ce

ss
 fo

r t
he

ir 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 e
va

lu
at

ed
 a

nd
 w

he
re

 
po

ss
ib

le
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

m
an

ag
er

s 
to

 m
on

ito
r m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 a

nd
 d

at
a 

us
ag

e 
or

 c
ha

rg
es

 
• 

P
re

m
iu

m
 li

ne
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ba

rre
d;

 ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r i

nt
er

na
tio

na
l c

al
ls

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d.
  M

on
ito

rin
g 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

to
 

id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l m
is

us
e 

of
 C

ou
nc

il 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

rp
or

at
e 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 p
ol

ic
y.

 
• 

Fo
rm

al
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
tro

du
ce

d 
fo

r t
he

 in
fo

rm
in

g 
of

 lo
st

/s
to

le
n 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
en

su
rin

g 
th

at
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 b

ud
ge

t 
ho

ld
er

 is
 in

fo
rm

ed
 a

t a
ll 

tim
es

 th
at

 a
 p

ho
ne

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
lo

st
 o

r s
to

le
n.

 
• 

A
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

an
d 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 p

ro
ce

ss
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 c
en

tra
l r

ec
or

d 
of

 a
ll 

eq
ui

pm
en

t i
ss

ue
d 

to
 

of
fic

er
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s.

 T
he

 m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 in
ve

nt
or

y 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
m

ob
ile

 
ph

on
es

 a
nd

 S
IM

 c
ar

ds
 o

w
ne

d 
by

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ca
n 

be
 fu

lly
 a

cc
ou

nt
ed

 fo
r. 

Th
e 

in
ve

nt
or

y 
sh

ou
ld

 in
cl

ud
e 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
at

 
S

C
S

.  
Th

er
e 

m
us

t b
e 

an
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

to
 tr

ig
ge

r r
ec

ov
er

 o
f a

ll 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t f
ro

m
 s

ta
ff 

le
av

in
g 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
 o

f 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
or

 w
he

re
 S

IM
 c

ar
ds

 a
re

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r t
ra

ffi
c 

lig
ht

 s
ys

te
m

s,
 e

tc
. 

• 
A

 fu
ll 

re
vi

ew
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 o

f t
he

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

w
ith

 V
od

af
on

e 
fo

r t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f i
nt

er
ne

t u
sa

ge
 v

ia
 3

G
 S

IM
 

ca
rd

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

if 
th

ey
 a

re
 g

et
tin

g 
va

lu
e 

fo
r m

on
ey

 in
 th

is
 a

re
a 

an
d 

w
he

th
er

 o
th

er
 o

pt
io

ns
 o

f a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 

co
st

 s
av

in
gs

 o
n 

In
te

rn
et

 u
sa

ge
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

 
 

 

Page 110



IN
TE

R
N

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

 R
EP

O
R

TS
 F

IN
A

LI
SE

D
 O

C
TO

B
ER

 - 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

9 

 A
ud

it 
Ti

tle
:  

A
nt

i-F
ra

ud
 &

 C
or

ru
pt

io
n 

– 
G

ift
s 

an
d 

H
os

pi
ta

lit
y 

 
D

at
e 

of
 A

ud
it:

 
Ju

ly
 2

00
9 

N
um

be
r o

f H
ig

h 
Pr

io
rit

y 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
: 

13
 

C
ur

re
nt

 A
ud

it 
O

pi
ni

on
:  

4 
Pr

ev
io

us
 A

ud
it 

O
pi

ni
on

:  
N

/A
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
(R

is
k)

:
M

od
er

at
e 

K
ey

 F
in

di
ng

s 
an

d 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

A
 re

vi
ew

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ca

rri
ed

 o
ut

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 to
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f B
us

in
es

s 
Tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

 c
on

tro
ls

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
de

cl
ar

at
io

n 
of

 G
ift

s 
an

d 
H

os
pi

ta
lit

y.
  T

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

E
xt

er
na

l A
ud

ito
r’s

 a
ls

o 
ex

pe
ct

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
to

 c
ov

er
 fr

au
d 

an
d 

co
rru

pt
io

n 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 to

 p
re

ve
nt

 a
ny

 m
at

er
ia

l l
os

s 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

  
 It 

w
as

 fo
un

d 
th

at
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
po

lic
y 

fo
r G

ift
s 

an
d 

H
os

pi
ta

lit
y 

is
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

by
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f L
aw

 a
nd

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 s
uc

h 
as

 re
m

in
de

rs
 b

ei
ng

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
in

 T
ea

m
 B

rie
fin

gs
, N

ew
sr

ou
nd

 a
nd

 b
ul

le
tin

s.
 9

1.
6%

 o
f s

ta
ff 

sa
id

 th
at

 
th

ey
 w

er
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 p

ol
ic

y 
in

 th
e 

la
te

st
 s

ta
ff 

su
rv

ey
.   

 Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ke

y 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 w

er
e 

m
ad

e:
   

• 
A

 p
ro

ce
ss

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

st
af

f r
et

ur
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 C
od

e 
of

 C
on

du
ct

 s
ig

ne
d 

de
cl

ar
at

io
n,

 to
 c

on
fir

m
 

th
at

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
re

ad
 a

nd
 u

nd
er

st
oo

d 
th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 C

on
du

ct
. 

• 
Th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 C

on
du

ct
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
st

af
f i

nd
uc

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s.

 
• 

In
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
S

ec
tio

n 
75

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t f

or
 th

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
an

d 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s,

 a
rra

ng
em

en
ts

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 s

ta
ff 

in
 jo

in
t f

un
de

d 
po

st
s 

(b
ot

h 
w

ith
in

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l c
ar

e)
, h

av
e 

si
gn

ed
 u

p 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 C
od

e 
of

 C
on

du
ct

. 
  

 
       

Page 111



IN
TE

R
N

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

 R
EP

O
R

TS
 F

IN
A

LI
SE

D
 O

C
TO

B
ER

 - 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

9 

A
ud

it 
Ti

tle
: 

G
re

en
do

w
n 

S
ch

oo
l 

D
at

e 
of

 A
ud

it:
 

 
Ju

ne
 - 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
9 

C
ur

re
nt

 A
ud

it 
O

pi
ni

on
:  

4 
Pr

ev
io

us
 A

ud
it 

O
pi

ni
on

:  
N

/A
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
(R

is
k)

: 
O

f C
on

ce
rn

 

K
ey

 F
in

di
ng

s 
an

d 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 G
re

en
do

w
n 

Sc
ho

ol
 w

as
 e

xt
er

na
lly

 a
ss

es
se

d 
by

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 D
fE

S
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ta
nd

ar
d 

in
 S

ch
oo

ls
 (F

M
S

iS
) a

nd
 w

as
 fo

un
d 

no
t t

o 
m

ee
t t

he
 s

ta
nd

ar
d.

   
 A

n 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 s
ch

oo
l w

as
 a

ls
o 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 re

su
lti

ng
 in

 a
n 

ov
er

al
l o

pi
ni

on
 o

f ‘
of

 c
on

ce
rn

’. 
 T

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

ke
y 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 w
er

e 
m

ad
e:

 
• 

A
 re

vi
ew

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 o
f t

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
us

ed
 w

he
n 

th
e 

20
09

/1
0 

pr
ed

ic
te

d 
de

fic
it 

bu
dg

et
 w

as
 in

iti
al

ly
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

of
 £

16
1k

, t
o 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
th

e 
re

as
on

s 
f o

th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 v

ar
ia

nc
e 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 re

po
rte

d 
to

 th
e 

LA
 in

 J
un

e 
20

09
 o

f £
27

2,
51

5 
(6

9%
 in

cr
ea

se
), 

on
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

’s
 b

ud
ge

t t
em

pl
at

e.
 

• 
Th

e 
re

vi
ew

 s
ho

ul
d 

in
cl

ud
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

co
st

in
gs

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

w
he

th
er

 a
ll 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 fa

ct
or

s 
an

d 
hi

st
or

ic
 tr

en
ds

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

cc
ou

nt
ed

 fo
r a

nd
 to

 c
on

fir
m

 th
e 

bu
dg

se
t i

s 
re

al
is

tic
 a

nd
 a

ch
ie

va
bl

e.
  T

he
 s

ch
oo

l s
ho

ul
d 

se
ek

 a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

fro
m

 th
e 

LA
’s

 F
in

an
ce

 T
ea

m
 in

 c
on

du
ct

in
g 

th
is

 re
vi

ew
. T

he
 re

su
lts

 fr
om

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 s

ho
ul

be
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 to
 th

e 
G

ro
up

 F
in

an
ci

al
 M

an
ag

er
 fo

r C
hi

ld
re

n 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

bu
dg

et
 n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
re

st
at

ed
 a

nd
 a

 re
vi

si
on

 to
 th

e 
lic

en
se

d 
de

fic
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

LA
.  

  
• 

A
 d

et
ai

le
d 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

sc
ho

ol
’s

 d
ef

ic
it 

bu
dg

et
, w

hi
ch

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

on
ito

re
d 

by
 th

e 
S

ch
oo

l’s
 F

in
an

ce
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 a
nd

 
re

gu
la

rly
 re

po
rt 

on
 to

 th
e 

Fu
ll 

G
ov

er
ni

ng
 B

od
y.

 
• 

A
 re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 S

ch
oo

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

al
l c

os
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
an

d 
ar

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

. 
• 

A
ll 

ac
tio

ns
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
S

ch
oo

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n,
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
an

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

, s
ho

ul
d 

be
 fu

lly
 c

os
te

d 
an

d 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

m
ad

fo
r t

hi
s 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 in

 th
e 

sc
ho

ol
’s

 b
ud

ge
t. 

• 
D

et
ai

le
d 

bu
dg

et
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 fo

r G
ov

er
no

rs
 to

 a
llo

w
 fo

r r
ob

us
t m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

ch
al

le
ng

e.
 

• 
A

 c
en

tra
l c

on
tra

ct
 re

gi
st

er
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 d
ev

is
ed

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

de
ta

ilin
g 

al
l c

on
tra

ct
s 

in
 p

la
ce

, t
he

ir 
ex

pi
ry

 d
at

e,
 a

nn
ua

l c
os

t a
nd

 c
on

tra
ct

 c
ov

er
ag

e.
  T

hi
s 

re
gi

st
er

 s
ho

ul
d 

al
so

 b
e 

us
ed

 a
s 

a 
re

co
rd

 to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

at
 a

de
qu

at
e 

in
su

ra
nc

es
 a

nd
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

. 
• 

In
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 fo
r s

ch
oo

ls
, q

uo
te

s 
an

d 
fo

rm
al

 te
nd

er
in

g 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
w

he
n 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 
ex

ce
ed

, £
1k

 a
nd

 £
50

k 
re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

• 
S

eg
re

ga
tio

n 
of

 d
ut

ie
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

H
R

/P
ay

ro
ll 

fu
nc

tio
n.

 
• 

A
 re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 c

at
er

in
g 

bu
dg

et
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

at
 th

e 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 le
ve

l o
f i

nc
om

e 
is

 a
ch

ie
va

bl
e.

  
• 

A
n 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 c
at

er
in

g 
tu

rn
ov

er
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 d
ev

is
ed

, u
si

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ob

ta
in

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 m
ea

ls
 c

as
hl

es
s 

sy
st

em
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

ar
ea

s 
w

he
re

 
ta

ke
 u

p 
ca

n 
be

 in
cr

ea
se

d.
 

• 
Th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 fu
nd

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r e
nd

in
g 

30
th
 J

un
e 

20
08

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

re
pa

re
d 

an
d 

su
bm

itt
ed

 fo
r a

ud
it 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

. 
• 

S
ch

oo
l F

un
d 

ba
nk

 re
co

nc
ilia

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 p
ro

m
pt

ly
, u

po
n 

re
ce

ip
t o

f t
he

 b
an

k 
st

at
em

en
t. 

• 
Th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 s
ho

ul
d 

se
ek

 a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

fro
m

 th
e 

LA
 in

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

a 
sc

ho
ol

 s
pe

ci
fic

 D
is

as
te

r R
ec

ov
er

y,
 B

us
in

es
s 

C
on

tin
ui

ty
 a

nd
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
P

la
n.

   

Page 112



IN
TE

R
N

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

 R
EP

O
R

TS
 F

IN
A

LI
SE

D
 O

C
TO

B
ER

 - 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

9 

A
ud

it 
Ti

tle
: 

S
C

S
 R

ea
di

ne
ss

 1
 

D
at

e 
of

 A
ud

it:
 

 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
9 

C
ur

re
nt

 A
ud

it 
O

pi
ni

on
:  

N
/A

 
Pr

ev
io

us
 A

ud
it 

O
pi

ni
on

:  
N

/A
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
(R

is
k)

: 
N

on
e 

G
iv

en
 

K
ey

 F
in

di
ng

s 
an

d 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 A
n 

in
iti

al
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f r

ea
di

ne
ss

 fo
r t

he
 d

ec
ou

pl
in

g 
of

 S
C

S
 w

as
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t, 
by

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it,
 a

ga
in

st
 a

gr
ee

d 
ch

ec
kl

is
ts

, a
nd

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 th
e 

Tr
an

si
tio

n 
Bo

ar
d 

an
d 

Le
ad

er
’s

 A
dv

is
or

y 
G

ro
up

 (L
A

G
) 

      A
ud

it 
Ti

tle
: 

S
C

S
 R

ea
di

ne
ss

 2
 

D
at

e 
of

 A
ud

it:
 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 

C
ur

re
nt

 A
ud

it 
O

pi
ni

on
:  

N
/A

 
Pr

ev
io

us
 A

ud
it 

O
pi

ni
on

:  
N

/A
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
(R

is
k)

: 
N

on
e 

G
iv

en
 

K
ey

 F
in

di
ng

s 
an

d 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 A
 fu

rth
er

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f r
ea

di
ne

ss
 fo

r t
he

 d
ec

ou
pl

in
g 

of
 S

C
S

 w
as

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t a

nd
 fi

nd
in

gs
 w

er
e 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 C
ab

in
et

. 
           

Page 113



IN
TE

R
N

A
L 

A
U

D
IT

 R
EP

O
R

TS
 F

IN
A

LI
SE

D
 O

C
TO

B
ER

 - 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

9 

A
ud

it 
Ti

tle
: 

A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t 
D

at
e 

of
 A

ud
it:

 
 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9 

C
ur

re
nt

 A
ud

it 
O

pi
ni

on
:  

N
/A

 
Pr

ev
io

us
 A

ud
it 

O
pi

ni
on

:  
N

/A
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
(R

is
k)

: 
N

on
e 

G
iv

en
 

K
ey

 F
in

di
ng

s 
an

d 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

      A
ud

it 
Ti

tle
: 

O
rc

hi
d 

V
al

e 
P

rim
ar

y 
S

ch
oo

l 
D

at
e 

of
 A

ud
it:

 
 

Ju
ne

 2
00

9 

C
ur

re
nt

 A
ud

it 
O

pi
ni

on
:  

2 
Pr

ev
io

us
 A

ud
it 

O
pi

ni
on

:  
N

/A
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
(R

is
k)

: 
M

in
im

al
 

K
ey

 F
in

di
ng

s 
an

d 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

  O
rc

hi
d 

V
al

e 
P

rim
ar

y 
S

ch
oo

l w
as

 e
xt

er
na

lly
 a

ss
es

se
d 

by
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 D

fE
S

 F
in

an
ci

al
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ta

nd
ar

d 
in

 S
ch

oo
ls

 (F
M

S
iS

) a
nd

 w
as

 fo
un

d 
to

 m
ee

t t
he

 s
ta

nd
ar

d.
 

 A
n 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 s

ch
oo

l w
as

 a
ls

o 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 re
su

lti
ng

 in
 a

n 
ov

er
al

l o
pi

ni
on

 o
f ‘

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y’

.  
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
an

d 
ag

re
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

ar
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d.
 

  

Page 114



A
pr

il 
M

ay
 

Ju
ne

 
Ju

ly
A

ug
us

t
Se

pt
em

be
r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
M

an
ag

ed
 A

ud
its

 C
om

pl
et

ed
 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
en

ts
C

re
di

to
rs

D
eb

to
rs

M
an

ag
ed

 M
on

th
 T

ot
al

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
1

1
0

0
0

M
an

ag
ed

 C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

To
ta

l
0

0
0

0
0

1
1

2
3

3
3

3
M

an
ag

ed
 T

ar
ge

t %
0

0
0

0
0

0
25

50
50

75
75

10
0

M
an

ag
ed

 A
ch

ie
ve

d 
%

 
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

25
%

25
%

50
%

75
%

75
%

75
%

75
%

A
pr

il 
M

ay
 

Ju
ne

 
Ju

ly
A

ug
us

t
Se

pt
em

be
r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
Pl

an
ne

d 
A

ud
its

 C
om

pl
et

ed
 

A
nt

i F
 &

 C
 

R
en

ov
at

io
n 

G
ra

nt
s

A
 F

&
C

 
C

on
tro

lle
d 

S
ta

tio
ne

ry

A
nn

ua
l 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t

B
is

ho
ps

to
ne

 
P

rim
ar

y 
S

ch
oo

l
IN

V
08

/0
9-

12
(a

)
H

B
 

B
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng

D
is

as
te

r 
R

ec
ov

er
y 

P
la

nn
in

g

N
I1

12
 - 

Te
en

ag
e 

P
re

gn
an

ci
es

S
C

S
 R

ea
di

ne
ss

 
2

A
nt

i-F
 &

 C
 G

ift
s 

&
 H

os
pi

ta
lit

y
A

 F
&

C
 P

et
ty

 
C

as
h

Fu
nd

ed
 N

ur
si

ng
 

C
ar

e
G

re
en

do
w

n 
S

ch
oo

l
W

B
08

/0
9-

11
H

on
or

ar
iu

m
s

W
B

09
/1

0 
- 5

C
rim

e 
&

 D
is

or
de

rO
ra

cl
e 

Fo
llo

w
-u

p

A
sp

ire
 - 

C
on

tra
ct

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t

C
on

ta
ct

 P
oi

nt
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
P

ol
ic

y

G
or

se
 H

ill
 

In
fa

nt
s 

S
ch

oo
l

M
ob

ile
 P

ho
ne

s
C

lie
nt

 R
ea

di
ne

ss
In

ci
de

nt
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
P

ro
ce

ss

G
ro

w
th

 P
oi

nt
 

Fu
nd

in
g

A
du

lt 
Le

ar
ni

ng
P

ro
je

ct
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

O
ffi

ce
 (P

M
O

)

C
A

P
IT

A
 D

el
iv

er
y

G
or

se
 H

ill
 J

un
io

r 
S

ch
oo

l
H

ig
hw

ay
s

O
pe

n 
H

ou
si

ng
 IT

 
R

ev
ie

w
O

ve
rti

m
e

C
on

ta
ct

 P
oi

nt
U

R
 C

ak
es

D
eb

to
rs

 - 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
Is

su
es

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 
P

ro
pe

rti
es

 
Fo

llo
w

-u
p

IN
V

09
/1

0 
- 2

P
C

I F
ol

lo
w

-u
p

O
rc

hi
d 

V
al

e
R

ec
ou

pm
en

t
A

du
lt 

Le
ar

ni
ng

IN
V

08
/0

9
M

ai
n 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g

D
ep

ut
ys

hi
ps

R
es

id
en

ts
 a

nd
 

Te
na

nt
s 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 - 
G

ui
da

nc
e

TA
S

K
R

od
bo

ur
ne

 
C

he
ne

y 
P

rim
ar

y 
S

ch
oo

l
W

B
09

/1
0 

- 3
S

ic
kn

es
s 

A
bs

en
ce

 F
ol

lo
w

 
up

IN
V

09
/1

0 
- 3

B
an

k 
R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n

P
C

I U
pd

at
e

R
us

ki
n 

Ju
ni

or
 

S
ch

oo
l R

ev
is

it
W

B
08

/0
9 

- 2
U

N
IF

O
R

M
 

W
B

09
/1

0 
- 7

IN
V

08
/0

9-
12

(b
)

Fe
rn

da
le

 
P

rim
ar

y
D

or
ca

n 
S

C
IT

T

R
en

ov
at

io
n 

G
ra

nt
s

S
ic

kn
es

s 
A

bs
en

ce
 P

I
W

B
09

/1
0 

- 2
W

es
tro

p 
P

rim
ar

y
IN

V
08

/0
9-

12
(c

)
C

re
di

to
rs

 - 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
Is

su
es

A
nn

ua
l 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t

S
ur

es
ta

rt
P

LA
TF

O
R

M
S

C
S

 R
ea

di
ne

ss
 

1 

K
in

g 
W

ill
ia

m
 

S
tre

et
 P

rim
ar

y 
S

ch
oo

l

Le
is

ur
e 

C
ha

rg
in

g
O

rc
hi

d 
V

al
e 

P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l

R
id

ge
w

ay
 

S
ch

oo
l

S
E

N
R

A
P

C
hu

rc
hf

ie
ld

s 
S

ch
oo

l

N
on

-m
an

ag
ed

 to
ta

l f
or

 m
on

th
9

8
8

8
3

7
12

11
9

0
0

0
C

um
m

ul
at

iv
e 

no
n 

m
an

ag
ed

 
au

di
ts

9
17

25
33

36
43

55
66

75
75

75
75

A
pr

il 
M

ay
 

Ju
ne

 
Ju

ly
A

ug
us

t
Se

pt
em

be
r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
D

ec
em

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
O

ve
ra

ll 
M

on
th

 T
ot

al
 A

ud
its

9
8

8
8

3
8

12
12

10
0

0
0

O
ve

ra
ll 

To
ta

l A
ud

its
9

17
25

33
36

44
56

68
78

78
78

78
Ta

rg
et

 C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 P

la
n 

%
3

7
13

22
29

38
47

56
63

71
80

92
A

ud
it 

Pl
an

 A
ch

ie
vm

en
t %

7%
13

%
19

%
25

%
27

%
34

%
43

%
52

%
60

%
60

%
60

%
60

%

M
an

ag
ed

 A
ud

its
 C

om
pl

et
ed

 (4
 A

ud
its

) -
 D

ra
ft

To
ta

l N
on

 M
an

ag
ed

 A
ud

its
 C

om
pl

et
ed

 (1
27

)  
- D

ra
ft

P
re

pa
re

d 
by

 N
ic

k 
H

ob
bs

, H
ea

d 
of

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
14

:3
5 

 1
8/

01
/1

0

Page 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



Internal Audit reports identifying significant risk or ‘of concern’: 
Mobile Phones 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE Date: 26th January 2009 
 
Author: Head of Internal Audit 
Wards Affected: None 

Purpose 
Members requested that at least one individual audit report be presented to each 
meeting of the Committee. This report should be one that has been classified as 
being of ‘significant risk’ or ‘of concern’, if one had been issued since the 
previous meeting of the Committee. If not, then a report would be selected in 
liaison with the Chair of the Audit Committee. 
 

 

Recommendation 
• It is recommended that the contents of the report be noted. 
 

 
1 Reasons 

 
1.1 The Council’s Audit Committee has a strategic role to ensure that the 

Council’s assurance framework is operating effectively. To this end it 
should seek assurance that key areas that contribute to this framework 
are operating properly. 

 
1.2 Internal Audit’s terms of reference require that at least one individual 

audit report be submitted to each meeting of the Committee.  
 

1.3 The Chair of the Audit Committee requested that the report on Mobile 
Phones be brought to the next committee meeting. 

 
2 Detail 

 
2.1 A copy of the report on the internal audit review of Mobile Phones 

procedures is attached as Appendix 1. The report was finalised in 
December 2009 and an overall risk assessment of ‘Of Concern’ was 
given.  

 
2.2 The key recommendations made in the report to achieve the 

improvements required include: 

• A significant number of key system controls to prevent possible fraud 
and corruption, wastage and misuse of mobile phones are absent.  In 
addition recommendations made in the audit report from March 2006 
have not been implemented. 

• Managers are severely compromised, as they are unable to manage and 
monitor mobile phone and data usage or charges.  A means of providing 

Agenda Item 12

Page 117



Internal Audit reports identifying significant risk or ‘of concern’: 
Mobile Phones 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE Date: 26th January 2009 
 

managers with an on-line bill approval process for their service area 
should be evaluated and where possible implemented.   

• Premium lines should be barred; justification for international calls 
should be established.  Monitoring should be conducted to identify any 
potential misuse of Council mobile phones in line with the corporate 
mobile phone policy. 

• Formal procedures should be introduced for the informing of lost/stolen 
mobile phones ensuring that the relevant budget holder is informed at all 
times that a phone has been lost or stolen. 

• A standard and consistent process should be established to ensure that 
there is a central record of all equipment issued to officers including 
mobile phones. The mobile phone inventory should be reviewed and 
updated to ensure that all mobile phones and SIM cards owned by the 
Council can be fully accounted for. The inventory should include mobile 
phones at SCS.  There must be an effective process to trigger recovery 
of all mobile phone equipment from staff leaving the employ of the 
Council or where SIM cards are no longer required for traffic light 
systems etc. 

• A full review should be conducted of the agreement in place with 
Vodafone for the provision of Internet usage via 3G SIM card. The 
Council should establish if they are getting value for money in this area 
and whether other options of achieving cost savings on Internet usage 
are available. 

 
2.3 It should be noted that responsibility for Mobile Phones has changed 

from when the previous audit was carried out i.e. it was previously with 
the IT Telecoms Officer but now resides with the Head of ICT. 

 
2.4 The above audit report and management update are submitted for 

Members consideration. The Group Director: Business Transformation 
and/or the Head of ICT will be at the Audit Committee to answer any 
questions Members may have. 

 
Alternative Options 
 
Not Applicable 
 

Page 118



Internal Audit reports identifying significant risk or ‘of concern’: 
Mobile Phones 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE Date: 26th January 2009 
 

Risk Management 
Financial and Procurement Implications 
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report however the 
detailed audit report address the suitability of internal controls within the systems 
examined.  
Legal/Human Rights Implications 
Internal Audit is a statutory requirement of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2006. The Internal Audit service also provides assurance to the Director of 
Finance regarding the requirements of Section 151 of the Local Government Act 
1972. 

Links to Corporate Plans and Policies (in particular to Swindon 2010 Promises) 
Internal Control, Audit Committee and the Annual Governance Statement all 
feature significantly in the CAA Use of Resources Assessment. Effective systems 
of internal control within the Council will help to ensure that the objectives set out 
in the Corporate Plan and Swindon 2010 are achieved. 

 
Consultees  
The Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) and the Director of Law and Democratic 
Services (Monitoring Officer) are consulted on all reports. 
Head of ICT 
 
Appendices / Background papers 
Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Report: Mobile Phones 
 
Key Decision/Decision in Forward Plan 
Not Applicable 
 

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



18/01/2010 1 Swindon Internal Audit Services
 

Swindon Borough Council 
Civic Offices, Euclid Street, Swindon, SN1 2JH 

 
Swindon Internal Audit Services 

 
Memorandum to: Hitesh Patel Group Director, Business Transformation 

  
Copies: David Titcombe Head of ICT 

Matt Gott Director, Partnership, Policy and Communications 

Kirsty Cole  Group Finance Manager - Corporate 

Nicola Houwayek Head of HR Policy & Strategy  

Mike Fitzgerald Finance, Director Swindon Commercial Services 

  
From: Lorraine Sarson Principal Auditor 
Date: 9th December 2009 

Your Reference:  
Our Reference: BT/Mobile Phones/MF 

Telephone: 01793 463936 
Fax: 01793 464603 

 
Internal Audit Review - Mobile Phones  

 
Introduction 
 
The review was carried out as part of the planned audit work for the financial year 2009/10 
in order to provide assurance to the Director of Business Transformation that there are 
adequate controls within the mobile phones process.  The Council’s External Auditor’s also 
expect Internal Audit to cover fraud and corruption arrangements in place to prevent any 
material loss to the Council.  Mel Fitzgerald conducted the review.   
 
Swindon Borough Council has an agreement with Vodafone for the supply of mobile 
telephones. This is a two-year rolling contract, which was set-up against the Office Of 
Government Commerce (OGC) framework agreement.  
 
Mobile phones are issued through the Capita Central Telecommunications team under the 
Director of Customer Communications, with the exception of Swindon Commercial Services, 
who manage their own mobile phones but should comply with the OGC framework 
agreement.  
 
Approach 
 
A checklist detailing key risks and expected controls within the mobile phone system was 
produced and completed during the audit to determine the extent of internal controls in the 
mobile phone system.  This was to ensure that resources are properly applied, value for 
money is secured, fraud and other losses prevented and that legislation and Council 
policies i.e. Financial Regulations etc. are complied with.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 121



18/01/2010 2 Swindon Internal Audit Services
 

Audit Opinion 
 
(a) Materiality and impact: Medium.   The Council has 1,248 agreements with 

Vodafone under a corporate contract providing SIM cards for use in mobile phones, 
traffic light systems and parking meters.  In the last year Vodafone charged the 
Council £143,643 under this contract.  Whilst it is a system of low materiality, there 
could be a medium impact and reputation risk to the Council in the event of fraud and 
corruption with misuse and wastage of Council resources. Under the New Ways Of 
Working programme (NWOW) there is expected to be a higher level of dependency 
on mobile phones with a reduction of landline communications. 

 
(b) Changes since last audit: A previous audit on mobile phones was carried out in 

March 2006. The table below shows a summary of whether recommendations made 
at that audit have been implemented or not:   

 

Implemented Not 
Implemented In Progress Other/no longer 

applicable. TOTAL 

Recommendations 2005/06 0 8 0 8 16 

 
All recommendations were agreed for implementation for the last audit 
however none of these have been implemented but they continue to be 
relevant. The audit opinion has been formed in view of weaknesses identified in both 
the previous and current reviews, which has highlighted a number of key areas where 
the potential exposure to fraud and corruption risks is high and continues unchecked 
or effectively controlled.   
 
It should be noted that the IT Telecoms Officer was responsible for the service during 
at the time of the last audit.  However, during 2009 responsibility transferred to the 
Council’s IT Business Partner. 

 
(c) Opinion on system controls: Fundamental weaknesses identified: (see 

Appendix B) i.e. the auditor completing the review concluded that the matters arising 
from the review are sufficiently significant to place doubt on the reliability of the 
procedures reviewed. Implementation of the recommendations made is a priority to 
ensure that reliance can be placed on the system.  

 
(d) Overall assessment of risk: The combination of the medium materiality and impact 

of the system along with the opinion on the system controls gives an overall risk 
assessment to the Council as being of concern.  See below: 

 
 MATERIALITY AND IMPACT 

SYSTEM CONTROL High Medium Low 

1 High standard Minimal Minimal Minimal 

2 Satisfactory Moderate Minimal Minimal 

3 
 

Significant Improvements 
required 

Of Concern Moderate Minimal 

Page 122



18/01/2010 3 Swindon Internal Audit Services
 

4 Fundamental 
weaknesses identified  Significant Of Concern Moderate 

 
The following key recommendations should be implemented in order to achieve the 
improvements required:    

• A significant number of key system controls to prevent possible fraud and corruption, 
wastage and misuse of mobile phones are absent.  In addition recommendations 
made in the audit report from March 2006 have not been implemented. 

• Managers are severely compromised, as they are unable to manage and monitor 
mobile phone and data usage or charges.  A means of providing managers with an 
on-line bill approval process for their service area should be evaluated and where 
possible implemented.   

• Premium lines should be barred; justification for international calls should be 
established.  Monitoring should be conducted to identify any potential misuse of 
Council mobile phones in line with the corporate mobile phone policy. 

• Formal procedures should be introduced for the informing of lost/stolen mobile 
phones ensuring that the relevant budget holder is informed at all times that a phone 
has been lost or stolen. 

• A standard and consistent process should be established to ensure that there is a 
central record of all equipment issued to officers including mobile phones. The mobile 
phone inventory should be reviewed and updated to ensure that all mobile phones 
and SIM cards owned by the Council can be fully accounted for. The inventory 
should include mobile phones at SCS.  There must be an effective process to trigger 
recovery of all mobile phone equipment from staff leaving the employ of the Council 
or where SIM cards are no longer required for traffic light systems etc. 

• A full review should be conducted of the agreement in place with Vodafone for the 
provision of Internet usage via 3G SIM card. The Council should establish if they are 
getting value for money in this area and whether other options of achieving cost 
savings on Internet usage are available. 

 
The action plan attached at Appendix A provides a checklist of the findings of the review, 
potential risks, and identifies officers responsible for implementing the recommendations, 
time-scales and a priority ranking.  
 
The management responses to the recommendations made in the report can be found at 
Appendix C. All recommendations will be followed up in line with good practice depending 
on the type of recommendations made.   

 
I would like to thank you and your staff for the help and assistance given to Mel during the 
course of this review. If there are any queries in respect of the results, please contact either 
Mel or me. 
 
Many thanks, 
 
 

Page 123



 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
R

ep
or

t –
 M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n 

18
/0

1/
20

10
 

4 
S

w
in

do
n 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

  
Se

ct
io

n 
6:

 F
in

di
ng

s 
an

d 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 - 

A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 
 

 Th
e 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 th

is
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 is

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 s
um

m
ar

y 
of

 th
e 

m
at

te
rs

 a
ris

in
g 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
au

di
t o

f M
ob

ile
 P

ho
ne

s 
A

nt
i F

ra
ud

 a
nd

 C
or

ru
pt

io
n 

to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 
th

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 r
is

ks
, r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ac
tio

ns
. I

n 
or

de
r 

fo
r 

yo
u 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
m

os
t s

ig
ni

fic
an

t m
at

te
rs

 a
ris

in
g,

 w
hi

ch
 a

ffe
ct

 th
e 

re
lia

nc
e 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

pl
ac

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

ls
 re

vi
ew

ed
, t

he
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
rio

rit
is

ed
. 

 
 

R
ef

. 
 

M
at

te
rs

 A
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 R
ev

ie
w

 
 

R
is

k 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
O

ffi
ce

r a
nd

 
Pr

op
os

ed
 

Ti
m

es
ca

le
 

1 
Th

er
e 

is
 a

 d
ef

in
ed

 c
or

po
ra

te
 p

ol
ic

y 
fo

r t
he

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t a
nd

 u
se

 o
f m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s 

an
d 

st
af

f a
re

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 it

s 
ex

is
te

nc
e.

  
1.

1 
A

 m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 p
ol

ic
y 

is
 in

 p
la

ce
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il,
 h

ow
ev

er
 it

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
fo

rm
al

ly
 re

vi
ew

ed
.  

Th
e 

po
lic

y 
is

 o
ut

 o
f 

da
te

.  
 Th

e 
po

lic
y 

re
fe

rs
 to

 T
el

ep
ho

ne
 L

ia
is

on
 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 (T
LO

’s
); 

th
es

e 
po

st
s 

ar
e 

no
 

lo
ng

er
 in

 e
xi

st
en

ce
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

tra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

C
ap

ita
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. 
 Th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
gu

id
an

ce
 fo

r s
ta

ff 
or

 
m

an
ag

er
s 

on
 th

e 
tre

at
m

en
t o

f m
ob

ile
 

ph
on

es
 d

ur
in

g 
ex

te
nd

ed
 le

av
e 

su
ch

 a
s 

m
at

er
ni

ty
 a

nd
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 s

ic
k.

 
 Th

e 
po

lic
y 

al
so

 d
oe

s 
no

t i
nc

lu
de

 th
e 

m
is

us
e 

of
 p

ho
to

gr
ap

hs
, v

id
eo

 a
nd

 
in

te
rn

et
. 

 

S
ta

ff 
ar

e 
un

aw
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
po

lic
y 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 w

ith
 re

ga
rd

s 
to

 h
av

in
g 

a 
m

ob
ile

 
ph

on
e.

 
 S

ta
ff 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
a 

m
ob

ile
 

ph
on

e 
ar

e 
un

aw
ar

e 
of

 
th

ei
r r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s.
  

 M
is

us
e 

of
 p

ho
ne

s 
an

d 
un

ab
le

 to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 

ef
fe

ct
 u

se
 o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
. 

 U
nd

ue
 c

rit
ic

is
m

 fr
om

 
lo

ca
l/n

at
io

na
l p

re
ss

 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 lo
ss

 o
f p

ub
lic

 
co

nf
id

en
ce

. 
 

Th
e 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 p
ol

ic
y 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 re

gu
la

rly
 a

nd
 u

pd
at

ed
 to

 re
fle

ct
 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t w

ay
s 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
, s

ta
ff 

an
d 

m
an

ag
er

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

co
ve

r t
he

 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

es
 o

f m
is

us
e 

of
 a

ll 
th

e 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 th
at

 p
ho

ne
s 

co
m

e 
eq

ui
pp

ed
 

w
ith

 s
uc

h 
as

 c
am

er
a,

 in
te

rn
et

.  
 C

or
po

ra
te

 B
oa

rd
 s

ho
ul

d 
fo

rm
al

ly
 a

pp
ro

ve
 

th
e 

re
vi

se
d 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 p
ol

ic
y.

  
 S

im
ila

r r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

m
ad

e 
in

 th
e 

20
05

/0
6 

au
di

t r
ep

or
t A

P
1.

1.
 

H
ig

h 
 

IT
 B

us
in

es
s 

P
ar

tn
er

 –
 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
09

.  

 
       

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 
          Appendix A

Page 124



 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
R

ep
or

t –
 M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n 

18
/0

1/
20

10
 

5 
S

w
in

do
n 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

 

 
R

ef
. 

 
M

at
te

rs
 A

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 R

ev
ie

w
 

 
R

is
k 

 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

O
ffi

ce
r a

nd
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Ti

m
es

ca
le

 
1 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 d

ef
in

ed
 c

or
po

ra
te

 p
ol

ic
y 

fo
r t

he
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t a

nd
 u

se
 o

f m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s.
 S

ta
ff 

ar
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 it
s 

ex
is

te
nc

e.
 

1.
2 

S
ta

ff 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 s
ig

n 
a 

M
ob

ile
 

P
ho

ne
 C

on
tro

l f
or

m
 to

 c
on

fir
m

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
re

ad
 a

nd
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

e 
te

rm
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
of

 th
e 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 p
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

th
at

 th
ey

 a
gr

ee
 to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 
th

es
e.

  I
t i

s 
al

so
 to

 c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 h
as

 re
ce

iv
ed

 a
 s

pe
ci

fic
 m

ob
ile

 
ph

on
e 

to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 a
ny

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t i
ss

ue
d.

 
 Fr

om
 a

 s
am

pl
e 

of
 1

0 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 

co
nt

ra
ct

s 
ex

am
in

ed
, 5

0%
 d

id
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

a 
si

gn
ed

 d
ec

la
ra

tio
n.

 C
on

se
qu

en
tly

, t
he

re
 

is
 n

o 
re

co
rd

 th
at

 s
ta

ff 
ha

ve
 a

gr
ee

d 
to

 th
e 

te
rm

s 
an

d 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

of
 th

e 
m

ob
ile

 
ph

on
e 

po
lic

y 
or

 to
 a

ck
no

w
le

dg
e 

re
ce

ip
t 

of
 a

 m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 a
nd

 a
ny

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t i
ss

ue
d.

 
 Fr

om
 th

e 
5 

M
ob

ile
 P

ho
ne

 C
on

tro
l f

or
m

s 
ex

am
in

ed
, o

ne
 fo

rm
 w

as
 s

ig
ne

d 
by

 a
 

di
ffe

re
nt

 o
ffi

ce
r t

o 
th

at
 to

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
ph

on
e 

w
as

 is
su

ed
 to

.  
 

U
na

bl
e 

to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 

ef
fe

ct
 u

se
 o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
. 

 S
ta

ff 
de

ny
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
.  

 M
is

us
e 

of
 m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 

an
d 

un
ab

le
 to

 ta
ke

 
ef

fe
ct

 a
ct

io
n 

or
 re

co
ve

ry
 

of
 c

os
ts

 a
ga

in
st

 
em

pl
oy

ee
 in

 th
e 

ab
se

nc
e 

of
 a

 s
ig

ne
d 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 c
on

tra
ct

. 
 Th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
ev

id
en

ce
 

th
at

 s
ta

ff 
ha

ve
 re

ad
 th

e 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 p

ol
ic

y.
 

 S
ta

ff 
un

aw
ar

e 
of

 th
er

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s.
 

 U
nd

ue
 c

rit
ic

is
m

 fr
om

 
lo

ca
l/n

at
io

na
l p

re
ss

 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 lo
ss

 o
f p

ub
lic

 
co

nf
id

en
ce

. 
 Fr

au
d 

an
d 

co
rr

up
tio

n.
 

 

M
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
sh

ou
ld

 o
nl

y 
be

 is
su

ed
 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
re

ci
pi

en
t s

ig
ni

ng
 u

p 
to

 th
e 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

 A
ll 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
is

su
ed

 to
 s

ta
ff 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 a

 s
ig

ne
d 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 
ag

re
em

en
t. 

 A
n 

in
ve

nt
or

y 
re

vi
ew

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 in
 

lin
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f F

in
an

ci
al

 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

. 
 S

im
ila

r r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

m
ad

e 
in

 th
e 

20
05

/0
6 

re
po

rt 
A

P
2.

2.
 

  

H
ig

h 
IT

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
tn

er
 –

  
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

09
. 

 
      

Page 125



 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
R

ep
or

t –
 M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n 

18
/0

1/
20

10
 

6 
S

w
in

do
n 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

 

 
R

ef
. 

 
M

at
te

rs
 A

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 R

ev
ie

w
 

 
R

is
k 

 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

O
ffi

ce
r a

nd
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Ti

m
es

ca
le

 
1 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 d

ef
in

ed
 c

or
po

ra
te

 p
ol

ic
y 

fo
r t

he
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t a

nd
 u

se
 o

f m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s.
 S

ta
ff 

ar
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 it
s 

ex
is

te
nc

e.
 

1.
3 

It 
w

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

O
ra

cl
e 

S
ol

ut
io

ns
 th

at
 s

om
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
ar

e 
on

 th
e 

O
ra

ng
e 

ne
tw

or
k,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 n
ot

 
in

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

O
G

C
 c

on
tra

ct
. 

 Th
e 

Te
le

co
m

s 
M

an
ag

er
 w

as
 n

ot
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

on
 a

 d
iff

er
en

t n
et

w
or

k 
to

 
V

od
af

on
e.

  

N
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

an
d 

O
G

C
 c

on
tra

ct
. 

 U
na

bl
e 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
co

un
ci

l o
w

ne
d 

m
ob

ile
 

ph
on

es
. 

M
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
th

at
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 o
n 

an
y 

ne
tw

or
k 

ot
he

r t
ha

n 
V

od
af

on
e,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 p
ar

t 
of

 th
e 

O
G

C
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

ag
re

em
en

t, 
sh

ou
ld

 
be

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
ch

an
ge

d 
to

 th
e 

V
od

af
on

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
. 

 S
im

ila
r r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
m

ad
e 

in
 th

e 
20

05
/0

6 
re

po
rt 

A
P

2.
1.

 
  

H
ig

h 
IT

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
tn

er
 –

  
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

09
. 

2 
Ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 a

ut
ho

ris
ed

 p
rio

r t
o 

st
af

f b
ei

ng
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

 a
 m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
.  

2.
1 

Th
e 

Te
le

ph
on

y 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l A

dm
in

is
tra

to
r 

ad
vi

se
d 

th
at

 a
 b

us
in

es
s 

ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
rm

 is
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 a
ut

ho
ris

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 D

ire
ct

or
 p

rio
r t

o 
a 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 
be

in
g 

is
su

ed
. T

he
re

 is
 n

o 
ap

pr
ov

al
 

so
ug

ht
 fr

om
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 b

ud
ge

t h
ol

de
r. 

 
Fo

r t
he

 s
am

pl
e 

of
 1

0 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 

co
nt

ra
ct

s 
ex

am
in

ed
 th

er
e 

w
as

 n
o 

bu
si

ne
ss

 ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
rm

 re
ta

in
ed

 to
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 o
n 

w
ha

t b
as

is
 th

es
e 

m
ob

ile
 

ph
on

es
 w

er
e 

au
th

or
is

ed
.  

 
Th

e 
Te

le
ph

on
y 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l A
dm

in
is

tra
to

r 
pr

ov
id

ed
 th

e 
A

ud
ito

r w
ith

 a
 b

us
in

es
s 

ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
rm

 te
m

pl
at

e.
 It

 w
as

 fo
un

d 
th

at
 th

e 
fo

rm
 d

oe
s 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
 a

 fu
ll 

re
vi

ew
 o

f e
qu

ip
m

en
t r

eq
ui

re
d 

fo
r a

n 
of

fic
er

 to
 fu

lfi
l t

he
ir 

du
tie

s,
 a

nd
 b

y 
ha

vi
ng

 
a 

m
ob

ile
 d

o 
th

ey
 n

ec
es

sa
ril

y 
re

qu
ire

 a
ny

 
ot

he
r e

qu
ip

m
en

t s
uc

h 
as

 a
 la

nd
lin

e 
ph

on
e.

  
 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 d
o 

no
t n

ee
d 

a 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 o

r 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

ly
 w

he
re

 
th

ey
 d

o,
 a

 la
nd

lin
e 

is
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 re
qu

ire
d.

  
 B

ud
ge

t h
ol

de
r u

na
w

ar
e 

ph
on

es
 a

nd
 c

os
ts

 u
nd

er
 

th
ei

r r
em

it.
  

 C
os

t o
f c

al
ls

 d
iv

er
te

d 
fro

m
 la

nd
lin

e 
to

 m
ob

ile
 

ph
on

es
 is

 e
xc

es
si

ve
. 

Th
e 

po
lic

y 
fo

r m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

w
ha

t c
rit

er
ia

 s
ho

ul
d 

ap
pl

y 
fo

r N
W

O
W

 a
nd

 th
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 w
or

ki
ng

 
ca

te
go

rie
s.

 
A

 re
vi

ew
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 a

ga
in

st
 

th
es

e 
cr

ite
ria

 in
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
ne

w
 

w
ay

s 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

; a
 ro

lli
ng

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
sh

ou
ld

 
be

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 o

n 
al

l s
ta

ff 
w

ith
 m

ob
ile

 
ph

on
es

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

er
e 

is
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 
ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
fo

r t
he

m
 to

 h
av

e 
a 

m
ob

ile
 

ph
on

e.
 W

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

va
lid

 re
as

on
 th

e 
ph

on
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 w

ith
dr

aw
n.

  
A

ll 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 c

on
tra

ct
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

w
ith

 a
 b

us
in

es
s 

ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

th
at

 
ha

s 
be

en
 fo

rm
al

ly
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 

bu
dg

et
 h

ol
de

r. 
 

A
no

m
al

ie
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pi

ck
ed

 u
p 

as
 p

ar
t o

f 
th

e 
ro

lli
ng

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
as

 d
et

ai
le

d 
ab

ov
e.

  
 

H
ig

h 
IT

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
tn

er
 –

  
In

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 T
el

ec
om

s 
M

an
ag

er
.  

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

10
 

 
Fr

om
 n

ex
t 

re
qu

es
t f

or
 a

 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
.  

Page 126



 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
R

ep
or

t –
 M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n 

18
/0

1/
20

10
 

7 
S

w
in

do
n 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

 

 
R

ef
. 

 
M

at
te

rs
 A

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 R

ev
ie

w
 

 
R

is
k 

 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

O
ffi

ce
r a

nd
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Ti

m
es

ca
le

 
3 

R
an

do
m

 s
po

t c
he

ck
s 

ar
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
on

 m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
in

 u
se

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 
3.

1 
Th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
pr

oc
es

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 ra
nd

om
 s

po
t c

he
ck

s 
ar

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t 
on

 m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 m
ob

ile
 

ph
on

e/
si

m
 c

ar
ds

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 u

se
d 

by
 th

e 
of

fic
er

 w
ho

 w
as

 is
su

ed
 th

e 
ph

on
e 

or
ig

in
al

ly
. 

        

M
is

ap
pr

op
ria

te
d 

ph
on

es
/s

im
 c

ar
ds

 g
o 

un
de

te
ct

ed
. 

R
ol

lin
g 

m
on

th
ly

 m
an

ag
em

en
t v

er
ifi

ca
tio

n 
ch

ec
ks

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t t
o 

en
su

re
 th

at
 

th
e 

of
fic

er
 o

n 
th

e 
ce

nt
ra

l m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 
re

gi
st

er
 is

 u
si

ng
 th

e 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s/

si
m

 
ca

rd
s 

is
su

ed
 to

 th
em

. 
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
fro

m
 2

00
5/

06
 

A
P

3.
1.

 

H
ig

h 
IT

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
tn

er
 –

 
In

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 T
el

ec
om

s 
M

an
ag

er
. 

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
09

. 
 

3.
2 

Th
e 

Te
le

ph
on

y 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l 

A
dm

in
is

tra
to

r i
n 

th
e 

Te
le

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 T
ea

m
 p

ur
ch

as
es

 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

V
od

af
on

e 
on

-li
ne

 s
ys

te
m

, r
ec

ei
ve

s 
an

d 
is

su
es

 th
e 

ph
on

es
 to

 th
e 

re
qu

es
tin

g 
of

fic
er

s.
 

S
eg

re
ga

tio
n 

of
 d

ut
ie

s 
do

es
 n

ot
 e

xi
st

 in
 

th
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

.  
 In

 
S

w
in

do
n 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

th
e 

B
us

in
es

s 
S

up
po

rt 
M

an
ag

er
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 
pu

rc
ha

se
s,

 r
ec

ei
ve

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

th
e 

pa
ym

en
ts

 fo
r m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s 

       

M
is

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
n 

of
 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s.
 

 N
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
. 

S
eg

re
ga

tio
n 

of
 d

ut
ie

s 
sh

ou
ld

 e
xi

st
 fo

r t
he

 
pu

rc
ha

si
ng

, r
ec

ei
vi

ng
, i

ss
ui

ng
 a

nd
 p

ay
m

en
t 

fo
r, 

a 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
.  

 W
he

re
 th

is
 is

 n
ot

 p
os

si
bl

e 
th

er
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
an

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t m

an
ag

em
en

t c
he

ck
 o

f o
n-

lin
e 

or
de

r i
te

m
s 

ba
ck

 to
 s

ou
rc

e 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
or

de
rs

 a
re

 
bo

na
-fi

de
 a

nd
 a

ut
ho

ris
ed

. 
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
fro

m
 th

e 
20

05
/0

6 
au

di
t A

P
2.

3.
 

H
ig

h 
Te

le
co

m
s 

M
an

ag
er

. 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

09
. 

Page 127



 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
R

ep
or

t –
 M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n 

18
/0

1/
20

10
 

8 
S

w
in

do
n 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

 

 
R

ef
. 

 
M

at
te

rs
 A

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 R

ev
ie

w
 

 
R

is
k 

 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

O
ffi

ce
r a

nd
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Ti

m
es

ca
le

 
4 

In
di

vi
du

al
 m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 b

ill
s 

ar
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 o
n 

a 
re

gu
la

r b
as

is
. T

he
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

’s
 s

er
vi

ce
 m

an
ag

er
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 c

he
ck

s 
th

es
e.

   
4.

1 
M

an
ag

er
s 

re
ce

iv
e 

a 
ch

ar
ge

 fo
r e

ac
h 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

, b
ut

 th
is

 is
 n

ot
 s

up
po

rte
d 

w
ith

 a
n 

ite
m

is
ed

 m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 b
ill

. 
 Th

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
S

up
po

rt 
O

ffi
ce

r w
ith

in
 

C
ap

ita
 in

pu
ts

 a
 jo

ur
na

l o
n 

O
ra

cl
e 

fro
m

 
su

m
m

ar
y 

bi
lls

 re
ce

iv
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

Te
le

co
m

s 
Te

am
. T

he
 J

ou
rn

al
 re

co
rd

s 
th

e 
na

m
e 

of
 th

e 
us

er
 a

nd
 th

e 
to

ta
l 

am
ou

nt
 fo

r t
ha

t q
ua

rte
r. 

 
 N

o 
fo

rm
al

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

ex
is

t f
or

 th
e 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 c
al

ls
 to

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 c
os

ts
 a

nd
 u

sa
ge

 a
re

 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
nd

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 p

ol
ic

y.
 

 A
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t t

he
 in

vo
ic

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 fr

om
 V

od
af

on
e 

in
 A

pr
il 

20
09

 
ha

d 
no

t b
ee

n 
re

ch
ar

ge
d 

vi
a 

jo
ur

na
l t

o 
re

le
va

nt
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
. C

ap
ita

 p
ai

d 
th

e 
in

vo
ic

e 
on

 th
e 

3rd
 J

un
e 

20
09

; t
hi

s 
w

as
 

pr
io

r t
o 

m
an

ag
er

s 
ha

vi
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 to
 

re
vi

ew
 c

ha
rg

es
 b

ef
or

e 
pa

ym
en

t. 
 Th

e 
D

ep
ut

y 
G

ro
up

 F
in

an
ce

 M
an

ag
er

 –
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 a

dv
is

ed
 th

at
 th

is
 is

 a
n 

ar
ea

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

fo
r i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

C
on

tin
uo

us
 S

er
vi

ce
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n.
  

     

O
ffi

ce
rs

 w
ith

 m
ob

ile
 

ph
on

es
 ru

n 
up

 h
ig

h 
bi

lls
 

on
 n

on
-C

ou
nc

il 
re

la
te

d 
ac

tiv
iti

es
.  

Th
es

e 
go

 
un

de
te

ct
ed

. L
ac

k 
of

 
se

gr
eg

at
io

n 
of

 d
ut

ie
s.

 
 M

is
ap

pr
op

ria
tio

n 
go

es
 

un
de

te
ct

ed
.  

 In
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 c
os

ts
 to

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
  

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l b
ud

ge
t 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

/o
ve

rs
pe

nd
s 

du
e 

to
 p

oo
r b

ud
ge

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
 

 A
dv

er
se

 p
ub

lic
ity

. 
 B

re
ac

h 
of

 F
in

an
ci

al
 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

. 

C
ap

ita
 m

us
t p

ay
 m

ob
ile

 te
le

ph
on

e 
bi

lls
 

pr
om

pt
ly

.  
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
th

en
 b

e 
re

ch
ar

ge
d 

fo
r t

he
ir 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 re
ch

ar
ge

s 
pr

om
pt

ly
. 

 E
va

lu
at

e 
th

e 
m

ea
ns

 o
f p

ro
vi

di
ng

 m
an

ag
er

s 
w

ith
 a

n 
on

-li
ne

 m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 b
ill

 a
pp

ro
va

l 
pr

oc
es

s 
fo

r t
he

ir 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
.  

Th
is

 w
ou

ld
 

en
ab

le
 m

an
ag

er
s 

to
 c

on
du

ct
 p

ay
m

en
t 

ce
rti

fic
at

io
n 

ch
ec

ks
 b

ef
or

e 
pa

ym
en

t i
s 

m
ad

e 
by

 C
ap

ita
 i.

e.
 7

-1
4 

da
ys

 p
rio

r t
o 

da
te

 
of

 p
ay

m
en

t b
ei

ng
 d

ue
.  

 M
an

ag
er

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 w
ith

 
in

di
vi

du
al

 it
em

is
ed

 m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 b
ill

s.
 

M
an

ag
er

s 
sh

ou
ld

 s
ig

n-
of

f p
ay

m
en

t 
ce

rti
fic

at
io

n 
ch

ec
ks

 to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

ey
 a

re
 

sa
tis

fie
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

ph
on

e 
us

ag
e.

  
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
fro

m
 th

e 
20

05
/0

6 
au

di
t (

A
P

4.
2)

. 
 In

 th
e 

ev
en

t o
f a

 b
re

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

C
or

po
ra

te
 M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
 P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
C

od
e 

of
 C

on
du

ct
 m

an
ag

er
s 

sh
ou

ld
 ta

ke
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 s

te
ps

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

es
e.

 
   

H
ig

h 
G

ro
up

 F
in

an
ce

 
M

an
ag

er
 –

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

09
. 

Page 128



 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
R

ep
or

t –
 M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n 

18
/0

1/
20

10
 

9 
S

w
in

do
n 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

 

 
R

ef
. 

 
M

at
te

rs
 A

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 R

ev
ie

w
 

 
R

is
k 

 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

O
ffi

ce
r a

nd
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Ti

m
es

ca
le

 
4 

In
di

vi
du

al
 m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 b

ill
s 

ar
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 o
n 

a 
re

gu
la

r b
as

is
. T

he
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

’s
 s

er
vi

ce
 m

an
ag

er
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 c

he
ck

s 
th

es
e.

   
4.

2 
Th

e 
V

od
af

on
e 

bi
ll 

re
ce

iv
ed

 in
 A

pr
il 

20
09

 
w

as
 e

xa
m

in
ed

.  
Th

e 
hi

gh
es

t c
os

t f
or

 th
e 

qu
ar

te
r t

ot
al

le
d 

£1
34

0.
 It

 w
as

 fo
un

d 
th

at
 th

e 
to

p 
te

n 
hi

gh
es

t c
os

ts
 w

er
e 

fo
r i

nt
er

ne
t c

ha
rg

es
 

an
d 

da
ta

 b
ro

w
si

ng
.  

Th
es

e 
co

st
s 

ap
pe

ar
 e

xc
es

si
ve

; t
he

re
 is

 
no

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
th

at
 th

er
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
 

re
vi

ew
 to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 b
es

t v
al

ue
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
la

ck
 o

f b
ud

ge
t 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
ev

id
en

ce
 th

at
 th

is
 

le
ve

l o
f u

sa
ge

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

em
ed

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 fo
r b

us
in

es
s 

us
e.

  
 

B
es

t v
al

ue
 n

ot
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

.  
 Fr

au
d 

go
es

 u
nd

et
ec

te
d.

 
 W

as
te

 o
f t

ax
pa

ye
r’s

 
m

on
ey

.  
 

  

A
 fu

ll 
re

vi
ew

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 o
f t

he
 

ag
re

em
en

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
w

ith
 V

od
af

on
e 

fo
r t

he
 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 in
te

rn
et

 u
sa

ge
 v

ia
 S

IM
 c

ar
d.

  
 Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
sh

ou
ld

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
if 

th
ey

 a
re

 
ge

tti
ng

 v
al

ue
 fo

r m
on

ey
 in

 th
is

 a
re

a 
an

d 
ot

he
r w

ay
s 

of
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 c
os

t s
av

in
gs

 o
n 

in
te

rn
et

 u
sa

ge
.  

 M
an

ag
er

s 
sh

ou
ld

 a
ct

iv
el

y 
m

on
ito

r m
ob

ile
 

ph
on

e/
si

m
 c

ar
d 

da
ta

 u
sa

ge
 a

nd
 c

ha
rg

es
 to

 
en

su
re

 th
ey

 a
re

 ju
st

ifi
ed

 a
nd

 re
as

on
ab

le
.  

     

H
ig

h 
IT

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
tn

er
 –

 
In

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 T
el

ec
om

s 
M

an
ag

er
. 

 
B

ud
ge

t 
H

ol
de

rs
. 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
09

. 

4.
3 

Th
e 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 c
od

e 
su

bj
ec

tiv
e 

el
em

en
t i

s 
D

51
20

, h
ow

ev
er

 a
 

fu
rth

er
 2

4 
co

de
s 

w
er

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 

be
in

g 
us

ed
 b

y 
va

rio
us

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

, 
w

hi
ch

 d
oe

s 
no

t m
ak

e 
it 

ea
sy

 fo
r t

he
 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 c
os

t o
f 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s.
 

Th
e 

D
ep

ut
y 

G
ro

up
 F

in
an

ce
 M

an
ag

er
 –

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 a
dv

is
ed

 th
at

 th
is

 is
 a

n 
ar

ea
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

r i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
C

on
tin

uo
us

 S
er

vi
ce

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n.

 
      

B
ud

ge
t i

m
pl

ic
at

io
ns

. 
 U

na
bl

e 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

ac
tu

al
 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 c
os

ts
. 

A
ll 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 c
os

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
on

ly
 b

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
to

 th
e 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 s
ub

je
ct

iv
e 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 c

od
e 

in
 o

rd
er

 fo
r t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 
id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
co

rp
or

at
e 

co
st

s.
  

 O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

fro
m

 th
e 

20
05

/0
6 

au
di

t A
P

2.
4.

 
        

H
ig

h 
G

ro
up

 F
in

an
ce

 
M

an
ag

er
 –

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

09
.  

Page 129



 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
R

ep
or

t –
 M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n 

18
/0

1/
20

10
 

10
 

S
w

in
do

n 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

 
R

ef
. 

 
M

at
te

rs
 A

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 R

ev
ie

w
 

 
R

is
k 

 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

O
ffi

ce
r a

nd
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Ti

m
es

ca
le

 
5 

In
 th

e 
ev

en
t l

os
t/s

to
le

n 
ph

on
es

 a
re

 c
on

si
st

en
tly

 b
ei

ng
 re

po
rt

ed
, t

re
nd

s 
ar

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f s
ta

ff.
   

5.
1 

Th
er

e 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 n

o 
fo

rm
al

 p
ro

ce
du

re
 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

tre
nd

s 
in

 m
is

us
e 

of
 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
or

 p
ho

ne
s 

be
in

g 
co

ns
ta

nt
ly

 lo
st

.  
 

M
is

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
n 

go
es

 
un

de
te

ct
ed

.  
C

os
ts

 o
f n

ew
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
no

t p
as

se
d 

on
to

 th
e 

m
em

be
r o

f s
ta

ff 
as

 
ou

tli
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

m
ob

ile
 

ph
on

e 
po

lic
y.

  
 

Th
e 

Te
le

co
m

s 
Te

am
 s

ho
ul

d 
pr

od
uc

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

re
po

rts
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
m

is
us

e 
of

 C
ou

nc
il 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s.
  

In
 th

e 
ev

en
t o

f s
us

pe
ct

ed
 m

is
us

e 
th

is
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

po
rte

d 
an

d 
w

he
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 

fo
llo

w
ed

 u
p 

w
ith

 th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
’s

 li
ne

 
m

an
ag

er
.  

M
ed

iu
m

 
IT

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
tn

er
 –

 
In

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 T
el

ec
om

s 
M

an
ag

er
. 

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
09

. 

5.
2 

In
 th

e 
ev

en
t o

f a
 m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 b

ei
ng

 
lo

st
 o

r s
to

le
n,

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 c
an

 e
ith

er
 

re
po

rt 
th

is
 to

 th
e 

Te
le

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
te

am
 o

r V
od

af
on

e 
di

re
ct

. 
 Th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 o

ffi
ci

al
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
fo

r 
en

su
rin

g 
th

at
 th

e 
bu

dg
et

 h
ol

de
r i

s 
aw

ar
e 

th
at

 th
e 

ph
on

e 
is

 m
is

si
ng

. 
 In

 th
e 

ev
en

t o
f t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 in
fo

rm
in

g 
V

od
af

on
e 

di
re

ct
 it

 is
 p

os
si

bl
e 

fo
r t

he
 

ph
on

e 
to

 g
o 

un
de

te
ct

ed
 a

s 
m

is
si

ng
. 

 

B
ud

ge
t 

ho
ld

er
 u

na
w

ar
e 

of
 m

is
si

ng
 p

ho
ne

. 
Fo

rm
al

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

tro
du

ce
d 

fo
r t

he
 in

fo
rm

in
g 

of
 lo

st
/s

to
le

n 
m

ob
ile

 
ph

on
es

. T
he

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
ha

rg
ed

 
fo

r t
he

 c
os

t i
nc

ur
re

d 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 
 Th

e 
bu

dg
et

 h
ol

de
r s

ho
ul

d 
be

 in
fo

rm
ed

 
pr

om
pt

ly
 o

f a
ny

 p
ho

ne
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

i.e
. m

ob
ile

 
ph

on
es

 lo
st

 o
r s

to
le

n.
 

 O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

fro
m

 th
e 

20
05

/0
6 

au
di

t A
P

3.
3.

 
 

H
ig

h 
IT

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
tn

er
 –

 
In

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 T
el

ec
om

s 
M

an
ag

er
. 

  
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

10
 

 
           

Page 130



 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
R

ep
or

t –
 M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n 

18
/0

1/
20

10
 

11
 

S
w

in
do

n 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

 
R

ef
. 

 
M

at
te

rs
 A

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 R

ev
ie

w
 

 
R

is
k 

 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

O
ffi

ce
r a

nd
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Ti

m
es

ca
le

 
6 

A
 r

ec
or

d 
of

 h
av

in
g 

a 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

pe
rs

on
ne

l f
ile

. A
 p

ro
ce

ss
 is

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

er
e 

is
 a

 tr
ig

ge
r 

an
d 

re
le

va
nt

 te
am

 is
 in

fo
rm

ed
 o

f s
ta

ff 
le

av
in

g 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

ph
on

e 
is

 re
tu

rn
ed

. 
6.

1 
S

ta
ff 

pe
rs

on
ne

l f
ile

s 
do

 n
ot

 c
on

ta
in

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
th

at
 a

 m
em

be
r o

f s
ta

ff 
ha

s 
a 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

.  
W

hi
ls

t i
t i

s 
ac

kn
ow

le
dg

ed
 th

at
 it

 is
 th

e 
m

an
ag

er
’s

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 in
fo

rm
 o

f 
st

af
f l

ea
vi

ng
, t

he
re

 is
 n

o 
fo

rm
al

 tr
ig

ge
r t

o 
en

su
re

 th
e 

ph
on

e 
is

 re
tu

rn
ed

. 
Th

e 
Te

le
co

m
s 

Te
am

 a
dv

is
ed

 th
at

 th
ey

 
ar

e 
no

t a
lw

ay
s 

in
fo

rm
ed

 th
at

 a
 m

em
be

r 
of

 s
ta

ff 
ha

s 
le

ft 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il,
 a

lth
ou

gh
 

th
is

 is
 s

ta
te

d 
in

 th
e 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 p
ol

ic
y.

 
 It 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
no

te
d 

th
at

 it
 is

 n
ot

 th
e 

Te
le

co
m

s 
Te

am
’s

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 
id

en
tif

y 
le

av
er

s.
 T

he
y 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

om
pt

ly
 in

fo
rm

ed
 b

y 
m

an
ag

er
s.

  
 A

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

N
W

O
W

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f i

te
m

s 
of

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 to
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 

i.e
. l

ap
to

ps
. A

t p
re

se
nt

 th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

m
ea

ns
 o

f c
ap

tu
rin

g 
th

e 
is

su
e 

of
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t t
o 

in
di

vi
du

al
 s

ta
ff 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
it 

is
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
m

on
ito

re
d 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
ed

 
sh

ou
ld

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

 le
av

e 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
  

         

P
ho

ne
 n

ot
 re

tu
rn

ed
 

w
he

n 
st

af
f l

ea
ve

.  
N

on
-e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 u
se

 th
e 

ph
on

e 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 
ex

ce
ss

iv
e 

co
st

s 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

  
If 

th
e 

ph
on

e 
is

 g
iv

en
 to

 
an

ot
he

r m
em

be
r o

f 
st

af
f, 

th
ey

 w
ill

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
si

gn
ed

 u
p 

to
 th

e 
m

ob
ile

 
ph

on
e 

po
lic

y 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 
a 

la
ck

 o
f a

w
ar

en
es

s.
  

  

A
 fo

rm
al

 p
ro

ce
du

re
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 w

he
n 

an
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

, i
n 

re
ce

ip
t o

f a
 m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
, l

ea
ve

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il,
 th

at
 th

e 
Te

le
co

m
s 

Te
am

 is
 

pr
om

pt
ly

 in
fo

rm
ed

.  
 Th

e 
ph

on
e 

sh
ou

ld
 th

en
 b

e 
re

tu
rn

ed
 to

 th
e 

Te
le

co
m

s 
Te

am
. I

n 
th

e 
ev

en
t t

he
 p

ho
ne

 is
 

gi
ve

n 
to

 a
no

th
er

 m
em

be
r o

f s
ta

ff 
th

e 
Te

le
co

m
s 

Te
am

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 in

fo
rm

ed
 o

f t
he

 
O

ffi
ce

r a
nd

 th
ey

 s
ho

ul
d 

si
gn

 th
e 

M
ob

ile
 

ph
on

e 
C

on
tro

l F
or

m
.  

 A
s 

pa
rt 

of
 N

W
O

W
, p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 c

en
tra

l r
ec

or
d 

of
 a

ll 
eq

ui
pm

en
t i

ss
ue

d 
to

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s.

  
  

H
ig

h 
H

ea
d 

of
 H

R
 

P
ol

ic
y 

&
 

S
tra

te
gy

. 
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
10

. 

Page 131



 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
R

ep
or

t –
 M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n 

18
/0

1/
20

10
 

12
 

S
w

in
do

n 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

 
R

ef
. 

 
M

at
te

rs
 A

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 R

ev
ie

w
 

 
R

is
k 

 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

O
ffi

ce
r a

nd
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Ti

m
es

ca
le

 
7 

R
eg

ul
ar

 re
po

rt
s/

bi
lls

 a
re

 re
ce

iv
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

id
er

 th
at

 c
le

ar
ly

 id
en

tif
ie

s 
al

l t
yp

es
 o

f m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 u
sa

ge
. 

7.
1 

Th
e 

Te
le

co
m

s 
Te

am
 a

dv
is

ed
 th

at
 

ph
on

es
 a

re
 b

ar
re

d 
fro

m
 m

ak
in

g 
pr

em
iu

m
 ra

te
 c

al
ls

 a
nd

 te
xt

. H
ow

ev
er

, a
 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 q
ua

rte
rly

 b
ill

 re
ce

iv
ed

 in
 

A
pr

il 
20

09
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
at

 p
re

m
iu

m
 ra

te
 

nu
m

be
rs

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 u

se
d.

  
 In

 li
gh

t o
f t

hi
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
e 

Te
le

co
m

s 
Te

am
 lo

ok
ed

 a
t t

he
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

fu
ll 

ye
ar

s 
bi

lli
ng

. T
he

y 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
at

 p
re

m
iu

m
 ra

te
 

nu
m

be
rs

 c
al

l c
os

ts
 to

ta
lle

d 
£1

,0
76

.  
  

 Fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

is
 fi

nd
in

g 
be

in
g 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

au
di

t t
he

 T
el

ec
om

s 
Te

am
 

ha
ve

 n
ow

 re
qu

es
te

d 
a 

bl
oc

k 
on

 a
ll 

pr
em

iu
m

 ra
te

 n
um

be
rs

.  
 

E
xc

es
si

ve
 b

ill
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

. 
 N

on
-w

or
k 

re
la

te
d 

us
e 

of
 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s/
br

ea
ch

 
of

 M
ob

ile
 P

ho
ne

 P
ol

ic
y.

 

Th
e 

Te
le

co
m

s 
Te

am
 m

us
t e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

 
ba

r i
s 

pl
ac

ed
 o

n 
al

l c
on

tra
ct

 m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 p
re

m
iu

m
 ra

te
 c

al
ls

.  
 Th

e 
Te

le
co

m
s 

Te
am

 s
ho

ul
d 

pr
od

uc
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
re

po
rts

 o
n 

a 
re

gu
la

r b
as

is
 to

 
m

on
ito

r f
or

 a
ny

 p
re

m
iu

m
 ra

te
 c

al
ls

.  
In

 th
e 

ev
en

t t
ha

t a
ny

 p
re

m
iu

m
 ra

te
 c

al
ls

 a
re

 
de

te
ct

ed
 th

es
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ba

rr
ed

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
. 

 S
ta

ff 
is

su
ed

 w
ith

 a
 m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
re

m
in

de
d 

no
t t

o 
us

e 
pr

em
iu

m
 ra

te
 

nu
m

be
rs

. 
 W

he
re

 n
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
th

is
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
es

ca
la

te
d 

ac
co

rd
in

gl
y 

an
d 

th
e 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 in
 q

ue
st

io
n 

re
tri

ev
ed

. 
R

el
ev

an
t s

ta
ff 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

ch
ar

ge
d 

th
e 

co
st

s 
in

cu
rr

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
  

 D
is

ci
pl

in
ar

y 
ac

tio
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

w
he

re
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
. 

 

Lo
w

 
IT

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
tn

er
 –

 
In

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 T
el

ec
om

s 
M

an
ag

er
. 

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
09

. 

7.
2 

Th
e 

Te
le

co
m

s 
Te

am
 w

er
e 

un
aw

ar
e 

if 
in

su
ra

nc
e 

w
ith

 V
od

af
on

e 
co

ve
re

d 
th

e 
ev

en
tu

al
ity

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

m
ob

ile
 

ph
on

es
 b

ei
ng

 c
lo

ne
d 

by
 e

xt
er

na
l 

so
ur

ce
s,

 a
nd

 if
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ou
ld

 th
en

 
be

 a
bl

e 
to

 re
cl

ai
m

 th
e 

co
st

s 
in

cu
rr

ed
 

sh
ou

ld
 a

n 
in

st
an

ce
 o

f f
ra

ud
 a

ris
e.

  
  

In
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 c
os

ts
 to

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
  

Lo
ss

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
  

If 
C

ou
nc

il 
ph

on
es

 a
re

 
ta

rg
et

ed
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ou
ld

 n
o 

be
 a

bl
e 

to
 

re
cl

ai
m

 th
e 

co
st

.  
 

C
on

fir
m

at
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ob
ta

in
ed

 w
he

th
er

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 in
su

re
d 

ag
ai

ns
t f

ra
ud

ul
en

t 
us

e,
 s

uc
h 

as
 c

lo
ni

ng
, w

ith
in

 th
e 

V
od

af
on

e 
C

on
tra

ct
.  

  

H
ig

h.
 

IT
 B

us
in

es
s 

P
ar

tn
er

 –
 

In
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 T

el
ec

om
s 

M
an

ag
er

. 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

09
. 

Page 132



 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
R

ep
or

t –
 M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n 

18
/0

1/
20

10
 

13
 

S
w

in
do

n 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

 
R

ef
. 

 
M

at
te

rs
 A

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 R

ev
ie

w
 

 
R

is
k 

 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

O
ffi

ce
r a

nd
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Ti

m
es

ca
le

 
8 

A
n 

in
ve

nt
or

y 
ex

is
ts

 o
f m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s 

an
d 

Si
m

s 
ca

rd
s.

  
8.

1 
Th

e 
Te

le
co

m
s 

Te
am

 m
ai

nt
ai

ns
 a

n 
in

ve
nt

or
y 

fo
r c

or
po

ra
te

 m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
an

d 
S

IM
 c

ar
ds

 (n
ot

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
S

C
S

). 
H

ow
ev

er
, i

ts
 a

cc
ur

ac
y 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

en
es

s 
is

 n
ot

 re
lia

bl
e,

 i.
e.

 th
e 

In
ve

nt
or

y 
do

es
 n

ot
 a

lw
ay

s 
id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 S
IM

 c
ar

ds
, t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
S

IM
 c

ar
ds

 o
n 

th
e 

In
ve

nt
or

y 
di

d 
no

t 
ag

re
e 

to
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 b
ei

ng
 c

ha
rg

ed
 fo

r 
by

 V
od

af
on

e.
 

 A
n 

in
ve

nt
or

y 
of

 m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
ex

is
t 

w
ith

in
 S

C
S

, 
th

er
ef

or
e 

w
he

n 
S

C
S

 
de

co
up

le
 

it 
w

ill
 

be
 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 f

ul
ly

 a
cc

ou
nt

 f
or

 a
ll 

as
se

ts
 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
de

co
up

lin
g 

pr
oc

es
s.

  
 Fi

na
nc

ia
l R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 6

.2
.1

 s
ta

te
s 

th
at

: 
‘A

ss
et

 re
gi

st
er

s 
ar

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
fo

r t
he

 
au

th
or

ity
, a

ss
et

s 
ar

e 
re

co
rd

ed
 w

he
n 

th
ey

 a
re

 a
cq

ui
re

d 
by

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 a
nd

 
th

e 
re

co
rd

s 
ar

e 
up

da
te

d 
as

 c
ha

ng
es

 
oc

cu
r w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 a

ss
et

’. 

N
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 

6.
2.

1.
 

 Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ca
nn

ot
 

ac
co

un
t a

ll 
m

ob
ile

 
ph

on
es

/S
IM

 c
ar

ds
 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
  

   

Th
e 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 in
ve

nt
or

y 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s 

an
d 

S
IM

 c
ar

ds
 c

an
 b

e 
cl

ea
rly

 a
cc

ou
nt

ed
 fo

r. 
Th

is
 s

ho
ul

d 
in

cl
ud

e,
 

m
ob

ile
 n

um
be

r m
od

el
/s

er
ia

l n
um

be
r a

nd
 

w
he

re
 o

r w
ho

 it
 is

 lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ph

on
es

 in
 u

se
 a

t S
C

S
.  

 Th
e 

in
ve

nt
or

y 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

up
da

te
d 

pr
om

pt
ly

 
sh

ou
ld

 a
ny

 c
ha

ng
e 

ar
is

e.
  

 A
n 

an
nu

al
 re

vi
ew

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 a
nd

 
th

e 
in

ve
nt

or
y 

si
gn

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
pe

rs
on

 
co

nd
uc

tin
g 

th
e 

ch
ec

k.
  

 

H
ig

h 
IT

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
tn

er
 –

 
In

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 T
el

ec
om

s 
M

an
ag

er
. 

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

10
. 

8.
2 

A
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t t

he
re

 w
as

 a
 

su
rp

lu
s 

of
 S

IM
 c

ar
ds

 h
el

d 
in

 th
e 

Te
le

ph
on

y 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l 

A
dm

in
is

tra
to

r d
ra

w
er

 re
ad

y 
fo

r i
ss

ue
.  

Th
ey

 w
er

e 
no

t a
cc

ou
nt

ed
 fo

r o
n 

th
e 

in
ve

nt
or

y.
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

 th
e 

dr
aw

er
 is

 n
ot

 
se

cu
re

 a
s 

th
e 

ke
ys

 a
re

 le
ft 

in
 th

e 
Te

le
ph

on
y 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l A
dm

in
is

tra
to

r t
ra

y 
on

 th
e 

de
sk

to
p.

 

M
is

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
n 

of
 S

IM
 

ca
rd

s.
 

U
na

bl
e 

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 fo

r 
S

IM
 c

ar
ds

. 
S

IM
 c

ar
ds

 a
re

 s
to

le
n.

  

A
ny

 s
ur

pl
us

 o
f p

ho
ne

s 
an

d 
S

IM
 c

ar
ds

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
co

rd
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 
in

ve
nt

or
y.

  
S

to
ck

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

he
ld

 s
ec

ur
el

y 
at

 a
ll 

tim
es

. 
It 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
no

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

Te
le

co
m

 T
ea

m
 

ad
vi

se
d 

th
ey

 h
av

e 
de

st
ro

ye
d 

an
d 

di
sp

os
ed

 
of

 th
es

e 
ca

rd
s 

at
 th

e 
tim

e 
of

 th
e 

au
di

t a
s 

th
ey

 w
er

e 
fo

un
d 

to
 b

e 
de

fe
ct

iv
e.

 

M
ed

iu
m

 
Te

le
co

m
s 

M
an

ag
er

. 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

09
. 

Page 133



Internal Audit Report – Mobile Phones Anti Fraud and Corruption 
 

18/01/2010                                                                                                            Swindon Internal Audit 
Services 

 

  
Standard Audit Opinions 

 
1. The audit opinion is based on two different criteria the first is the materiality of the 

system and it’s impact on the Council if there was a system failure. This has been 
spilt into High, Medium or Low.   

 
2. The second criteria, is the standard of control found within the system audited. 

This has been categorised into 4 different levels i.e. high; satisfactory; significant 
improvements required and, fundamental weakness. Each of these categories 
has a standard opinion (see below).    

 
 3. The combination of these two factors gives an overall risk assessment to the 

Council of one of three scores i.e. significant, moderate or minimal. 
 
 

 
Standard Audit Opinions on System Control 

 
Audit Opinion 1.  High Standard 
The auditor completing the review concluded the significant system controls are 
in place and operating effectively and only minor recommendations have been 
made. 
 
 
Audit Opinion 2.  Satisfactory Standard 
The auditor completing the review concluded that most of the significant controls 
are in place and operating satisfactorily although some non-compliance was 
identified and therefore there is scope for improvement.  
 
 
Audit Opinion 3. Significant Improvements Required 
The auditor completing the review concluded that existing procedures needed to 
be improved to ensure that they are fully reliable. A number of significant 
recommendations have been made to improve missing or failing controls. 
 
 
Audit Opinion 4.  Fundamental Weaknesses Identified 
The auditor completing the review concluded that the matters arising from the 
review are sufficiently significant to place doubt on the reliability of the 
procedures reviewed. Implementation of the recommendations made is a priority 
to ensure that reliance can be placed on the system. 

 

Appendix B 

Page 134



M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

R
ES

PO
N

SE
 T

O
 IN

TE
R

N
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
 R

EC
O

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S 
 

A
U

D
IT

 
M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
 

M
el

 F
itz

ge
ra

ld
 

D
A

TE
 

20
/1

0/
09

 

R
E

P
O

R
T 

D
A

TE
D

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 

R
E

V
IE

W
E

D
 B

Y
 

Lo
rr

ai
ne

 S
ar

so
n 

P
A

G
E

 
1 

O
F 

10
 

 

S
w

in
do

n 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
  

N
O

 
R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
TI

O
N

S
 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
LE

 O
FF

IC
E

R
  

TI
M

E
-S

C
A

LE
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 / 
A

C
TI

O
N

S
 B

Y
 D

E
P

A
R

TM
E

N
T 

1 
Th

er
e 

is
 a

 d
ef

in
ed

 c
or

po
ra

te
 p

ol
ic

y 
fo

r t
he

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t a
nd

 u
se

 o
f m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s 

an
d 

st
af

f a
re

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 it

s 
ex

is
te

nc
e.

  
1.

1 
Th

e 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 p

ol
ic

y 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 
re

gu
la

rly
 a

nd
 u

pd
at

ed
 to

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t w
ay

s 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

, s
ta

ff 
an

d 
m

an
ag

er
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
co

ve
r t

he
 c

on
se

qu
en

ce
s 

of
 m

is
us

e 
of

 a
ll 

th
e 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 th

at
 p

ho
ne

s 
co

m
e 

eq
ui

pp
ed

 w
ith

 s
uc

h 
as

 c
am

er
a,

 in
te

rn
et

.  
 C

or
po

ra
te

 B
oa

rd
 s

ho
ul

d 
fo

rm
al

ly
 a

pp
ro

ve
 th

e 
re

vi
se

d 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 p

ol
ic

y.
  

 S
im

ila
r r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
m

ad
e 

in
 th

e 
20

05
/0

6 
au

di
t r

ep
or

t A
P

1.
1.

 
  

H
ig

h 
 

IT
 B

us
in

es
s 

P
ar

tn
er

 –
 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9.

  

Th
e 

N
ew

 W
ay

s 
of

 W
or

ki
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

is
 re

vi
ew

in
g 

th
e 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 p
ol

ic
y 

as
 p

ar
t o

f a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
de

pl
oy

m
en

t o
f m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s 

to
 s

ta
ff.

   
 Th

e 
po

lic
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

si
gn

ed
 o

ff 
by

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 B

oa
rd

 a
s 

op
po

se
d 

to
 C

or
po

ra
te

 B
oa

rd
. 

1.
2 

M
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
sh

ou
ld

 o
nl

y 
be

 is
su

ed
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 
th

e 
re

ci
pi

en
t s

ig
ni

ng
 u

p 
to

 th
e 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 
ag

re
em

en
t. 

 A
ll 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
is

su
ed

 to
 s

ta
ff 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 a

 s
ig

ne
d 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

 A
n 

in
ve

nt
or

y 
re

vi
ew

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 in
 li

ne
 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f F

in
an

ci
al

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
. 

 S
im

ila
r r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
m

ad
e 

in
 th

e 
20

05
/0

6 
re

po
rt 

A
P

2.
2.

 
   

H
ig

h 
IT

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
tn

er
 –

  
 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9.
 

A
 p

ro
ce

ss
 re

vi
ew

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 to
 lo

ok
 a

t 
th

e 
en

d 
to

 e
nd

 p
ro

ce
ss

 fr
om

 o
rd

er
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
on

go
in

g 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
 A

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

N
ew

 W
ay

s 
of

 
W

or
ki

ng
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
a 

ce
nt

ra
l r

ep
os

ito
ry

 fo
r b

ot
h 

m
ob

ile
 a

nd
 fi

xe
d 

ph
on

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
cr

ea
te

d.
  T

hi
s 

re
po

si
to

ry
 w

ill
 s

up
po

rt 
on

go
in

g 
m

an
ag

em
en

t t
o 

ite
m

is
ed

 c
ha

rg
in

g 
to

 d
ev

ol
ve

d 
bu

dg
et

s.
 

            Appendix C

Page 135



M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

R
ES

PO
N

SE
 T

O
 IN

TE
R

N
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
 R

EC
O

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S 
 

A
U

D
IT

 
M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
 

M
el

 F
itz

ge
ra

ld
 

D
A

TE
 

20
/1

0/
09

 

R
E

P
O

R
T 

D
A

TE
D

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 

R
E

V
IE

W
E

D
 B

Y
 

Lo
rr

ai
ne

 S
ar

so
n 

P
A

G
E

 
2 

O
F 

10
 

 

S
w

in
do

n 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

N
O

 
R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
TI

O
N

S
 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
LE

 O
FF

IC
E

R
  

TI
M

E
-S

C
A

LE
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 / 
A

C
TI

O
N

S
 B

Y
 D

E
P

A
R

TM
E

N
T 

1 
Th

er
e 

is
 a

 d
ef

in
ed

 c
or

po
ra

te
 p

ol
ic

y 
fo

r t
he

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t a
nd

 u
se

 o
f m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s 

an
d 

st
af

f a
re

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 it

s 
ex

is
te

nc
e.

  
1.

3 
M

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s 

th
at

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 o

n 
an

y 
ne

tw
or

k 
ot

he
r t

ha
n 

V
od

af
on

e,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 O
G

C
 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
ag

re
em

en
t, 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

ch
an

ge
d 

to
 th

e 
V

od
af

on
e.

 
 S

im
ila

r r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

m
ad

e 
in

 th
e 

20
05

/0
6 

re
po

rt 
A

P
2.

1.
 

   

H
ig

h 
IT

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
tn

er
 –

  
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

9.
 

Th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f o

ur
 m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s 

ar
e 

su
pp

lie
d 

an
d 

m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

V
od

af
on

e.
  E

xc
ep

tio
ns

 to
 th

is
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 
on

 a
 ‘v

al
ue

 fo
r m

on
ey

’ p
ro

po
si

tio
n 

an
d 

it 
is

 re
co

gn
is

ed
 

th
at

 V
od

af
on

e 
is

 n
ot

 a
lw

ay
s 

th
e 

be
st

 s
ol

ut
io

n.
  A

ll 
m

ob
ile

 te
le

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 a
re

 m
an

ag
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
IC

T 
Te

le
co

m
s 

te
am

 a
nd

 m
on

ito
r s

pe
nd

 o
ut

si
de

 o
f t

he
 

V
od

af
on

e 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e.

 

2 
Ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 a

ut
ho

ris
ed

 p
rio

r t
o 

st
af

f b
ei

ng
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

 a
 m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
.  

2.
1 

Th
e 

po
lic

y 
fo

r m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
w

ha
t c

rit
er

ia
 s

ho
ul

d 
ap

pl
y 

fo
r N

W
O

W
 

an
d 

th
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 w
or

ki
ng

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s.

 
A

 re
vi

ew
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 a

ga
in

st
 th

is
 

cr
ite

ria
 in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

ne
w

 w
ay

s 
of

 
w

or
ki

ng
, a

 ro
lli

ng
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

on
 a

ll 
st

af
f w

ith
 m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

er
e 

is
 

su
ffi

ci
en

t j
us

tif
ic

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

m
 to

 h
av

e 
a 

m
ob

ile
 

ph
on

e.
   

W
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
va

lid
 re

as
on

 th
e 

ph
on

es
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
w

ith
dr

aw
n.

  
A

ll 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 c

on
tra

ct
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

w
ith

 a
 b

us
in

es
s 

ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

th
at

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
fo

rm
al

ly
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 b

ud
ge

t h
ol

de
r. 

 
A

no
m

al
ie

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pi
ck

ed
 u

p 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 

ro
lli

ng
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

as
 d

et
ai

le
d 

ab
ov

e.
  

 

H
ig

h 
IT

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
tn

er
 –

  
In

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 T
el

ec
om

s 
M

an
ag

er
.  

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

10
. 

 
Fr

om
 n

ex
t r

eq
ue

st
 fo

r a
 m

ob
ile

 
ph

on
e.

  

Th
e 

us
e 

of
 m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s 

is
 b

ec
om

in
g 

m
or

e 
co

m
m

on
 

pl
ac

e 
w

ith
in

 o
ur

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n.
  I

n 
th

e 
pa

st
 th

e 
co

st
 o

f 
us

in
g 

a 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

hi
gh

 a
nd

 fo
r t

hi
s 

re
as

on
 a

 b
us

in
es

s 
ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
w

as
 re

qu
ire

d.
  M

ov
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d 
w

e 
ar

e 
cr

ea
tin

g 
an

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t t

ha
t w

ill
 re

ly
 

le
ss

 o
n 

th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

w
e 

us
e 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
m

or
e 

re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

e 
rig

ht
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

.  
S

ta
ff 

in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 w
ill

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
th

e 
op

tio
n 

to
 h

av
e 

ei
th

er
 a

 d
es

k 
or

 a
 m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 w

ith
 a

 m
ov

e 
aw

ay
 fr

om
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 b
ot

h.
  E

ss
en

tia
lly

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 
a 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 w
ill

 b
e 

tre
at

ed
 in

 a
 s

im
ila

r w
ay

 to
 a

 
de

sk
 p

ho
ne

 a
nd

 b
e 

at
ta

ch
ed

 to
 th

e 
jo

b 
po

st
 ra

th
er

 th
an

 
th

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

.  
B

ud
ge

t m
an

ag
er

s 
ar

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 
m

on
ito

r i
te

m
is

ed
 s

pe
nd

 o
n 

bo
th

 th
e 

m
ob

ile
 a

nd
 fi

xe
d 

ph
on

es
 m

ov
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d,
 b

ut
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l b

us
in

es
s 

ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

ov
er

 a
nd

 
ab

ov
e 

w
ha

t t
he

y 
cu

rr
en

tly
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r a
 d

es
k 

ph
on

e.
  

A
n 

im
pr

ov
ed

 s
ta

rte
rs

 a
nd

 le
av

er
s 

pr
oc

es
s 

w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
is

 is
 b

et
te

r m
an

ag
ed

 in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

. 

Page 136



M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

R
ES

PO
N

SE
 T

O
 IN

TE
R

N
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
 R

EC
O

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S 
 

A
U

D
IT

 
M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
 

M
el

 F
itz

ge
ra

ld
 

D
A

TE
 

20
/1

0/
09

 

R
E

P
O

R
T 

D
A

TE
D

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 

R
E

V
IE

W
E

D
 B

Y
 

Lo
rr

ai
ne

 S
ar

so
n 

P
A

G
E

 
3 

O
F 

10
 

 

S
w

in
do

n 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

N
O

 
R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
TI

O
N

S
 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
LE

 O
FF

IC
E

R
  

TI
M

E
-S

C
A

LE
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 / 
A

C
TI

O
N

S
 B

Y
 D

E
P

A
R

TM
E

N
T 

3 
R

an
do

m
 s

po
t c

he
ck

s 
ar

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

on
 m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s 

in
 u

se
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

3.
1 

R
ol

lin
g 

m
on

th
ly

 m
an

ag
em

en
t v

er
ifi

ca
tio

n 
ch

ec
ks

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t t

o 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
e 

of
fic

er
 o

n 
th

e 
ce

nt
ra

l m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 re
gi

st
er

 is
 u

si
ng

 th
e 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s/
si

m
 c

ar
ds

 is
su

ed
 to

 th
em

. 
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
fro

m
 2

00
5/

06
 

A
P

3.
1.

 
      

H
ig

h 
IT

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
tn

er
 –

 
In

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 T
el

ec
om

s 
M

an
ag

er
. 

 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
9.

 
 

A
 p

ro
ce

ss
 w

ill
 b

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
w

he
re

 a
ll 

ph
on

es
 (b

ot
h 

m
ob

ile
 a

nd
 d

es
k)

 a
re

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 a
 b

ud
ge

t h
ol

de
r. 

 
E

ac
h 

bu
dg

et
 h

ol
de

r w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 p

ro
ac

tiv
el

y 
m

an
ag

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 p
ho

ne
s 

w
ith

in
 th

ei
r t

ea
m

s.
   

S
po

t c
he

ck
in

g 
w

ill
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
te

le
co

m
s 

te
am

 
to

 m
on

ito
r f

or
 m

is
us

e/
fra

ud
. 

3.
2 

S
eg

re
ga

tio
n 

of
 d

ut
ie

s 
sh

ou
ld

 e
xi

st
 fo

r t
he

 
pu

rc
ha

si
ng

, r
ec

ei
vi

ng
, i

ss
ui

ng
 a

nd
 p

ay
m

en
t f

or
 a

 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
.  

 W
he

re
 th

is
 is

 n
ot

 p
os

si
bl

e 
th

er
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
an

 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t c

he
ck

 o
f o

n-
lin

e 
or

de
r 

ite
m

s 
ba

ck
 to

 s
ou

rc
e 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

or
de

rs
 a

re
 b

on
a-

fid
e 

an
d 

au
th

or
is

ed
. 

 O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

fro
m

 th
e 

20
05

/0
6 

au
di

t A
P

2.
3.

 
      

H
ig

h 
Te

le
co

m
s 

M
an

ag
er

. 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

9.
 

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 s

ig
ne

d 
of

f a
t t

he
 re

le
va

nt
 le

ve
l, 

m
os

t l
ik

el
y 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 B

oa
rd

. 

Page 137



M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

R
ES

PO
N

SE
 T

O
 IN

TE
R

N
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
 R

EC
O

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S 
 

A
U

D
IT

 
M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
 

M
el

 F
itz

ge
ra

ld
 

D
A

TE
 

20
/1

0/
09

 

R
E

P
O

R
T 

D
A

TE
D

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 

R
E

V
IE

W
E

D
 B

Y
 

Lo
rr

ai
ne

 S
ar

so
n 

P
A

G
E

 
4 

O
F 

10
 

 

S
w

in
do

n 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

N
O

 
R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
TI

O
N

S
 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
LE

 O
FF

IC
E

R
  

TI
M

E
-S

C
A

LE
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 / 
A

C
TI

O
N

S
 B

Y
 D

E
P

A
R

TM
E

N
T 

4 
In

di
vi

du
al

 m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 b
ill

s 
ar

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 o

n 
a 

re
gu

la
r b

as
is

. T
he

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
’s

 s
er

vi
ce

 m
an

ag
er

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 c
he

ck
s 

th
es

e.
   

4.
1 

C
ap

ita
 m

us
t p

ay
 m

ob
ile

 te
le

ph
on

e 
bi

lls
 p

ro
m

pt
ly

.  
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
th

en
 b

e 
re

ch
ar

ge
d 

fo
r t

he
ir 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 re
ch

ar
ge

s 
pr

om
pt

ly
. 

 E
va

lu
at

e 
th

e 
m

ea
ns

 o
f p

ro
vi

di
ng

 m
an

ag
er

s 
w

ith
 

an
 o

n-
lin

e 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 b

ill
 a

pp
ro

va
l p

ro
ce

ss
 fo

r 
th

ei
r s

er
vi

ce
 a

re
a.

  T
hi

s 
w

ou
ld

 e
na

bl
e 

m
an

ag
er

s 
to

 c
on

du
ct

 p
ay

m
en

t c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
ch

ec
ks

 b
ef

or
e 

pa
ym

en
t i

s 
m

ad
e 

by
 C

ap
ita

 i.
e.

 7
-1

4 
da

ys
 p

rio
r t

o 
da

te
 o

f p
ay

m
en

t b
ei

ng
 d

ue
.  

 M
an

ag
er

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 w
ith

 in
di

vi
du

al
 

ite
m

is
ed

 m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 b
ill

s.
 M

an
ag

er
s 

sh
ou

ld
 

si
gn

-o
ff 

pa
ym

en
t c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

ch
ec

ks
 to

 c
on

fir
m

 
th

ey
 a

re
 s

at
is

fie
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

ph
on

e 
us

ag
e.

  
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
fro

m
 th

e 
20

05
/0

6 
au

di
t (

A
P

4.
2)

. 
 In

 th
e 

ev
en

t o
f a

 b
re

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

C
or

po
ra

te
 M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
 P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
C

od
e 

of
 

C
on

du
ct

 m
an

ag
er

s 
sh

ou
ld

 ta
ke

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 s
te

ps
 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

es
e.

 
      

H
ig

h 
G

ro
up

 F
in

an
ce

 M
an

ag
er

 –
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9.

 

A
gr

ee
d,

 b
ut

 th
e 

ro
ll 

ou
t w

ill
 b

e 
de

pe
nd

en
t o

n 
th

e 
N

ew
 

W
ay

s 
of

 W
or

ki
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

an
d 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e.
 

Page 138



M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

R
ES

PO
N

SE
 T

O
 IN

TE
R

N
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
 R

EC
O

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S 
 

A
U

D
IT

 
M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
 

M
el

 F
itz

ge
ra

ld
 

D
A

TE
 

20
/1

0/
09

 

R
E

P
O

R
T 

D
A

TE
D

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 

R
E

V
IE

W
E

D
 B

Y
 

Lo
rr

ai
ne

 S
ar

so
n 

P
A

G
E

 
5 

O
F 

10
 

 

S
w

in
do

n 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

N
O

 
R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
TI

O
N

S
 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
LE

 O
FF

IC
E

R
  

TI
M

E
-S

C
A

LE
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 / 
A

C
TI

O
N

S
 B

Y
 D

E
P

A
R

TM
E

N
T 

4 
In

di
vi

du
al

 m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 b
ill

s 
ar

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 o

n 
a 

re
gu

la
r b

as
is

. T
he

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
’s

 s
er

vi
ce

 m
an

ag
er

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 c
he

ck
s 

th
es

e.
   

4.
2 

A
 fu

ll 
re

vi
ew

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 o
f t

he
 

ag
re

em
en

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
w

ith
 V

od
af

on
e 

fo
r t

he
 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 in
te

rn
et

 u
sa

ge
 v

ia
 S

IM
 c

ar
d.

  
 Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
sh

ou
ld

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
if 

th
ey

 a
re

 g
et

tin
g 

va
lu

e 
fo

r m
on

ey
 in

 th
is

 a
re

a 
an

d 
ot

he
r w

ay
s 

of
 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
co

st
 s

av
in

gs
 o

n 
in

te
rn

et
 u

sa
ge

.  
  M

an
ag

er
s 

sh
ou

ld
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

m
on

ito
r t

he
 d

at
a 

us
ag

e 
an

d 
ch

ar
ge

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
ey

 a
re

 ju
st

ifi
ed

 a
nd

 
re

as
on

ab
le

.  
  

H
ig

h 
IT

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
tn

er
 –

 
In

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 T
el

ec
om

s 
M

an
ag

er
. 

 
B

ud
ge

t H
ol

de
rs

. 
 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9 

P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f m
ob

ile
 b

ro
ad

ba
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
is

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 

st
an

da
rd

 V
od

af
on

e 
fra

m
ew

or
k.

  V
od

af
on

e 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 
re

vi
ew

 th
ei

r c
os

ts
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r m
ob

ile
 

br
oa

db
an

d 
an

d 
it 

is
 re

co
gn

is
ed

 th
at

 c
os

ts
 a

re
 n

ot
 

cu
rr

en
t a

lig
ne

d 
to

 th
e 

m
ar

ke
t. 

 T
he

 ro
ll 

ou
t o

f p
ub

lic
 

W
iF

i m
ay

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 d

iff
er

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 m

ov
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d.
 

4.
3 

A
ll 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 c
os

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
on

ly
 b

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
to

 
th

e 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 s

ub
je

ct
iv

e 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 c
od

e 
in

 
or

de
r f

or
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
co

st
s.

  
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
fro

m
 th

e 
20

05
/0

6 
au

di
t A

P
2.

4.
 

       

H
ig

h 
G

ro
up

 F
in

an
ce

 M
an

ag
er

 –
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
9.

 

A
gr

ee
d 

an
d 

w
or

k 
al

re
ad

y 
ta

ki
ng

 p
la

ce
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
is

. 

5 
In

 th
e 

ev
en

t l
os

t/s
to

le
n 

ph
on

es
 a

re
 c

on
si

st
en

tly
 b

ei
ng

 re
po

rt
ed

, t
re

nd
s 

ar
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f s

ta
ff.

   

Page 139



M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

R
ES

PO
N

SE
 T

O
 IN

TE
R

N
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
 R

EC
O

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S 
 

A
U

D
IT

 
M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
 

M
el

 F
itz

ge
ra

ld
 

D
A

TE
 

20
/1

0/
09

 

R
E

P
O

R
T 

D
A

TE
D

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 

R
E

V
IE

W
E

D
 B

Y
 

Lo
rr

ai
ne

 S
ar

so
n 

P
A

G
E

 
6 

O
F 

10
 

 

S
w

in
do

n 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

N
O

 
R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
TI

O
N

S
 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
LE

 O
FF

IC
E

R
  

TI
M

E
-S

C
A

LE
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 / 
A

C
TI

O
N

S
 B

Y
 D

E
P

A
R

TM
E

N
T 

5.
1 

Th
e 

Te
le

co
m

s 
Te

am
 s

ho
ul

d 
pr

od
uc

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

re
po

rts
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l m
is

us
e 

of
 C

ou
nc

il 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s.

  
In

 th
e 

ev
en

t o
f s

us
pe

ct
ed

 m
is

us
e 

th
is

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

re
po

rte
d 

an
d 

w
he

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 fo
llo

w
ed

 u
p 

w
ith

 
th

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

’s
 li

ne
 m

an
ag

er
.  

       

M
ed

iu
m

 
IT

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
tn

er
 –

 
In

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 T
el

ec
om

s 
M

an
ag

er
. 

 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
9.

 

A
gr

ee
d.

  T
he

 ty
pe

, f
or

m
at

 a
nd

 fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
of

 th
es

e 
re

po
rts

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
ci

de
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 p
ro

ce
ss

 re
vi

ew
. 

5 
In

 th
e 

ev
en

t l
os

t/s
to

le
n 

ph
on

es
 a

re
 c

on
si

st
en

tly
 b

ei
ng

 re
po

rt
ed

, t
re

nd
s 

ar
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f s

ta
ff.

   
5.

2 
Fo

rm
al

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

tro
du

ce
d 

fo
r t

he
 

in
fo

rm
in

g 
of

 lo
st

/s
to

le
n 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s.
 T

he
 

em
pl

oy
ee

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

ha
rg

ed
 fo

r t
he

 c
os

t 
in

cu
rr

ed
 to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 
 Th

e 
bu

dg
et

 h
ol

de
r s

ho
ul

d 
be

 in
fo

rm
ed

 a
t a

ll 
tim

es
 th

at
 th

e 
ph

on
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 lo
st

 o
r s

to
le

n.
 

 O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

fro
m

 th
e 

20
05

/0
6 

au
di

t A
P

3.
3.

 
    

H
ig

h 
IT

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
tn

er
 –

 
In

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 T
el

ec
om

s 
M

an
ag

er
. 

  
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

10
. 

Fo
rm

al
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r t

he
 

lo
st

/s
to

le
n 

 re
po

rti
ng

 o
f a

ll 
eq

ui
pm

en
t. 

 C
ha

rg
in

g 
to

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
, b

ut
 to

 th
e 

bu
dg

et
 

ho
ld

er
 is

. 
  

Page 140



M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

R
ES

PO
N

SE
 T

O
 IN

TE
R

N
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
 R

EC
O

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S 
 

A
U

D
IT

 
M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
 

M
el

 F
itz

ge
ra

ld
 

D
A

TE
 

20
/1

0/
09

 

R
E

P
O

R
T 

D
A

TE
D

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 

R
E

V
IE

W
E

D
 B

Y
 

Lo
rr

ai
ne

 S
ar

so
n 

P
A

G
E

 
7 

O
F 

10
 

 

S
w

in
do

n 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

N
O

 
R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
TI

O
N

S
 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
LE

 O
FF

IC
E

R
  

TI
M

E
-S

C
A

LE
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 / 
A

C
TI

O
N

S
 B

Y
 D

E
P

A
R

TM
E

N
T 

6 
A

 re
co

rd
 o

f h
av

in
g 

a 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

pe
rs

on
ne

l f
ile

. A
 p

ro
ce

ss
 is

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

er
e 

is
 a

 tr
ig

ge
r a

nd
 re

le
va

nt
 

te
am

 is
 in

fo
rm

ed
 o

f s
ta

ff 
le

av
in

g 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

ph
on

e 
is

 re
tu

rn
ed

. 
6.

1 
A

 fo
rm

al
 p

ro
ce

du
re

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
to

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 w
he

n 
an

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
, i

n 
re

ce
ip

t o
f a

 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
, l

ea
ve

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il,
 th

at
 th

e 
Te

le
co

m
s 

Te
am

 a
re

 p
ro

m
pt

ly
 in

fo
rm

ed
.  

 Th
e 

ph
on

e 
sh

ou
ld

 th
en

 b
e 

re
tu

rn
ed

 to
 th

e 
Te

le
co

m
s 

Te
am

. I
n 

th
e 

ev
en

t t
he

 p
ho

ne
 is

 g
iv

en
 

to
 a

no
th

er
 m

em
be

r o
f s

ta
ff 

th
e 

Te
le

co
m

s 
Te

am
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

fo
rm

ed
 o

f t
he

 O
ffi

ce
r a

nd
 th

ey
 s

ho
ul

d 
si

gn
 th

e 
M

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 C

on
tro

l F
or

m
.  

 A
s 

pa
rt 

of
 N

W
O

W
, p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 

ce
nt

ra
l r

ec
or

d 
of

 a
ll 

eq
ui

pm
en

t i
ss

ue
d 

to
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s.

  
           

H
ig

h 
H

ea
d 

of
 H

R
 P

ol
ic

y 
&

 S
tra

te
gy

. 
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
10

. 

Th
is

 is
 a

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t f

or
 th

e 
S

ta
rte

rs
, M

ov
er

s 
an

d 
Le

av
er

s 
pr

oc
es

s 
be

in
g 

re
de

ve
lo

pe
d.

  U
nt

il 
su

ch
 ti

m
e 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r C

os
t C

en
tre

 M
an

ag
er

s 
in

fo
rm

in
g 

of
 c

ha
ng

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

 p
la

ce
.  

 Th
e 

pr
ef

er
re

d 
pr

oc
es

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

va
lu

e 
fo

r m
on

ey
 in

 
te

rm
s 

of
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
to

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l. 

 

Page 141



M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

R
ES

PO
N

SE
 T

O
 IN

TE
R

N
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
 R

EC
O

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S 
 

A
U

D
IT

 
M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
 

M
el

 F
itz

ge
ra

ld
 

D
A

TE
 

20
/1

0/
09

 

R
E

P
O

R
T 

D
A

TE
D

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 

R
E

V
IE

W
E

D
 B

Y
 

Lo
rr

ai
ne

 S
ar

so
n 

P
A

G
E

 
8 

O
F 

10
 

 

S
w

in
do

n 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

N
O

 
R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
TI

O
N

S
 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
LE

 O
FF

IC
E

R
  

TI
M

E
-S

C
A

LE
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 / 
A

C
TI

O
N

S
 B

Y
 D

E
P

A
R

TM
E

N
T 

7 
R

eg
ul

ar
 re

po
rt

s/
bi

lls
 a

re
 re

ce
iv

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
id

er
 th

at
 c

le
ar

ly
 id

en
tif

ie
s 

al
l t

yp
es

 o
f m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 u

sa
ge

. 
7.

1 
Th

e 
Te

le
co

m
s 

Te
am

 m
us

t e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
 b

ar
 is

 
pl

ac
ed

 o
n 

al
l c

on
tra

ct
 m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
s 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
 

pr
em

iu
m

 ra
te

 c
al

ls
.  

 Th
e 

Te
le

co
m

s 
Te

am
 s

ho
ul

d 
pr

od
uc

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

re
po

rts
 o

n 
a 

re
gu

la
r b

as
is

 to
 m

on
ito

r f
or

 a
ny

 
pr

em
iu

m
 ra

te
 c

al
ls

.  
In

 th
e 

ev
en

t t
ha

t a
ny

 
pr

em
iu

m
 ra

te
 c

al
ls

 a
re

 d
et

ec
te

d 
th

es
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ba

rr
ed

 im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

. 
 S

ta
ff 

is
su

ed
 w

ith
 a

 m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

re
m

in
de

d 
no

t t
o 

us
e 

pr
em

iu
m

 ra
te

 n
um

be
rs

. 
 W

he
re

 n
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
th

is
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
es

ca
la

te
d 

ac
co

rd
in

gl
y 

an
d 

th
e 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 in
 

qu
es

tio
n 

re
tri

ev
ed

. R
el

ev
an

t s
ta

ff 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
ch

ar
ge

d 
th

e 
co

st
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

  
 D

is
ci

pl
in

ar
y 

ac
tio

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
w

he
re

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

. 
          

Lo
w

 
IT

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
tn

er
 –

 
In

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 T
el

ec
om

s 
M

an
ag

er
. 

 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
9.

 

A
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
to

 th
is

 a
ffe

ct
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

on
 th

e 
In

tra
ne

t a
nd

 th
e 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 p
ol

ic
y 

w
ill

 re
fle

ct
 th

is
. 

 A
ct

io
n 

al
re

ad
y 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t t

o 
ba

r p
re

m
iu

m
 ra

te
 

nu
m

be
rs

 (1
18

 1
18

) a
nd

 re
gu

la
r r

ev
ie

w
in

g 
is

 a
lre

ad
y 

ta
ki

ng
 p

la
ce

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
Te

le
co

m
s 

te
am

. 
 A

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

es
ca

la
tio

n 
th

e 
re

tri
ev

al
 o

f t
he

 m
ob

ile
 

ph
on

e 
co

ul
d 

ca
us

e 
an

 in
ab

ili
ty

 to
 w

or
k 

if 
th

is
 is

 th
ei

r 
ow

n 
ph

on
e.

  T
he

 li
ne

 m
an

ag
er

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

m
an

ag
in

g 
th

e 
m

is
us

e,
 a

nd
 w

ill
 re

ac
h 

ag
re

em
en

t 
th

em
se

lv
es

 o
n 

th
e 

re
ch

ar
ge

 o
f a

dd
iti

on
al

 c
os

t i
nc

ur
re

d,
 

bu
t r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

m
is

us
e 

of
 th

e 
po

lic
y 

w
ill

 s
ho

w
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
. 

 

Page 142



M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

R
ES

PO
N

SE
 T

O
 IN

TE
R

N
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
 R

EC
O

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S 
 

A
U

D
IT

 
M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
 

M
el

 F
itz

ge
ra

ld
 

D
A

TE
 

20
/1

0/
09

 

R
E

P
O

R
T 

D
A

TE
D

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 

R
E

V
IE

W
E

D
 B

Y
 

Lo
rr

ai
ne

 S
ar

so
n 

P
A

G
E

 
9 

O
F 

10
 

 

S
w

in
do

n 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

N
O

 
R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
TI

O
N

S
 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
LE

 O
FF

IC
E

R
  

TI
M

E
-S

C
A

LE
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 / 
A

C
TI

O
N

S
 B

Y
 D

E
P

A
R

TM
E

N
T 

7 
R

eg
ul

ar
 re

po
rt

s/
bi

lls
 a

re
 re

ce
iv

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
id

er
 th

at
 c

le
ar

ly
 id

en
tif

ie
s 

al
l t

yp
es

 o
f m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 u

sa
ge

. 
7.

2 
C

on
fir

m
at

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ob

ta
in

ed
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 in
su

re
d 

ag
ai

ns
t f

ra
ud

ul
en

t u
se

, s
uc

h 
as

 c
lo

ni
ng

, w
ith

in
 th

e 
V

od
af

on
e 

C
on

tra
ct

.  
 

H
ig

h.
 

IT
 B

us
in

es
s 

P
ar

tn
er

 –
 

In
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 T

el
ec

om
s 

M
an

ag
er

. 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

9.
 

          

To
 b

e 
in

ve
st

ig
at

ed
. 

8 
A

n 
in

ve
nt

or
y 

ex
is

ts
 o

f m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
an

d 
Si

m
s 

ca
rd

s.
  

8.
1 

Th
e 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 in
ve

nt
or

y 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 
an

d 
up

da
te

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
an

d 
S

IM
 c

ar
ds

 c
an

 b
e 

cl
ea

rly
 a

cc
ou

nt
ed

 fo
r. 

Th
is

 
sh

ou
ld

 in
cl

ud
e,

 m
ob

ile
 n

um
be

r m
od

el
/s

er
ia

l 
nu

m
be

r a
nd

 w
he

re
 o

r w
ho

 it
 is

 lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

.  
 Th

e 
in

ve
nt

or
y 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
up

da
te

d 
pr

om
pt

ly
 s

ho
ul

d 
an

y 
ch

an
ge

 a
ris

e.
  

 A
n 

an
nu

al
 re

vi
ew

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 a
nd

 th
e 

in
ve

nt
or

y 
si

gn
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

pe
rs

on
 c

on
du

ct
in

g 
th

e 
ch

ec
k.

  
  

H
ig

h 
IT

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
tn

er
 –

 
In

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 T
el

ec
om

s 
M

an
ag

er
. 

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

10
. 

Th
e 

Te
le

co
m

s 
te

am
 a

lre
ad

y 
m

an
ag

e 
a 

pr
oc

es
s 

to
 

su
pp

or
t t

hi
s.

  H
ow

ev
er

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
ga

ps
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

la
ck

 
of

 th
e 

S
ta

rte
r, 

M
ov

er
s 

an
d 

Le
av

er
s 

pr
oc

es
s.

   
 W

he
n 

th
e 

ne
w

 p
ro

ce
ss

 is
 in

 p
la

ce
 it

 w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 

su
pp

or
t t

hi
s 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

, b
ut

 in
 it

 a
bs

en
ce

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
4.

1.
 a

nd
 5

.1
 w

ill
 c

ov
er

 
  

Page 143



M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

R
ES

PO
N

SE
 T

O
 IN

TE
R

N
A

L 
A

U
D

IT
 R

EC
O

M
M

EN
D

A
TI

O
N

S 
 

A
U

D
IT

 
M

ob
ile

 P
ho

ne
s 

A
nt

i F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 B

Y
 

M
el

 F
itz

ge
ra

ld
 

D
A

TE
 

20
/1

0/
09

 

R
E

P
O

R
T 

D
A

TE
D

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
9 

R
E

V
IE

W
E

D
 B

Y
 

Lo
rr

ai
ne

 S
ar

so
n 

P
A

G
E

 
10

 O
F 

10
 

 

S
w

in
do

n 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

N
O

 
R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
TI

O
N

S
 

P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
LE

 O
FF

IC
E

R
  

TI
M

E
-S

C
A

LE
 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 / 
A

C
TI

O
N

S
 B

Y
 D

E
P

A
R

TM
E

N
T 

8 
A

n 
in

ve
nt

or
y 

ex
is

ts
 o

f m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
an

d 
Si

m
s 

ca
rd

s.
  

8.
2 

A
ny

 s
ur

pl
us

 o
f p

ho
ne

s 
an

d 
S

IM
 c

ar
ds

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

re
co

rd
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 in
ve

nt
or

y.
  

S
to

ck
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
he

ld
 s

ec
ur

el
y 

at
 a

ll 
tim

es
.  

It 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

no
te

d 
th

at
 th

e 
Te

le
co

m
s 

Te
am

 
ad

vi
se

d 
th

ey
 h

av
e 

de
st

ro
ye

d 
an

d 
di

sp
os

ed
 o

f 
th

es
e 

ca
rd

s 
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t a

s 
th

ey
 w

er
e 

fo
un

d 
to

 b
e 

de
fe

ct
ed

.  

M
ed

iu
m

 
Te

le
co

m
s 

M
an

ag
er

. 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

9.
 

A
gr

ee
d.

 

 I c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
e 

ab
ov

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 c
or

re
ct

 
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

: 
D

av
id

 T
itc

om
be

 
D

at
e:

 7
/1

2/
20

09
 

  
 

 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it:
 

Lo
rra

in
e 

S
ar

so
n 

 
D

at
e:

 7
/1

2/
20

09
 

 

Page 144


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Update on progress of Internal Audit™s review of the Payroll system
	6 Risk Management Status Update
	sbc_corporate_risk_register_Oct 2009

	7 Work undertaken by other Committees
	Scrutinyreport
	Council Report - Standards Cttee January 2010

	8 External Audit Progress Report and Briefing Note
	9 Strategic Fraud Update
	checklist for those resp for gov

	10 Anti-Fraud & Corruption Strategy and Whistleblowing Procedure
	anti fraud and corruption strategy Jan 2009
	Whistleblowing Jan 2009
	SBC Fraud Response Jan 2009

	11 Head of Internal Audit Update
	Appendix 1 to HoIA update - Jan 2010
	HoIA Update - Appendix 2 - January

	12 Internal Audit reports identifying significant risk or ‚of concern™
	Final Report
	Management Response Form


